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: I, GEORGE POL.LIY, :wke oatl: and say as followss.

o I vos Chaplain Geor.e Polain, NXT70175, of 2/26 Battalion. I

f becare a prisoner of wur at Singarore on 15 February 1942,

! -

f Do Tl.e only Chinese I saw executed were 43 bodies,. scietie after

| the ez pitulation of sing: pore. Their lLionds tere 2 ei.ind their backs
end rubs vere still arouné tlreir heads, Scie of then had been shot

throuch the heac, They were tied tog etzer in fours,. That wouléd be just
after joster 1942, scuevhere about ipril, The ncetives in the camp nearby
said the Jupanese Liad executed ther., All I saw was the bodies - the
skeletons,

Se The only other pecple I saw like that was & section of our own
Eattalion at what looked to be o Japanese Coij.any HQ, near Bukitiah,.

i The gt was g t. Pat Q'veill, Bjor Tracy will know the namnes of

f the other ien, wis body, together with five others, was lying there,

! his hands were tied behind his back and he had been shotthroush the

head jthat would be about June or July 1942, It looked to e as though
they had been mwking their way back when captured by the Jepanese, token
to this Company HO, and there the > whole of then were shot,

i

|

!

{

i . They had¢ been si.ot sore considerable time before the capitulatio
i Ti.eir Lands were tied with rope and cloth. There were still pieces of

i ragced cloth around their eyes, They hed tleir identification disecs

i and sore of ther also had pay books and marks of identification.. They

| were lyin;, alon; & trench; it right have been said to have been an open
3 (rave, They were probably lined up beside the trench and killed there,
i probably Vltu the idea of putting the bodies in the trencl, but they were
|

not buried,
(sigred) GEORGE POL.IN.

Swern before e at gydney on the )
Iinth day of Septewber 1946, )

(sicned) 4i,J. MANSFIELD,
Jud e of gupreie Court of Queensland,
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;i ¥7380r6 ‘aior John Xewin LLOYD of Army Headovarters
make oath and say:
s T 2 an officer of the iustralizn filitary Forces.
2 Annered hereto and maiked "OF is a true copy
of an afficavit sworn by Leslie 7illiam *eCANN
on 27 “ar. 1645 which T hove in wy custody in the
couvrse of my duties,
= The orizinal afiidavit cannot be made available
J jmmadiatelv as it is recvired for trials of minor
war criminals, \
\/
<
\/”.
' ~ " T e e AN
w0 n Hefore me at THLROTT I'B

: )
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this 27 déay of =y 1646,

Fsf e BRova
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DOCITENT NO. 5242 : PAGE 2
IN THE MATTER of War Crimes

and
IN THE VATTER of 7¥17837 Private

Leslie "illiam YeCANN of 2/4
*achine Gun Battalion (ATF).

T, Leslie "illiam cCann of 159 Onslow Road, SHENTON
PARK, in the State of Jestern \ustralia, civilian, formerly
TX17337 Private Leslie William #eCANY of 2/4 Machine Gun
Battalion (ATF), being duly sworn make oath and say:-

15 On 7Jednesday 4 February 1942 during action SOUTH WEST
of BUXIT TEMAH Village T was wounded by Mortar fragments in
the right leg and remained with other wounded in a native
house. The party inclvded British officers whose names I
now know to be Capt THOMAS and LIEUT ALDRICH, both of
Leister Regt. During the next day the others moved out

but I remained.

'2, On Friday the 13 February 42 I was joined by 7X16675
"Private R. J. VILLHOUSE of my own unit who had received four

machine zun bullets in the right leg. e moved out in the
evening towards the WEST Coast Road and received medical
treatment at a Mohammedan Institution. I was still armed
and had fired on two enemy soldiers on the way.

R We were informed on Suncday the 15 February by the

“Mohammdenas in the evening that the battle of Singapore was

over and we could proceed to Signapore itself. In the morn-
ing we moved towards Singavpore along the West Coast Road
and about 1100 hrs met three other Australian soldiers near
PASTIR PANJANG Village. 'The names of these “ustralian
soldiers I cannot recall with certainty. ¥e hadepreviously
disnosed of our arms and when we informed these men that
fighting ha¢ finished they disposed of theirs. Carrying
MILLHOUSE we moved on to PASTR PANJANG. Here: Japanese
sentries stopned us; at the entrance to a house, later

known to be a Javanese HQ. I presumed this to be a
Jananese H) in view of the fact that guards were posted
arouné it. I cannot say what Qs this would be but from
the situation on %Singanore Islanc at that time it appeared
to be the HQs of that J:panese force which landed on the

est Coast of the Island. e were ordered inside, our

jack-knives were taken from us and we were led to the
Asiatic quarters at the rear of the house and locked in
a small room with two barred windows, about 1300 hours.

e were fed by an English-sneaking Japanese. Later,

about 1800 hrs, we were taken out and{put on to a motor
truck and informed we were to be taken to where Australian
troops were being concentrated.; At the gate ‘'we met another
party of ten 'ustraliansf‘on:feot under one guard.. These
inclvded WX13977 WO I., G. F. .TREY and WX7336 Pte H. B.
OCKERBY both of my own unit. The remainder were all 2/18
Bn.; This party had been taken by the Japanese to drive
carriers that morning.

The driver apparently did not know his destination,
he drove to a2 place behind the Iord Motor "orks, then
North along BUKIT TENMAH Road, where he remained until dark,
then returned to the house from whence we had come, During
this time none of us had been taken off the truck. ¥e had
been subjected to hostile demonstrations and an attemp
had been made to depriwve WO I AIREY of his haversack.

/M0 I AIREY
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W0 T ATREY resisted this attempt, explaining his rank. On
our return we were locked in t“e same room and given a
meal by the same ﬁngllan-opeakinr Japanese. e said "Don't
be afraid, you are cuite safe. ‘e are now youvr friends."
Tter the meal a Japanése OF7icer came in ana another
Jananese crowded rovnd the windows inquisitively. ¥We were
warned to answer truthfully and the senior man called for
WO I AIREY who stood up and declared his rank. He was
questioned regarding military movements in Australia and
overseas, the number of Australian troops in "alaya, and
American troons in Australia. He evaded the guestions and

he officer said he thought the replies were not truthful.
He then incuired if we wovld like to go home to fustralia
and laughed cynically when we renlied "Yes"., &He then

sked our Units and WO I ATREY said we were machine Gunners,
the eleven soldiers not of my Unit then svoke up and said
they were drivers. A4fter an animated discussion the
officer and interporeter left the room. A little later we
were told we wouvld stay the night and that he would en-
deavour to arrange for beddingz.

4, The officer who subjected us to interrogation ner
medium of an internreter anneared to me to he of high rank.
de wore coloured tabs and a distinctive braid on his left
shoulder which hung lkie a lanyard. He was about 5'2" in
height, portly and inclined to be chubby in the face. I
don't know whether he had a moustache or wore glasses.
His hair was much lighter than the average Japanese, cut
short but not close-cronred. e did not see this officer
again and I think there is a distinct nossibility that I
might be able to recognise him again if I saw him in
nerson., 1 would say definitely that this officer was
senior in rank to any other officer contacted by us at
the time these events toock nlace.

The interpreter was tall and slim, 6' in height and
narticularly dark. He wore glasses. He appeared to be
quite good-natured and even-tempered for a Jap.

5« e received adequate food and water and smokes, were
not molested and were permitted latrine facil'ties on 17
Februaryvy. No bedding was supplied but some clothes,
bandages and dressings were given us for wounded men.

5, On 18 Tebruary we again received adequate food ete.

23 From cdawn the Japanese appeared very unfriendly,
except one man who pushed food quickly through the window
and then ran away. It appeared to me that overnight
there had been a complete change in Japanese personnel,
in the form of another unit taking over. I could not
identify the incoming vnit nor can I give any informa-
tion that might assist in establishing its identity. The
change in atmosphere was most marked, and our requests
for water were ignored or answered with jeers._. I noted
all the names of our party in my paybook which T later
lost after my attempted execution. This being so, the
only names of our oartv which I ean furnish with cer-
tainty are ATREY OC’”RBI MILLHOUSE and one 2/18 driver
named SHERIDAN and known as "uscles”., ‘At about 1730 hrs
we were taken out singly and our hands tied behind our
backs with strins torn from a bag, WO I AIREY still wore
his haversack. =

/We
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. We were marched down the road in file, led by a
Japanese whom T thovght at the time to be an ofiicer
but now realise that he was probably a senior sergeant,
Iy reason for this is that I noticed at the time that he
was wearing leggzings as onposed to the officers equipment
of high topned hoots., He was about 5'2" in height and
wore zlasses, had a moustache and was thickset in build,
He was orobably in his thirties. '”e had a Japanese
soldier as a guard at the rear., Hostile demonstrations
were made by Tﬂnqneqe_30¢diexs.lln1nc the road andA.QQ&—;
,}Eg_iLimLiﬁmég_hanQﬂst e turned NORTH into PFITORVATORY
Rd, and marched gbout four hundred yards. T was in the
leaéing file and Pte VILLHOUSE in the rear when I called
out to him to find out whether the pace was too 1¢St, i
was shovted at absuwvelv by the Japanese in chargs. .7e
turned off to the left of the road and continued for about
one hundred yards, halted, and were formed into single rank
with our backs to a creek, T was the right hand man,
MILLHY'SE the left hand man, with AIREY and OCXZEBY near
him, Seven Jananese soldiers then appearec a:med with
British rifles with bayonets fixad, and lined up in single
rank facing us at about thirty feet d¢istance., The Japanese
in command then addressed his troons from my flank, then
ordered us to turn_ggund and face the creek, He then gave
an_order and I heard the sound of rifle bolts being worked.
I then con31dered they might shoot us but was not conv1nced
that this would hapoen. I leant forward to say to my
neighbours something like "This doesn't look too zood" and
as I was straighteainv up the Japanese in command gave
another order ané the firing squad fired. T was struck
by a bullet which entered’below my left shoulder blade
and emerged between my third and Bourth ribs, smashlng
them. T was guite conscious and could have remained
standing, but fell down the fairly steep bank into the
creek facing the onposite bank. Another man fell with
his head against my wounded right leg,_@e_was not killed,
and kept talkinz. I have no idea in what order the men
\WETe_gﬁéﬁ’“but Wwhen all had fallen into the creek the .
Jananese awaroacheo, and_fired many more shots into the
bodies shouting all the timg they were firing. The man
resting on my leg continued shouting at the Japanese and
about a cdozen shots were fired into him, one shot just
missing my h=sad.

TFrom the other end of the line another voice kept
shouting at the Japs. Firing continued uvntil all was
guiet, After about five minutes T looked around. lNove-
ment was avkward as I was bound and encumbered by the
next man, I finally sat up and spoke but received no
answer nor did anyone move, I was now feelinz dazed and
brought up blond when I spoke. I managed to free my hands
quite easily and rermoved my boots and then moved esterly
down the Cresk towards the WEST Coast Rd, but collapsed
after a short distance. At this time it was still light,
nrobably about 1830 hrs.

8. Before dawn I recovered consciousness but fainted
again recovering at first light. I washed my wound and
removed the bandage from my leg to my chest. I was unable
to dress my back. I moved back towards the place of shoot-
ing brt could only see that a rubber tree hac been felled
across the bodies. I_then took shelter in a native build-
ing: two Chinese, a man and a woman came in anc asked if

I was one of the men shot the day before, I admitted I was
and they said that they had seen the shootinz. They

/pointed

i e , —— .J
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pointed out their house but said they could not help me,
saying that they were leaving on account of the Japanese,
but mould return when the Japs had gone. I stayed there
two days, seeing no-oneé,

Q. From tq;s time on I am uncertain of times and days
and cdates, Jor about eight days T moved unmolested towards
Slngaoore ana finally came to what apneared to be that part
of Singanore known as ‘Chinatown' and eventually colla osed.
A young Sihk policeman br ovgng_mg_ggz;gg_ang hawled a rick-
shaw and at my request sent me to the Singapore Ceneral
Hospital. 4 senftry tried to_ nreyanimmaﬁenzxrlne_the build-
ing, but I got in tnrougb a2 hole 1n the blasted wall and
lay cdown in a nassage. A dental zistant found me and
hid me in a rloset and brought a mun named Professor
TFATIMAN who was carrying on as a dentist under Japanese
ordsrs. I met him again later interned in CHANGI. He
took me to his «vurgery antG dressed my wounds. I did not
divulge their cauvse., He and his assistant sheltered me in
their rooms. Their position was very difficult and later

a Jap Dr had me moved to the main ward under the clock
tower and¢ I came under Jan medical neople., The Professor
came with me and gave me ten dollars, he said he knew I
was an Australian soldier and if I had any reason to fear
Jananese enquiry regarding my wouné to feign mental shock.
I was attended by a2 Burasian orderly for about a week and
not questioned by the Japs, my treatwent was good. By 15
May 1942 T was able to walk and was taken out to a motor
car and was asked by a Jap civilian what I d4id in Singapore,
I replied that I was a driver in the AIF. I was then driven
to Changi Gaol and handed over to the British Gaol v ia
Administration. I have them my full particulars and they
told the Japs that I should be tzken to Selarang Barracks
where the fustralian soldiers were interned. HNeverthe-
less the Japanese said that this Dr had ordered that I
remain at Changi Gaol vnlil fit. I remained there until
12 Oct 1942 when I was moved to Selarang Barracks and
rejoined my unit.

10, Thile I was in the Singavnore General Hospital, I
ascertained the name of a wounded Japanese soldier in the
bed next to mine as TATS0U ADACHI, whoss address was 1102
CEIBAXOO, Tokio, I mention this fact as it may be of
assistance in the identification of both persons and units
resnonsible for these atrocities.

SWOFN BY TFE SAID Leslie Villiam MeCALNN) (sgd)

at PERTH in the State of “estern ) L. W. McCANN,
Australia on this 27th day of lMarch, )

1946. )

Before me George 7. Gwynne.

A CO“”ISS‘OH&T of the Supreme Court of "estern
‘ustralia for taking affidavits.

Exhibit "C" - This is the cdocument marked Exhibit "C!" re-
ferred to in the affidavit of Major J. XK. Lloyd sworn be-
fore me this twenty-seventh day of ilay 1946 as being pro-
duced ané shown to him at the time of his swearlng hls

said affidavit.

/s/ R. D. Crompton, Capt.
An officer of the Austfalian
¥Military Forces.
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Evidence $cken before 1r, Justice MLNSFIFID in Sydney on
Fridey, 16th November 1945,

————

I 1x33886 Cpl. CROFT, Georgc slexander, Li0C, attached 2/30 Bn,
being duly sworn gives Whe following evidence;

I am MX33886 Cpl. (ROTT. George Alexander, AAOC, attached 2/30
Bi. On 23 January 1942 I was in gb. patrickis Hospital with tinec., I was
boarded for home: however. Mujor Runs came in for volunteers to relieve the
sick men and I voiuateorzd to go. e wsre in the skin section at st. patrick?
and we were taken %o the main hospital ot Kotonga. e were put into two
trucks vhich bhad tuz zed (ross or the 5u¢necsg The first truck went outb
and was lﬂrmdlulggj followed Ly ihe second in which T was travelling. 'Je had
nct gone very far when the firss Qi pu¢~uc up. spun rouad, and went back
past us., ‘Je atvempted to turn, éOu h“L.-uay round on the road; and a machine
gun opened fire on us, The truck was hit and it stopped across the roads 4
few of those in the back of the *ruck got ocub and ran and got away. (e,
Lowever, were surrounded and taken by the Japanese,;who mocde us sit down so
we could not escape, &

&
o

An australian officer from the Con Depot came up, arguing the point
with the Japanese and asiking that we be taken bdck as we were sick men.
Actually, ve were supposcd to be going to the Con Depot in Singapore. The
Jopanese would not listen. One chap who was hit through the knee with a .
machine gun bullet was allowed to zo but not the rest.

They marched us along the road level with the machine gun post and
turned right away from Ilatcng. »fe were tcken aboutb three miles by road and
placed in native huts, fThere were nino Australluns. In the room there were
civilians - Ruropeans and Tamils. ‘¢ were made to sit on the floor where we
could get in and were not questioned at all,

L'jc were there so long and the Japanesc guard came in and took out
three men with their hards tied together. ij/e thought they were being taken
out for guestioning; 1t was not long before three shots rang out and left
no doubt as to what had happened. They kept coming in and going out, taking
three each time and then there would be more shots,

I was in the last three to go. “/e were taken to the front room
and made to sit down and bthen blindfolded. 1 were then led outside, still
tied together, and made to =it down not far from the house., It was not
loeng beforc something crashed into me and I wis knocked back. I was caught
by the heel and throvn into o drain., I knew what would happen if I moved so
I just lay there. later I slipped the blindfold and had a lock. I couldn't
see anyone cbout wnd it was getting right on dark then and so I untied myself,
slipped off my boots and crewled out of the drain, I got tarough a double
barbed wire fcnce., my idea being to go back to Kotong Hospitel:. T was wounded
a bullet having entered the left side of my head about the cheekbone and out
on the right side of the back of my nvck., I was spitting blood, and there
was blood everywhere, I sct down under a tree to rest., It was dark apd I
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was in a rubber plantation., I went to sleep and never woke till dawn. I

started off and started to ge* weakcr and wecker and I was getting bushed.
I did not know then that capitulation had taken place the night before and
natives I met would not have anyihiacg to do with me. Then)I discovered I

could not speak, | w

I wandered round and round and finally came to a place where
portugese people, & man and his wifc and a few children, lived. The woman
wanted to wash me 2s soon as she saw me. They spoke Inglish, but this chap
told her not to interfere with me as it might do me more harm than good.

They gave me a cup of coffee and it ran oul ths side of my neck. He tock

me down the road and pus me on the track through the bush leading to the
hospital, A little Chiness girl raan ahead to the hospital and two orderlies
came out and met me, They were susbtralian orderlies from the A.G.H. and they
took me into the hospital from there. I was six months in hospital.

I coule not identify the men who fired on the ambulance and later
did the shooting, but most of them wore big bushy beards; they were in
uniform.,

I have difficulty in speaking. I get a cold easily and cannot
swallow food correctly, If I get anything hot I slobber and I also get bad
cramps from the side of my face down to the throat. The bullet cut the back
of my tongue. | I never spoke from February to November,jand I had to be fed
through a tubec. I spent the rest of the period in Changi as a prisoner of
var, I was in charge of the bootmaking branch and had 32 bootm-kers under
me. I was servicing everyone's boots -~ Italian, Dutech, British, iustralian,
Japanese and Koreans,

*hen the Japanese sent their boots to be mended in most cases
they sent matericl with them. 1'e had a Korean quartermaster at the store
2ll the time and they had their own material locked up in a locker. Then
we wanted to mend pustralion ond English boots we used motor tyre and also
had sowme stuff manufactured out of raw latex. They alsc supplied us with
a bit of yszkla which was not much good. 014 kit bags were cut up for uppers.
e did 70, 80, 100 repairs a day and had two shifts running for a long
while. 77e¢ used to work from 8 or 9 in the morning to 5 p.m. and then the
other shift would come on and work to 10.30 at night. I wore wooden elogs
which I made for myself or any old pair of boots at zll.

I had no trouble with the Japanese as regards bashings.
Quite o fcw Japanese officers came in and also Japanese and Korean

soldiers. I spent gquite a lot of time mcking sword belts for them also.
The Korean quartermoster was Oyama Debushi, who was a good type as they go. -

7e had no booi repairing equipment. In the later stages, aiter
we had struggled along for about two years, they brought out from town
about a dozen pairs of pinchers, which were useless.
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The Japanese had their own army hoot shop at Singapore but I
never saw it. They had machinery there., The reason they took their boots
to us instead of %oxing them vhere was thal they were getting a better job
from us than from their own people. The Chinese did an excellent job but
fthey were also galiting an excell=znt price at that time and they were

fgetting it done from us for noithiag,

I was in the gelerang gouare incident., I know & chap who has
| photos of it and T will try to get.some for the Commission,

I ccrtlfy that this evidencs is true andd correct,
Teken before me at Jydne
on Friday 16%h November 194l (signed) G.i. CROFT,

(signed) A.J, MANSFIELD
Cc cmnissioner.

\_/\/\J\_/\J\./




pvidentiory poewicnt ¥ 5081,

5o

IN THE MJITER OF JAPLIESE " LR CRIMES
4T CHANGI PRISONER OF 4R C.lP,

d BB E DT,

/I, Lieutenant-Cclenel CHLRLES PUILLIP HELTH, D.S.0., Reyal irtillery,
with permancent hewe nddress ot RDMORE COTT..GE, LRDMORE RO.D, P.LRESTONE,
DORSET, MXE Q.TH cnd say os follews:

Lo I was captured in STCLPORE on 15 February 1942 apd wos thercaftep
confined in the following priscner of wor earps during the periods stoted;=-

Fron Until
CHANGI 18 rFelruary 1942 16 wey 1942 §
FAVELOCK RO.D and ) s I
RTVER VAILTY C.0FS) 16 1y 1942 2L pecember 1942
CHANGI 25 Dpecciber 1942 3 June 1945
KRANTI HOSPIT.L L June 1945 till the cessation of
hostilities.
2. Jien I origirally arrived at Ch’.NGI Ccrp the scnicr British

Officer wos Licutcnont-General PEIRCIVLL and the Jupruese Supervising
officer wes licuterint OK.SKI. LI iyself wees Officer Corrmencding 9th Coast
Regiient, Royel srtillery, of whoil: there werce about seven hundred all ranks
in thc conp,

e I Moreh 1942 three ren of iy regient, namely;

No. 1427206 - Gunner HUNTER, D.,
Nc. 872575 - Guunor JMeC. NN, J., cnd
No. 1427395 - Gunner JEFFRIES, C.o

were ndssing from cur lines. oOn 19 Moreh 1942 I received o nesscge to
attend ot Gerercl PERCIV.L's Headquarters as three uen of ny regivent had
been cpprehended by the Joponcse cutside the carp and that the Jopanese
proposed to shoot ther. T weat $o Hecdguirters, tukingthe Reran Catholie
ghaploin, by noe TTATSON, with me, vhere I wos tcld by Brigedier NEUBIGGING
that the Jupanesec wore dceteri ix ed tc carry out the shocting despite the
faect that Gencracl PERCIVLL had lcégel o strong protest agoinst it us being
absclutely illegcl, .8 & rcsurt cf unother necsscge frorm the Japencse I
sent for the ents E::-.ttory Cerziender, Captain B, GRIFFITH who arrived shcrtly
afterwvords, PBrigodier NELBRIGGING beck the three of us in his cer $c the
heudgquerters of tho Jupg.nesc Priscners of -jar jdministration.

L. shertly ofter cur arrivel there the three gunners who had been
udssig; arrived in o lorry frono the dirceticn cf SINGLPORE, Jftor some cone
versation betweon Brigedicr NEBIGGING cand the Joapanese he tcld me thot the
latter had refused Genercl PEIRCIVLL's request for lenicney and were going
tc shoot the three priscners.
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B Fe fcllewed the loerry in Brigcdier NEVBIGGING's cur to the coast
neer BETING KUS.. where he renwcined with the coar while GRIFFITH, WATSON
cnd ryself wolked 50 cr 60 yords down tc the beach, The thrce Gunners

were ordered out cf the lorry cnd I now scw that their honds were tied
behind their bocks cnd attached to a length of cord held by their guards,
A Jepenesce interpreter carme to us and said the men were going toc be shot
cnd showel us where we were to witness it from,

—

:Jé} [Ffter we thrce officers had spoken to the Gunners, they were led

to thc site of the cxecution where o single grave hed been dug., They
were blindfcldéed ond mede to kneel down beside the grave at intervals of
about one and a half yards. The Jopanese firing party of three stood
about thirty yoards cway cnd fired & volley on an order from the Japanese
warrant Officer or N,C.0. in charge of them, All three men feld alnost
simmltaneously but, obviously, not all of then were dead. The firing
party and the ¥,C.0. then welked up to the grave and, under the latter's
direction, finished off thec priscners still alive by firing at least 3
more shots,.

T ifter the grave had been filled in the Japcnese cerencniously
saluted thc grave and dcecorated it with shrubs from the undergrowth. The
Joepanese interpreter told me I had seen prisoners shot because they had
atterpted tc escape ond he had been instructed that I was tc warn all
others that their fate would be the same if any of them were caught trying
tc eseapes |

8; Towards the end cf February 1942 it becanme cormion knowledge in
the catp thot o number of Chinese nermbers of the Straits gSettlenment
volunteer force hod been econveyed by the Japanese to the beach east cf
CH/NGI following their capture, and there rmrderecd by machine-gun fire,
This was understcod to have taken place a few days aofter the capitulaticn,.
4 buricl party was provided by British infentry frem the southern erea of
the eccrp.,

e During 1y stoy in the cerp cenditions generally ecupared favour-
ably with thcse in cther Japenese prisoner of wor caips with the nctable
excepticn of the focd., This was infericr in both gquentity and gquality.

10. As in cther Jopanese canps nany prisoners were erployed on
constructing nilitary werks; din CHANGI on building an «ir-field near the
CEED

i 11 A I have read the affidavit of Lieutenant-Celcnel G.E.C. ROSSALL,
sworn ot ESTMINSTER on 13 Decenber 1945 and I consider it represents a
true general picture of the ration pesiticn at the carp.

SUORN by the cfcrescid CHLRLES PHILLIP HE.TH )
ot 6 spring Gordens in the City of estninster)
this pighth day of JANULRY 1946, )
Before e,
(sed. ) R.D,L. KEILY, Coptain Legal Staff,
Military Departmcent, office of The Judge .dvceate General, Iondon.

(seds) C.P. HEATH.
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T certify that this is 2 true copy of theoriginal affidavit,

(signed) A.M. Sch M.CDONLID,
Major.
Legal staff.
office of the Judge idvocate General.
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THE UNITED STATES CF AMERICA, and ors.
~ AGATNST -
ARAKT, SADAOs and ors,
I, JOHN 1 ITLIAN URIGHT, of Sydney in the Staete of New
South tvales make outh and say as foliowy,-
1 T was NX12233 Tt.Colonel John ~illiam tright, 2/15 Field Regi-

ment when I beccme a prisoner of war cf the Japanese at Singapore on 15
February 1942,

2 Prior to that date, about 24th or 25th of January 1942 I saw
an ambulcnce convoyv bombed fr a low heighi near Ayeritam in Johore. It

was & pritish convoy of approximately ten vehicles and it was attvacked by
three Japonese bomhers., Visibility was excellent and the attack was
deliberate. Four or five of the vehicles which contained wounded men
were hit, and three of them were lefi burning., Some of the occupants
were woundeda

s The vchicles were plaizly marked with the Red Cross on the
sides and roof cnd there was no military terget nearby.

L. In the Muar River fighting & party of priscners, including
Lieutenant 4. Edwoards and Gnr. R. Braddon were roped together with about
10 or 12 other prisoners and were marched for some days. ©Onc of the party,
cgt. Reillor, hed been ill and could not walk., It was officially reported:
Yo me by the sucrvivors that he was tuken off the string of prisoners,
taken aside into the junglec end shortly efter that a couple of shots were

{ heard., The Japaoness guard returned grinning and the mareh was resumed.

The guard later told the survivors that the sick man had bcen shot
beccuse he could not keep up with them,

(signed) JOMIT 7. L.RIGHT,
gworn before me at Sydney on the
fourth day of gSeptember 1946,

(signed) A.J. MANSFITLD,
Judge of the gupreme Court of rueensland.
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The International
Military Tribunal for
the paxr past,

The thited gtates of .uucrica and others

¥

RoK3 Sedco and others,

/1, FREDZRICK CHL.3LIS STULET. of 2& riverpool gtreet, North Fitzroy in
the gtate of Yietorio duhv o;fh and s -

on 26th yonuery 1942 I was Senior Representative of the
Australion Red Cross gfociety and was attachcd to the British Base Hospi-
to ¥ at ,lexandra, Singaporec.

{ on saturday, Februery Yitl 1942 ot approxinately 4.30 p.iie the

i hospital vas storrmed bty Japancse troops, Intering the main ground floor

\ corridor from thic south east c¢nd and over the back baulcony, these troops
raccd through tlhe building, bayonetting und ghooting all who caie in

their path, lcaving behirnd thew. a path of death and destruction. There

' could not be any ristaking the nature of the building., All the medical
staff were wearing Red Cross Brussards, the beds had Red Cross counterpanes
ané theconventionael iarlings were on tlic outgide and the inside of the
buildin/,. 4 huge Red Cross approximately 40 feet sguare was on the ground
irmediately in front of the building. There was no hostile act whatever
from the hospitel to provolke this attack, with 16 patients and two medical
officers I retired tc Mo, 2 QOperating mThecire orn the ground floor auring
the -raid. T saw two British boys bayonetteds They werc necbers of the
menchester pegiment. ifter the reid T saw guite & nunber dead who had been
bayonettcd or shot. I assisted bringing into the wards several who hed
bocn wounded, . Ffter tlic raid 46 dead bodies werc lying in the corridor,
These bocics were collected and buricd on londay léth. The raid lusted
about 30 minutcs.

These troops entered No. 1 Cperating Theatre on the copposite side

of the nan corrider to where I was locuted. . n operation was in Progress
on a lad fron: the Ioyals Regirent. e vas under the anaesthetice MTwo

| doctors and two uniedical orderlies were in attendunce, Cne of the Jjapanese
thrust his baycnet tirough the body of the patient. Without any provoca-
tion or warning the other Jopanese turied upon the redical staff and killed
one doctor and cune orderly wnd woundin:g the other two, I saw tiis scene
after the reid had ecnded, I vssisted in bringing the wounded doctor and
orderly into the surgicul warc, 'I obtained the above details from theii,
pozens of deud bodies were picked up in the hospital gounds at nightfall
and were placed in slit trencines for buriul, / ¢

I do not know what unit of the Japanese wus rcsponsible for this
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trogedy other th.n inferiation given by a Joupanesc officer whovisited

the lLospitul on joncsoy, : iokhs 'pe vas p ¥icrtencnt: Fe said it
was the Juperial Guoards wi:o eutercd the Teospital first, He spcke very
goot @nglish,  These troops were dressed in tropical green uniforns, steel
helmets and usual military equirnent, Their uniforms were camouflaged
with branches of trees and twigs. Meny of thern: were lilke walking shrubs,
These rien were 21l about 6 feet *all, 1lost of the Jupanese seen later
werc short in stature, about the 5 foot wark. The Cormeanding officer of .
the hospital, 8 other officers and nysclf escaped death and injury., The
C. 0. Coloncl J,%, Craven, .conbasted the eneny efter the raid dbub could not
get any sutisfection from thei. He veinfed to the Red Cross brassurds and

{\ markings but ke was brushed away and no nctice taken of hiii, There did

\ -+
26 of

not appear to be eny officer in che the Japancse,

& (.Towurds evening the JFopcnese itustered all patients who werc on
tihe ground' floor. also a few sieff und nuvrcned then off to the rear of the
hospital. fThey nuitered 1383, Muny of the patients werc in pyjanes, Lany
without footwear, scie on crubtches, otlcrswith linmbs in pluster, heads
bandaged, etc. Only two of these men were scen again, They escoped

| froi. custody during an artillery bombardrcnt, and returned to thc

“hospital. mThese en reported the terrible scereaiis of the 1en, They were
eviacntly bayonctted on gundey, February 15tl. One Japunese was seen
wiping the blood off his baycnct, Ioter on, enguiries were nuée as to
the welfare of the wmon, but the Jopenese replied that they did not have
any prisoners of wer,., nfcw duys luler o Jep.mnegse officer told The ©,0,
that our en had been buried iu shell holes, with Japanese aead, about
half a izile to the reur of the hospital. Tie tosal killed and believed
Geca as o result of the raid is 323, of whoi: 250 werc putients. The

Rewia Co dost 477 of the Ledical personnel and 559 of the officers on

the staff,

Iote on gunduy, February l15th, and on londay, Februery léﬁh,
a different type of Japunese entercd the hospit.l. 7his crowd forsibly
looted everybolty of anyilidng of walue, such as watches, fountain pens,
\rings, cigarette cases, trirnketss, noney, etec. These articles were never
‘“eturned. The store roows werc wrecked and food carried off by the case.
The pucl: store vhere puticntst personal belongs are stored vas entercd -
1§lothin;, footwear, etcs was carried oif, They even used this store,
wmhich was in the centre of the hospital, as a latrineg coupletely fouling

1 ./

|
§
:
|

=

I ves & prisoncr of wer for three and a half years in four ceaips
on gingporc Island, I saw plenty of face slapping end hitting with sticks,
picces of wood ¢nd iron, bui no cetuel killings during the whole period.

I lost four stonc over the three emd a Lhalf ycars. | Mo recognition what-
i ever was accorded me as represcatative of the Red Cross socicty.
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spplicution was node repeatcdly for soie considepation to Red Cross
personnel, but this wis rcfused on ecack occasion:J

SVORN at lMelbourne in the
state of victoria tiis the
27th duy of scpteiber 1946

(signed) F,C, STU.RT.

NS N

Before ixe

(signed) FLORENCE B. SUHR, J.D.
central poiliwick.
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Auekland,
NEY ZBALLND,

12th June 1946,

F ; ; &t
{ Joseph Wilfrcd CRAVIN soleimly and sincerely declares as follorsg ’

I an medicul superintendent of the ;jucklund public Hospital,
sucklend, New Zealand. T reside at the Medical Superintendentts residence
ot the lospitul, juecklind.

{1 vos o the meserve of officers Territoriul ,riy Roy.l .ruy
Tedicel gorps oi tlie ovtbeck of World Wor II. I wes posted by the war
office to the .lexundra : ilitary Hospital, Singapore, and tppointed
officer colasonding. My ruok thon vas Iicubtcnant Colonel wnd I was holding
thet position when gsingeporc fell to the Japoncse, on the l5th February

1942,

ibout 4 p.ie on the lhth February 1942 the Jopanese overran the
Hospital whiel wius clecrly morked with Red Cross rrprkings. L nuber of
puticnts and staff were killed and wounded by cxplosives und bayonets.
sbout 200 morc paticnts wnd stuff werc reroved under escort by the
Jopenese., They verc kept in three very suzll roons without food or water
or .ny ettention till .idday on the 15ih Februsxry 1942, when they were
token out in crall groups wnd bayoncted to death.

puring ity 1942,at the request of the British Mplayu Cormend,
I coipiled & full und detailed rcport of the incidents surrounding the
overrunning of the lerandra lilitary Ijospitul by the Jupancses I handed
this report to prigudier stringer, D.S.0., 0.B.E., Deputy Director
Medical gervices mmlaya Corixnd. I rotained o copy of this report and on
1y rclecse os o prisouer of war about the 14th septeiber 1945, I handed
1y copy of this report to an officer attached to the War Crites Investi-
gotion goimission, at Changi Gaol, Singapore.

on the 12th June 1946 I wos shown by Detective Jones en
exiract of 1y report referrcd to acbove. This cxtract recds as follows;-

sTues, 17 Feb. 1942,
The Joponese G,0.C, called at the hespital at 3 p.u. Nipponese tiue.

sThrough an interpreter lLe cxpressed regrct for the hard time the hospital

had hed, ond wssured ne that the Japunese verc hard fighters but kindly
cuptor ard thet we had nothing %o fecr, The Jupanese proverb ubout
nursing the wounded bird to the Lunterts brecast was quoted to us as wn
assurwunce, This is what I guthered., Before leuaving i.e visited ports of
the hospital and finclly I was told that I wus to reguerd his visit as bein
tiat of a dircet represcntative of the Japenese Inperor, cnd thet no

-
‘

highcr honour could be puid use" ! o

I identify this cxtroet as being a true extract frortlie report
which T rnde dn my 1942,
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T have becn shovn o photograph by Detective Jones und I identify
it as being Lieut. General Renya MUTLGUCHI, who was the Jap:nesc General
officer Coimandinz referrcd to in the cextraect above.

ind I ke this solcerm declaration conscientiously believing the
sui ¢ to be true and by virtue of the Justices of the Pecce ict 1927,

Declcred at jsuckland this 12th duy )
of yune 1946, beforc ie ) (signed) J,W, CRLVLN.

(signed) GLADYS FOWLIR, J.T.
Justice of the pecce in
ard for the pordnion of
New Zealand.

gtute: ent taken und witnessed by s~

(Signed) D.L. JONLS.
Detective 8272
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INTERNATIONAL MITITARY TRIBUNAL FOR TIHC FAR IAST.

I\TO. l.

UNITED STATTS OF AMIRICA AND OTHERS

-against-

ARAKT, SADAO AND OTHERS.

I, DIRRICK RANAID MAIN of 15 STAFFORD STRLET, BARDON, BRISBANT, in
the STATT OF QUEENSLAND, meke oath and say as followsy=-

I was QX.12878 GMR. DERRICK RANALD MAIN of the 2/10 FIILD
REGIMENT, when I was taken prisoner by the Japanese at Singapore on the
15th February, 1942. I was sent to Changi on the 17th February, 1942,
where T remained for three weeks and was then sent to the great vorld
camp in Singapore,

2. conditions at Changi were not good and food was fairly short.
The Japanese did not interrere with us during these three weeks, I went
to Great yjorld Camp on the 22nd }arch, 1942, I was working on the docks
and in warehouses loading general ordnance stores including ammunition.

S A number of bashings occurred each day, some were severe and

some were slight. One concerned Gur. FERGUSON, @ member of an Anti-Tank
Regiment. e were working amongst stores and he had taken some tins of
butter. '7e were searched by guards, he was the only one on whom anything
was found. He was taken to the guard house, and we were able to see throug!
the windows the bashing he received, They knocked him down and kicked him,
and hit him with rifles; this lasted for half an hour. He was bleeding
from the eyes and mouth when he came back, but he did not suffer any
permanent injuryﬂ( No preliminary investigation or trial was helq)

s On another occesion Gnr. FERRAR of the 2/10 Field Regiment was
caught eating a tin of milk and a Japanese named "SEQUESTA' tied him to a
tree with his hands behind him and set about him with a shovel, He was 3
then taken to Japanese Headquarters. He had blood on his arms and legs and
was laid up for three or four days after he came back from Headquarters.
I did not actually see the bashings he received at Headquartegg,(but he
informed me and I verily believe that he was thrashed with a riding ecrop -
and a golf stick at intervals during the night)

5a I went back to Changi on the 23rd December, 1942, and was there
until 14 parch, 19433 conditions then were bad. Focd was short and we
were reduced to eat hedge, grass and potato tops and anything we could
get. Some of the men resorted to eating dogs and catsg(and T have
actually eaten cat myself)) E

B In March, 1943, I went to THAILAND.,

(signed) DERIX R. MAIN,

S70R EEFORE M AT
BRISRANE, ON THE 28th DAY
OF AUGUST, 1946.
(Signed) A.J. MANSFIZID,.
JUDGE OF THE SUPREIT COURT OF QUEIINNSLAND.
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f_f NX59561 Lieut, Frank RAMSBOTHAM, 2/20 rustralien Inf. Battalion,
‘ beinz duly sworn, gives the following evidence;

I became a prisoner cf war at Singapore on 15 February 1942
and went with working parties imto singapore early in March 1942 with
| capt. Gayden, from the same Battalion,

(rr one cccasion ry party was ecaucht with Tobaecc in their
haversacks and in their pockets and we were told to report tc the
| Agg?anese un at OUTRAM ROAD school next morning, I took the men down
jan we werc brought before Iieut. Choisawa, who asked us for evidence,
' e told him we had nc evidence and that the men had simply taken the
tobaccou, He sentenced the whole party to receive 25 lashes each,
vhich were to be adrinistered at once, I was tcld to take the party
outside the roomn and I was then calleé in amdtold I rust watch the
proceeding:s, The men were brought in one at a time and thrashed across
the back, from the neck down to the buttocks with ridin; whips. When
the 25 lashes had been adrinistered the men were . rabbed by two Japanese

|
b
|
f
2 privates, their hands were twitched together with telephope wire which
|
I
|
|
)
f

was so tight that it cut into their wrists, They were then taken out
and tied to a fence outside the my in the sun with no hats, puring this
tine a Japanese medical officer, whose name T do not know, and St.lBje
Fuji came into the room and tossed to sce who would do the next belting.

he Japanese nedical officer lost most of the tosses so took a riding
Whip and went outside and lashed the men across the fage wh;;g_they were
tied up to the fence.  Three riding hips had already <enr—e when 1t
cane to ry turn I was given 25 strokes around the kidneys with the butt
end of the whip handles 4is a result I suffered bruised kidneys and was
confired in hospital for a couple of days,

Lfter the punishment had been administered the men were all
taken away and put into?refrigeration van which was entirely without
ventilation, still with their hands tied behind their backs, They were
very crowded inside, and I was told tc stand to attention outside and
keep ¢uard on penalty that if eny man got out I would be held responsible,
I rernined there for about half an hour and then decided that if sone-
thing was not done the men would eventually die from suffocation, so I
went and saw the interpreter about the matter., I was given a slap in
the face and was told that he would try and do scmething when the officer
went out for lunch, The officer went out in ebout one hour's time, and
the interprcter came down and told me I could open the door a foot,

By this time four men had fainted and the floor of the car was just a

sea of sweat, 41l the men were in fairly bad condition., Iater in the

afternocn, !mjor Schnider came down and the door was kept open from then

on. He went down and saw the Japanese officer and we were then sent back

l to camp, Next day we were all forced to work irrespective of what
injuries we were suffering from, On the followingday we were able to

‘ et a spell for most of the troops,
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On one occasicn I saw & man standing outside the Japanese R
after having been very badly assaulted. He had been put into a bath of
| boiling, water, brought out and thrashed, thNem PuUt into the bath agaimy,
| end so on., He was badly burnt ond subsequently lost a lot of skin. He
| was an pustralian and a nember of 2/1C Fd. Reite, but I do not know his
| nane, T
[ P

")

' age cane to give us some bread ITOm 4 basket 4G WAB CArTyil/e He came
l‘ over tc¢ me where I was standing a little apart from the other men, and

i offered me the bread, However, as we had been told that if we accepted

i anything from the Chinese, they would be thrashed, I waved hin awaye A
Japancse puard, who was a mermber of what we called mThe Black Guards®
because of the piece of black netting they always wore across their eyes,
came across and hit the Loy behind the head with a rifle butt. He then
picked him up and weited until a truck was coning alon; the road at a
decent speed and then threw hin under the wheels. The assed right
| over him and he lay in the gutter. I think he was killed because when we
care out again at night he was still there. 7

o
+

Taken and sworn -before
ne at SYDNEY

(Signed) F. RAIMSBOTHAM.
Signed) A.J, MANSFIELD.
crmissioners, S e

On another occasion a young Chinese boy about 13 or 14 years of- ;

NG
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IN THZ MATTER OF JAPANESE WAR CRIMES
AT RIVER VAILEY AND HAVELOCK ROAD

CulPS, SINGLPORE, ,:3 i J 7/
G " D
P Yy

AT ET DAl 3R,

" gvidentiary Document No. 5080,

/ I, Lieutenant Colonel CHARLES PHILLIP HEATH, D.S.0., Royal jrtillery
“with permanent home address at ARDMORE COTTLGE, ARDMORE ROAD, PARKSTONE,
DORSET, MAKE OATH and say as follows;=-

i I was captured in SINGAPORE on 15 February 1942 and was thereafter
confined in}the following prisoner-of war camps during the periods stated;~
Fron Until
CHANGI 18 February 1942 - 15 May 1942
HAVELOCY RO.D and
RIVER VALLEY =
. CAIPS 16 ypy 1942 - 2l December 1942 )
CHANGT 25 peccrber 1942 - 3 June 1945
KRANJI HOSPIT.L 4 June 1945 till the cessation
of hostilitiesd,
2. I arrived at MALVELOCK ROAD CAMP with a mlabourn Battalion on

16 Mey 1942, In July 1942 T became Senior British officer there,
taking over from Colonel RyP: BRIDGE, R(is04C. Early in sugust I took
over in addition RIVER VALLEY Cil® from Colonel K,H., PRESTON of the
Indian Army who returned to CHANGI on account of sickness,

f 3. RIVER VALLEY and HAVELOCK ROAD Camps were only about 400 yards
‘apart being separated by a small stream and barbed wire fences, I
remained Senior PBritish officer of both camps till they were closed on
2L Decermer_19u2/and, during the whole of that period, the two camps were
run as a single unit by the Japanese, when I first went to HAVELOCK
road Caup the Japanese Cormandant of both camps was Lieutenant FUKADA.

He was succeeded about geptewbzr 1942 by rLieutenant XGTANI, When Lieut.
FURLD. left,his idjutant, Tieutenant ORKUY.LMA,went with him, After their
departure Lieutenant KOTANI was assisted by Lieutenant FPURKUDA as Officer
in charge of the Quards,

Zh. on 29 July 1942 about 1415 hours a Japanese soldier caume to me in
HAVELOCK ROAD Camp with orders that all prisoners of war in the camp were
to parade at once and march under his direction. This was done and Le con-
ducted the party to a field outside RIVER Vﬁllﬂﬁ_cnjp.l There I got

permission from a Japanese serjeant to allow cooks an&ﬁprisoners working

on repairs to Japanese waggons in camp to dismiss. This left on parade all
officers, clerks, camp-employed sick and men without boots and all those

not ordered to work outside the camp that afternoon by the Japanese Guards.

we were joined by & similar parade from RIVER VALLEY Carp and formed into

& squaree Lieutenant FUK/DA and his interpreter arrived and the latter

read out mInstructionse issued by the former; I attach hereto copy of

-




Evidentiary Document No. 5080, I 4
2

these rInstructionsn, marked *EXHIBIT'.! "

<5. The other ranks were then rEmched awayvby Japanese N,C.0's and,
as soon as the officers were dlsmlssea,kl followed them écconpanled by
Major C.Z.D. WIID, Oxfordshire & Buckinghamshire Light Infantry.
Lieutenant FUK/AD. unsuccessfully tried to persuade e not to do so.

16, The prisoners (strength about 400) had been collected on an
open space with a very uneven stony surface and were being forced by

the Japanese with blows and shouts to run round in a large circle. lost

of the men were sick or had bare feet owing to the shortage of bootsL]

otlhiers were clerks, Werrant officers, etc. who were employed in the Camp,

e goon after I had arrived on the scene Iieutenant FUK/Di also
cppeared., I immediately protested to him but he took no notice. I also
sent for a doctor to weed out the sick, Tie doubling about went on for-
about thirty-five minutes and then Lieutenant FUR.LD. addressed the men

in a long speech the gist of which was that they were #»slackers®; In the
course of this speech he also stated ®I have proved to you that you can
dance in bare feet, therefore you can work in bare feetwt:j

8. Previous to this incident we had had no warning that Lieutenant
FUK/D.L was dissatisfied with the prisonerst! work or the numbers provided
for working parties. Nor had any effort been made to find out the
reason for. any of the individual men being in camp or whether they were
zuilty of laziness or any other offence, Neither had we any subsequent
repercussions or explanation of it. My personal view is that Lieutenant
FUR.AD. Wished to discourage demands which Tiieutenant Colonel PRESTON
had been neking regarding the necessity for boot repairing facilities.

f@. Accormodation was very bad, 201 men being accomrodated in each
3 hut of 120 feet by 18 feet. ‘Ti.e huts were each of two floors and the
only places a.man could stand upright were in the gangway running down
, the middle or on the extreme edge of the upper floor. There were no
mparatez huts raa- eccing. recreauon or’ any othew purpoaau. tod on

10. . For several nonths after 1 went t6 HAVELOCK ROAD CALIMP no -
arrangements for repair or replacement of boots and clothing, ‘which wore
out very rapidly under the working conditions, existed in either ‘Camp.

Y3, working conditions'wére very severe., Frequently I received
reports of prisoners who had been struck by their'guards.

12, AS . In-other Japanese (Caups.food was insufficient,

13, Medical stores were in ‘short 'supply during all the time. I was
genior pritish officer in these carps; there was no adequate hospital
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accormodation or equipment, €.ies DO beds were prcvided and the hospital
consisted of the normal attap hut deseribed above, The worst cases were
taken to CHANGI Corp Hospital but transport was not regularly provided
even for them,™7

it
STORT by the aforesaid CHARLES PHILLIP HELTH )
at & spring Gardens in the City of vest- ) (Sicned) C.P. HEATH.
mtinster this Eighth day of JANUARY, 1946 )

Refore e,
Captain, Iegal staff.

Military pepartnent,
office of The Jhdge Advocate General,
LOI\TDOI\T ] S .T"._f e l L]

I certify that this is a true copy of the original affidavit.
(Signed) 4,11, BELL~MACDONALD,

Legal staffy
office of the Judge pdvocate General,
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¥.I.9 JaPe 17105‘
INSTRUCTIONS
TO0 LAZY PRISONERS OF YiR.

1. I regret that I mmst give you sorme iustructions, but these
instructions are given fron the point of view of giving you sone
spiritual training,.

Therefore, I rmst give then firmly,

But, at the same time, T mmst express appreciation of the good
work done by the dilipent men. .

You heave lived with us for some :wonths, therefore we Lave become

/////iggtlonate friends,
£3NLOJZ~4}X) 3. e have treated you as our friends, in the spirit of !nggiggj_:__\

the traditional generous spirit of the Japanese .rmy - ever since we came

here, because ve cre so‘alers. and you arc soldiers, anG therefore we
should understand each other.

. But you bave resPorded to thls. our "BuuhldO' by deception and
alshoncsty. S g e
5e such conduect is not permitted by "BLSthO', and presumably would

not be permitted by Inglish standards.

6. And you rmst be reminded that your intirmte and diligent friends
. are overworkiiy to neke up for your idle conduct,

Te Yyou should not be able to thirk of this withocut feeling very

much ashamed, Such shame should be unendurable,

B work should be pleasant and cheerful, but tlose wio will not work
must be idle men by nature, or blockheads who have no conscience as humnn
beings.

e Ag soldiers, you must have understood these things, therefore,

you ouzht to think how to do your best before thinking of anything else,
T_e hlSuOTJ of hwnman beings has teucht us that it is ulways

possible t6 work, whatever the conditions Lay be, _To sa~ tL;t }ou nave

no shirts and no shoes is an luproper excuse, : e

104 Work from today., Do not wait until tomorrow. .nd you mmst bear
the cbove-nentioned ingstructions firmly in mind.
of course we shall do our best to meke better your conditions,
Those who are idlec will be severcly punished as from tomorro?i>
Pleas€ understand this foct,

(LIEUTINAT K, FUKIDA)

26th July, 2602 (X) (sTu®).
(1942)
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mhis is the Fxhibit wiv referred to in the Affidavit of Lieutenant
Colonel CHARLES PHILLIP HEATH, D.S,0., R.4., SUORS before me at 6 Spring
gardens in the City of Westuminster this eighth day of January 1946,

(signed) R,D,L, KEILY, Captain,
legal staff,
Military pepartuent,
Office of the J. 2.8,
Iondon; S,W. 1.
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SUMIARY OF EX-NMINLTION

OF

[ﬁo. 2586617 sgt. G.V.P. PICOZZI, Royal Corps of Signals having been
' duly sworn st.tes;-

I cm 30 years of cge, of Pritish Nttionality,%born at Londcn,.
My permmnent home is (NIL). ' T
I am at present living at pecrlts rill priscn, Singapore where I am acting
as a warder.
{The following is an account of my experiences in The jHlitary Gaol in
pecrls Hill Prison, singopore, where I was incarcerated from iugust 1943
until jsugust fh4lh.

I wes locked up in cell 19 D Block, There were 13 other soldiers
there when I arrived cnd when I saw them I realised that this was indeed hell
on earth. They were covered in septic scabies, were suffering from beri-beri
and in many cases dysentery. Iveryone wes hopelessly undernourished and
terribly thin, the average weight being cbout 7 stone. The food was totally
incdequate - three neals a dey consisting in ell of some 8 ozs, of rice with
a little soup and an oecasional fish head., For five months we all but
sterved to death and I personclly went down from 12 stone to 6 stone 2 lbs.
by which time I was very sick with scabies and beri-beri. On asking cor
rather begging for mediclne I was told to hurry up and die as there was no
treatnent for such as I- In seven months I had been in solitary confinenent

as I was still an untrlcd prisoner and ny state of mind was such that I just
wanted to die,

;zwcryone lived in constunt feur of the guards as severe beatings
were the punishuent for the slightest offencc. The following are soue of the
worst atrocities which I witncssed;-

l. In Mareh or April 194) there was in » prison with me an old | .
priest from Mulecca. FHe was sufi‘erlnb from sggg{g_§ggb1cs “rd_Qno
night when he was moening in his ccll t thc gucrd wept in ond kicked

i and bcat hin. He dicd the s@mic nlght. The guard who murdered hin

is himself now a prisoncr in the gacl und I heve identified hin as

YAIVMTISHI .
e 2 wau

‘ 12.; chinese end *urasi:ﬁglpuvc been carried out on stretchers to be
e 3 beheaded, toc sick =ik or even crawl. Young Chinese, toc young
{ %o die, have left for exccutionf shouting for victory for the sllics
3 and shovwing us the wey to die for King cnd Country.

i;J. The most pathetic sight was scven purcsions, sone of them ny friends
7 in peacetine, whose only erine wos thut they had teken news into
changi Cwxip which was ccrmion practice in gingepore. For this they
were condemned to death after promises frcu the Japs that they would
be exnzsed if they boearc good citizens. They were beheaded on 26
Nov. '43.
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4. “hen Hatficld was condermed to die he was kept in an crpty cell for

5Se

10.

six days prior to his exzecution. He was in « very bad stete and was

the guards never lost wn oppertunity of tormenting him with
reminders of what was to come. FHis mental anguish must have been
clrmost unbecrable. From a 16 stcone mon he hod become a 7 stonc wreeK

and was exceuted on 6 Deco t43. f

hondeuffed and without bedding. He had a horror of beheading and //

An Indian soldier was kicked in the back by a guard and completely
crippled. He could not walk :nd eventually died, The guard who
rmrdered him is himself now a prisoner in the guol and I have
identified hin as NIHAR. HIDEO.

4 Chinesc ixn was driven ned by ccnstant beatings ond eventually
killed himself by bashinghis head against the wall of his celli}
The guard who was responsible for this men's deawth is hinself now
a prisoner in the geol cnd I have identified hin as KaM.Ti.

An Inglish PO nomed Brown of the Loyal Regiment was driven med by
constant beating and general illtrcatuen§5 The guard responsible
for this is himself now a priscner in the gaol and I hcwve identi-
fied him as MINO. He was alsc in charge of the issue of rations
and ncde sure that the pritish and _ustralian PsQ were almost
starved to decth,

e sustralions died of starvation and genercl illtreatment in July
19&3:] The mon who is partially responsible for their death is
MORIMOTO who is now & priscmner in the gacl.

I have perscnally been illtreated by the following guards who are
now prisoncrs in the gaol and who I have identified;-

(a) HIEDL - Knocked me unconseiocus three tires with his sword butt
and nade e crawl onc mile on iy hands and knees when I was
sick with dysentery end malarie and could not walk, Hc did
this just for the pleasure of secing ryy sores cut and bleeding,

(b) MR.LTA - “hen I wus unable to walk and was crawling along he
kicked me in the facc because I was not going fast enoughs
S
It hos left a scar on ry forelead,

(e) &ATO - Tock particular delight in torturing ne by mcking me
crawl cbout and beating me when T was to sick to rove.

The following guards also delightcd in illtrcating prisoncrs. They
are all in gaol and have been identificd by ;-

(a) TSUKUDA, Keiji - reduced already necgre rations and kicked
sick prisoncrs.
(b) ¥O0G. - general illtrectiient,
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{c) ONISHI - purticularly fond of beating @nglish soldiers.

He kept me on cbout L ozs. of rice cnd water for 1 doys
because I would not kiss his shoes,

(@) S84I1TO - starving and beating.

(e) KOBAYLSHI - particulerly fend of hurting officers.

(f) HATORI - beat up everybody, He beat a British soldier naned
Lawson and broke two of his ribs. Particularly fond of
kicking prisoners until they were unconscious.

(g) YLMASHIT. - @ particularly vicious type who specialised in
beating up sick prisoncrs, He was in charge cf the kitchen
for a tine when he mde sure we were given half rations and
sour rice until everybody was sick. Then he care round tell-
ing us tc hurry up and die, helping us clcng with kicks and
blows .

(h) SATO - general illtrcatument.

(1) ORUMIRA - general illtrcatient,

(i) H.CHIV. - general illtreatment.

(k) s4IMOI - general illtreatment.

ifter pec, '43 things begen to get a lot better. The food increused and
everyone vho could work was allowed to do so, Of course if you were sick
you were still starved, the Jap rethod being no work, nc foocd. ifter about
six wecks things begon to drop off again and beatings once rore becane the
order of the day. It was futile to complain fcr there was nobody to com-
plain toe Eventually I was sent to Chungi PO, Hospital when the guards
thought T was pcst suving. This was cne of their rost famous jokes, They
would keep soldiers in their cclls with no medical treatrent and just before
they died send them to Changi. In this way the responeibility for the
ceaths did not lic with the prison acuthorities.

MWy statenent can be corroboratcd by te. Y..PP, R.SC.
Sgte MORANT, 2 Loyals
Bdr. NOON, 155 Fd. Regte
CSM. BLEE, 2/26 Rogt. . IF.

(signcd) G.V. FIC0ZZI, Sgte
Sworn beforc e
(sigred) .G, PRITCHLRDs Lts Col.
0.C. No. T Tar Crines Investigation Tean,
This 8th day of Junuary 1946

petailed tc examine the above

by ¢ in ¢, illied 12nd Forces SEa.
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The United States of Laerica and Qthers
v
ARAKT, Sadeo and Others
Affidavit

I, Roderici: Grahaa Tells of Tatura in the State of Victoria formerly

-~ Nae e

72214024 Lieutenant R. G» Tells of 8th Division Signals make oath and
says-

1. I becane a prisoner of war at Singajore on 15 Februery 19/.2.

I subsequently wenti to Sendalsn anl Thwehing in Borneo and was sext
fron Zuching on 8 Mareh 194k to Guirem Road Gaol to serve a
sentence of 12 yrears! penal servitude uith hord labour inposed on e
by a Japanese court-uartizl. I arrived at Cutrsa Road Gaol en 1l%h
Yareh 1944 and reagined There until 3rd April 1945 vhen I wes
rewoved to Changi Hospital.

2o T sav many instances of maltreatuenti of »Hriscnsrs at Jutran
Road Gaol.

An Tnc-lishman nened Bradley was exiremely sielis is testicles

ere aso Wt six inches in dla,le’ae due o excescive water eaused U
eri beri. Whilst 4in this condition, a Qu.a“z struek hin, Xicled ain

on the head anl tqen in the festicles. e co::'i,i.:_tc’ 30 ..101: ha
until Sradley becare uneonscicus. oradley died about four .iontas
later. The nosti usual form: of punisianent was face slapyianr, and
reduction of rations, ris:.-e% uorkin; in fhe gerden uere Xiclked,
beaten and made Lo stand in the blezing sun for uy o an hour anl a
half for such things as tryin: to eat green leaves froa the planis.

(o)

B Zveryone s exitremelr weak cnd sick froi malmubrition. Even

to walk vas an absolute effort, let alone uork. The food concisted
of five or sixz ounces of rice per day at the nost, buf for one period

of seven monias ve had notiin; but a soup nede by boiling tapiocca
flour in water and alding pepper.

b The sole bedding issued ccnsisied of a woolen bloek o rest she
nead on, two boards aboub six inches uile, one inech deen an’ six feet
lon; %o lie on end two very thin worm out blankeis. The orison as
er-iin infested.
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He There were practically no medical su;
medical treatment was that provided by a med
occesi nally came around,

e The uork was very monofonous. For nine nonths e, were
pieldin: heip, a eonglomeration of hemp from workshops, e were
mads to pick out Threads in order that thsy could be made iato
roush rope. e had to sit eross-le zed in an atap roofed shed

-

with no walls and a leakins roof froa mornin. %o anighi. 7e had o
work in absolute gilence and were forbidden Ho look anywhere ouaer

taan direetly 3o the front., Te ere beiny comiimously wabched Ly
leted av

8 guard vhile we workeds If insufficient work was cop
fiernoon e lost approxiieitel; haall our evenilg

r- IR

the end of the a
meal.

Svorn at Zssenden )
in the 5% a*s f Victoria o /s/ R. G. Tells, ILieutbe
this the lst da;y of Cetober, 1940 : R ol O

5 ] " /

>

Befcie Me,

,—-

John X
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INTRNATIONAL MILITARY TRIBUNAL FOR THE FAR TAST

7 _ AN
No. 1. .“T/ﬂ”" e .b.b . i
C S W ™ ”
UNITEZD STLTES OF LMFERICA and ors. @ B
; \ » /
- against - 5 o~

4RAIT, Sadao and ors.

I, Penrod Vance DELAN, residing at 85 Minora Read, Dalkeith, Testern
Justralia, in the Justralian Military Forces malie cath and say as follows;-

Y I was a Lieutenant in the 2/); Machine Gun Battalion, J.+I.F. and
was taken prisoner on 15 February 1942 at Singapore.

2 I was taken to Selarang Prisoner of War Camp, from which I
escaped on 17 ilarch, with an justralian Corporal. ™We erossed the Staits of
Johore in a small prou and as we approashed a small fishing village, our
immediate destination, were captured by Tamils and lalays, who handed us
_over ta_the Tempei Tai, en 6th ipril 1942, T spent § days with the Zempei
Tai, who tortured me by burning cizarettes on my chest and hands and by
beatinz me on the head with bamboos, to force a confession that I was a spy.

Fa I was transferred to Curran camp, which was the 3ikh Guard camp
for Changi and held there until 17th Lpril when I was sent back to the
Tempei Tai. I was h&d there until 24bh /,pril, during which time I was asked
to sign a statemecnt, which I refused. (jfter four days of beating, burning
with cigarettes and elcetrical shoeks, which on one oceasion knocked me un-
conscious, I was handed a statement in Japaese with ne ™nglish translation,
which I was erdercd to sign under thre&s of further torture. 7T asked for a
translation of the document, which was refused and eventually T signed he
Jepanese document. T was then sent to Outram Road gael on 24th ‘pril.

by on 18th May 1942 I was brought for trial before a Japanese Court,
Martial in Singapore. .ll the proceedings were in Japanese and there was no
translation. I evyentually learned that I had received two yars solitary con-
finement. I was then removed b Outram Road gaol in which gaol I remained
until 18th May 194L.

5. The cells in Oubam Road were 6 ft. by 10 ft., normally one man
per cell., Iater two or three men were put into each cell. 1In the cell were
three beards to serve as a bed, tegether with a hard wooden pillow.. There
7as a latrine bucket, which was normally cleared twice a week. There was one
blanket. During the two years I was in the gaol, approximately 2,400
military and non-Japamese personnel passed throuzh the gaol. 0f those 110
were military, 150 British and Turasian. The remainder were Chinese, Malays,
and Tamils. Of those, approximately 1,000 people died in all. During the
same period 3,000 Japanese passed throuzh the gaol, of whom only one died.
The most the gaol held at any one period of time, of non-Japanese personnel,
was 230.

6. The conditions in Qutram Road were appalling. The ration con-
sisted of three meals per day, in all 6 oz. of rice and 1% pints of watcry
soup. There was no Japanese doctor in the prison camp and the one ®nglish
doctor,a prisoner for a short time in the camp, was given no

facilitiem with which to deal with
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the sick. He was not even allowed to visit them. The gaol was
250 yerds away fronm Alexandra Hospital, the main hospital of
Singapore, but no priscner was ever sent there, except for one
Chinese who tried to commit suicide before trial. He was taken
to the Hospital where his head was sewn up and brought back to the
gaol for trial,

There were no showers, no towels, no toilet
articles of any nature. In order to wash ourselves we were
sometimes given a bucket of water to throw over ourselves., For
the first six weeks I never left ry cell and never had a wash,

When I first arrived in the gaol it was like
bedlum, People were screamning all day from pain from their wounds
and their beatings. The gacl Cormandant used to come and watch
us, nake no corment and leave. The guards both Korean and
Japaneso, had complete control over the prisoners. I saw many
prisoners beaten and I saw many people die. Exanples are as
follow: -

On the 10th of liay, 1943, 4 Chinese arrived in the prison. They
were handcuffed and chained down in their cell. They were in good
physical condition, They were dead in six weeks of mal-nutrition
and beatings. I saw then often beaten by sticks and sword
scabbards.

Davies, an English man, very bigly built, arrived at approximately
the same time as I did in April, 1942, He contracted Beri Beri
and by August his testicles were 2 feet in diameter, His only
method of walking was to carry them in front of him. The

Japanese used to bring their friends in to watch him and never did
anything to help him, nor pernit others to help him, Davies died"
in October in great agony. He had been beaten nany times and he
died ccvered in his own excreta and urine., For five days before
his death he had been unable to leave his cell and we were not
allowed to helpe.

Ce Wo Barter died on the 13th February, 1943, as a result of
beating. bhortly before he died, he was very weak, suffering

from Berl Beri and Dysentery and on the 12th February, the guerd
came into his cell and forced him to his feet to carry his latrine
bucket out to empty it. At this time Barter was merely skin and
bone. He was unable to 1ift the bucket and tried to drag it

along the ground., He was unable to do this however and fell down,
The guard beat him and kicked him for hearly five minutes, The
next morning hec was dead,

&llen, an lLustralian, died on the 10th July, 1943. A4ifter his
death, without the knowledge of the Japanese authorities, his
body was Weiéhed by our own redical people in Changi. The
weight was 56 1bs, approximately what the bones, of themselves,
would weigh. For the fortnight before his death, he was not able
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to leave his ccll, or even to move about. Nevertheless, the guard:
put rice in a corner of the cell, which £llen wes not able to reack
I asked many tines to be allowed to feed him but the various guards
refused, I was ordered to dress him after his death and when I

saw hin he was literally bone covered in scales as a result of

dry Beri Beri. He was covered in filth,

eld, an fLustralian Scrgeant, wes caught in Singepore in May,
1943, He spent three months with the Keupei Tai and was then
brought into the gaol in Auvgust. He was tried in November, 1943,
and sentenced to be executed as a spy., I had some small knowledge
of Japanese and I was taken to Hatficld on the 4th December, 1943,
who asked me to arvaenge for him to make a will and for a Priest.
Both these requests were refused by the gaol Commandant.,
Hatfield was taken away from thc gaol on the 6th of December,
and the Guard who executed him told me later that he had had the
pleasure of cxecuting Hatfield in a field at Bukit Timah.

Mrs. Nixon, the only Eurasion woman I saw at Outram Eoad came in
January, 1944, She had been an internce at Changi. She was
brought in by the Kempei Tei and confined in the same circumstances
as ourselves, without any privacy. She was still there when I
left in Mey, 1944, in solitary confinement,

Fat assino and another Eurzsian Priest were brought intc the
gaol in 1943 and had both been tcrtured previously by the Kempei
Tai, They died of disease in the gacl. Massino was regularly
beaten by the guards when they saw him on his knees praying.

Hugh Fraser, the Colonial Secretary, Melaya, arrived with a party
at the end of 1943, He had been with the Kempei Tai some four
months prior to his arrival. He was beaten by the guards
regularly and. died after I left.

There was an Englishmen, who in May, 1943, developed a form of
scabies as the result of which, the whole of the areaz at the back
of his body from the waist to kneecs, beczme an open sore, which
dripped puss, He was quite unable to sit down or lie down for
three months, and wes given no treatment, no bandages or rags

to wipe the matter coming from the wcund, Fortunately eventually,
it dried by itself.

Two Chinese women were brought into the gaol on the 26th July,
1943, and were held in the sane circumstances and conditions as
the nen. One woman was in an advanced stage of pregnancy.. She
was nmoved only a few days prior to the birth of her child.

A Chinese boy, aged 12, ceame into the gaol with his mother. She
was put into one cell and he in another. He died of Beri Reri in
about nine weeks, I carried his bcdy when he was dead, It was
all puffed out and his hcad was so swollen that the features were
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not obviously reccgniseble as hunen.

A nurber of people went mad under these
conditions, The Japancse nethod of treatment was to put three or
four nore pecple into the cell to look after the lunatic., In
nost cases the mad men died because he refused to eat. On several
occasiocns he injured his companions,

liajor Smith who arrived at the end of November,
1943, hed had his jaw broxen by the Kempel Tei during interrogation
It was exceedingly difficuls *o" bim 10 eav He was refused
treatment in the prison, the Japenese gnCWel being if he had told
the truth he would not have had ‘his jaw broken.,

At the cnd of 1943, the Prison authorities sent
some of the worst sick away from Outren Road to Changi Hospital,
In almost every case the men sent were about to die, and the
Doctors in the Hospitel told me thet these sick men were impossible
to save andﬁﬂ:appeared that the Japanecse were scnding them so that
the official death ratc in Outram Koad would appear to be less than
it was in fact.

I hed a2 big cyst on ny right hip in September,
1943, from which I suffcred for nearly a nonth., DMoreover, ny
side was cnormously swollcn and I zsked tho guard to slice the
top of it off, which he did with his sward and then drained the
puss, This I took as a kindly act. Therc was a dispensary in
the gaol and a Jepanese orderly with a large number of drugs
and instruncnts, who refuscd to treat me, In August, 1942, two
Japanese esceped from their portion of the gaol and as a punishment
for three wecks all the prisoners had to sit to attention, that
is on their heels and crcss legged, from 7 in the morning till
9.30 at night. The dully ration was 3 ounces of rice, a snall
bowl of water and a piece of rock salt.

I had onc¢ peir of shorts during the whole period
April, 1942, to Scptember, 1943, This was the case with many of
us, In Septc”b»r, 1943, we were issued with one Jepenese shirt
and 2 pair of shorts, which had come fron diseased Japanese sick.
These garments were washed once a month znd owing to their refuszl
to allow us to numbir or mark the garments, no prisoner normally
e¢ver received his own garnent back. In vicw of the diseased
nature cf most of the prisoners, under this system it was impossible
for anyone to remein healthy. In a short time .everyone had scabies

It is difficult to deseribe the cells in which
we lived. Therec was blood end puss steins on the wall, where
people had wiped the hands they had used %o dry their wounds., Piles
cf scaly skin lay in the corners. There were bed bugs in the
boards of the bed. We were never shaved and had to cut our nails-
bty sereping them on the concrete floors. A1l the gucords were masks




when they were on duty in our block of cells. They never touched
anything in our cclls with their hands, only ‘with their swords or
with glovese. Our cells were cleaned to my knowledge, only twice
in the two years. On the other hand the block in which the
Japancse priscners were housed was beautifully clean.

Every gusrd was a law unto himself and one
evening a guard would beat us for not being asleep; the next on
duty would beat us for being asleepe.

There were working partics in the gaol which
began in October., 1942, when sorie of us went out cleaning drclns.
By llay, 1943, other prrtiec had been formed.

It wes inpossible to keep notes or a diary
since cells werc searched daily., Outram Road gaol was the Central
Gaol for the Japesnesc Southern Arny, so that when a cell was enpty
we knew either the man had died or had been executed, or was about
tc be executed,

When I first arrived in the gecl I saw in the
open buildings which were around, six fully stocked with cases of
tinned nilk. I estinate there were between 20 and 30 thousand —
coses. We got a2 little for the first nonth; after thet we had
mllk twicc on thc Erpcror's birthday in 1942 and 1943,

wes used by the Japanese for themselves in the geol and as
p;eSLnts to visitors, It was not distributed to other-units.
There was cnough nilk in the gaol to supply every priscner wit
nilk until the end of the war, with a good deal to spare, and
Vitanin B weas of course our greatest nced,

N
\ |7 ;‘,\x‘)
On one occasion a nmember of the Royal fani \vbyx/

walked through the gaol 2t the—end of 1942, He never locked into
the_ cells, he merely walked into the passage. On several occasions
high ranking officers paid visits to the gesol., They must have
seen sonc of the priscners at their work or carrying their latri
buckets to be cmptieds Prior to such visits, the cell steps would
be scrubbed with soap. Scap was never issued to the prlsoncrs for
the purpose of washing thcir bodies.

On the 18th of May, 1944, I left Outram Road
geol and went back to Changi gaol and was put in the tower, I
was asked to sign a non-escape form which I did eventually under
compulsion., I was then rclcased and became an interpreter, going
to Bukit Panjang with 379 officers and men, to dig Japanese
fortifications, The Lustrzlian Carp Cornandant protested to the
Japanese Sergeant in charge cf the Carp, and to high inspecting
officers who visited, as to the nature of the work, but to no avall
In June, 1945, an Australian Private Wilson, was killed in a2 fgll .
of carth owing to insufficient precautions being taken, during the
tunnelling of the hole,

ki
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The work parties began at 8 a.m. and marched four
or five miles each morning. For the mest part, men had no boots.
Some used home-made rubber shoes er clogs, others had bare feet.
officers werc not permitted to leme the camp, nor allowed to go with
the working parties, which normaly returned at 6.30 p.m. Towards -
Junc 1945, thc men began to return from work partics at 10 p.m. in
the cvening, aftcr working 20 to 30 ft. into the side of a hill by
candlelight, and not having catcn sinec midday. They oftcn came
back wet through. No lights were allowed in the camp and the hours
were so irregular that it was often very difficult to provide a hot meal
at night.

Clething was very short in the camp and in about July 1945,

50 pairs incse women's bloomers ere issucd to the great amusement
of the villagers as some of the men walked throush the streets in them.
“lc. had very little medical stores in the camp and although 200 yards
awvzy was a medical stores distribution centre, we were unable to

obtain any neverthelcss. A good deal of beating up by the Guards

took place. Onc order that all men had to salute sentrics, provided

k\_émple excuse for many beatings.

The ration for working men was 10 oz. of rice daily, 3 oz.
of vegetables and occasionally tinned food, which appcared to be
Red Cross supplies, since I saw Red Cross parcels in the stores.
The ration for a sick man was about 30 percent less. This affected
the cam» basic ration, as about 50 percent of the camp were siclk.

SWORY in Tokyo this the )
day of )
November 1946, )

Before me,

(F.E. MOSTYN)
Major, legal Staff.
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INTERNATIONAL MILITARY TRIBUNAL
OF THE FAR EAST.
NO. 1.
UNITED STATES OF ANERICA AND OTHERS
against
ARAKI, Sadao and others.

I, Alexander Gordon WEYNTON of Castlemaine, in the State of
Vlctorla, Commonwealth of Australia, Lieutenant in the Australia
Military Forces make oath and say as follows:-

E On 8th lMarch, 1944, I was shipped from Kuching to
Singapore to serve a sentence of 10 years imprisonment imposed ¢
me by a Japanese Court on 29th February, 1944, Nineteen other
prisoners who had been sentenced to imprisonment by the same
Court accompanied me.,

2. On 11th March, 1944, we were taken to Outram HLoad Gaol.
We wereeach given a shirt and a pair of shorts. Our own clothir
was taken from us. Each of us was given a blanket, three wooder
boards 6 feet long x 3 inches wide and a block of wood 1 foot
long by 4 inches square; this block was slightly hollowed on

one side to serve as a pillow. The pieces of board were for use
as a bed. We were placed two men to a cell which was ten feet
long by 4 feet wide by 12 feet high and made of concrete. There
was an opening about a foot square in the top of the ceiling.
There was just room for two men to lie down side by side. These
cells had been previously used by the British to house one asie
prisoner in each.

3. Three times a day we received a soup made from root
vegetables and refuse from the places of Japanese prisoners in t
gaol boiled in water. We also received eight ounces of rice per
days; once or twice a week we received a fried fish head. We
received a quarter of pint of water three times a day. The Japs
refused to exceed this quantity as it would necessitate emptying
the latrine can more than once a day.

4, For the first three or four days we were not permitted
leave the cells but were compelled to sit throughout the day
cross-legged at attention. We could hear from the other cells
the sounds of people being beaten and their screams.

5. After that we were taken out to work each day from 8 a.
to noon and from 1 p.m., until 5 p.m. Some of the prisoners were
engaged on verious fatigues around the gaol, others in the gaol
gerden and the balance picking hemp. For hemp picking we were
compelled to sit cross-legged on the ground. If the guard
considered that a prisoner had not picked sufficient hemp he wov
reduce his already meagre ration.
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6. A1l of the 80 prisoners at the gaol at the time of our
arrival were suffering from scabies. Prisoners were also suffering
from dysentery, beri beri and malnutrition diseases. The sick were
taken each day into an area which was marked off by four posts stuc
in the ground with a covering over the tor of these sticks. The stKﬂ
were laid out under this cover with a guerd over them., They were
not allowed to talk., If they could sit up they were compelled to

rick hemp, This sick party varied from 10 to 295 in a total
complement of 80 to 85 prisoners. They only received half the
normal food ration. They received no medical attention but were
occasionally visited by a doctor who would decide whether to send
any to hOSDltgl.

T On 18th May, 1944, I was too sick to stand up and was
sent to Changi Internment Camp Hosrital suffering from dysentery,
beri bero, scebies znd pellagra. I remained there until 14th
April, 1945, when I was returned to the gacl.

8. I was put on fatigve work until the first week in July,
1945, when I wes sent to the Fukittimah hifle Eange. The work
nere was very heavy for prisoners in our weakmned condition. It
consisted of pick and shovel work, tunnelling, and its associated
activities. The general nature of the work was erecting defensive
positions for the Jsranese.,

%. Upon my return from hospitsl in April, 1945, I found

t at the food ration had been reduced to 6 ounces of rice per day,
a spoonful of boiled green vegetables, and a small quantity of
boiled blachan, which is made from cecomposed prawns and crabs.
Tha; was all the food we received, until our release in August,
1645,

10. The sick were treated in the same manner as prior to my
evacuation to hospital with the excertion that they were not
visited by a doctor.

/'\

1L Beatings were frequent and sevage throughout the whole
period of my confinement. Fieces of wood, swords and scabbards
were used for the purpose.

A Tritish artilleryman namecd Bradley was beaten on

3 numerous occasions particularly bzﬁJapanese good conduct prisoners

No, 52 and No. 66, who acted as guards, i.e was very badly mal=
trested a week before his death by guard No, 52, He was in a
weakened condition. He had been sick and on half rations for some
time, He was picked up and thrown down on to the ground. His

arms, legs, neck and any part of his body that was projecting
were screwed until he screamed at the top of his voice HIs face

wes rubbed in the dirt. He was badly besten about the body and
kicked in the ribs, fece and groin. He lost a lerge quantity of
skin, I wes in the cell adjoining his when he died. He was
screaming and groaning. Nothing was done to help himj; he was not
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given medical attendance or attention. The gusrds withheld food
and water from him on a number of occasions Iight up tc the time
of his death. Craduzlly his screams and groans tecame weaker and
weaker and then he died a week after being beaten by No. 52,

I saw a Dutch Eurasian receive a similar beaiing to that
which I have described as being administered to Bradley.

Another Dutchmen named Kris wos badly beaten up while
suffering from cCysentery and beri beri,

I wes myself badly beaten and kicked in the ribs and
on the thigh, for talking to the man sitting next to me. I had
broken skin down the left side of my hip for three weeks after
this.

12, In December, 1944, or January, 1945, a B29 which had
been shot down in rgids over Singapore csught fire. Two members
of the crew were severely burnt. They were brought in to Outram
RDad—G&Q}T——fhef;%E%AL4ﬂEf one mass of burns and were black from
head to foot. They were placed in a cell but were not allowed any
medical treatment. e

13. In June, 1945, I saw a party of nine Allied iirmen
taken out from their cells on a Saturday afternoon, They were
accompanied by a heavily armed guard and a Japenese buriasl party.
Some of this party were Japanese gocd conduct prisoners. . Several
days later sgme of them told me that the 9 airmen had had their

heads taken off and that they had nelped to bury them

14, In 211 between liay znd July, 1945, I saw 17 Allied
airmen and 15 Chinese civilians tasken out in similer circumstances
for execution. The burial party returned but the prisoners did no-
The burial perty were in a dirty condition, as though they hed
been digging when they returned. I had some contact with the
airmen as I was engaged in teking latrine cans to and from their
cells. They told me that they had not been tried.

15 I was released when the Japanese surrendered in
Auvgust, 1945.

SWORN AT TOKYO TEIS )

THE 218T D&Y OF )
NOVEMEEL, 1946 ) (Sgd) h..G..Weynton
BEFORE KE

(Sgd).Thomas.F..Mornane
Lieutenant-Coclonel
Avstralian Military Forces
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IN THE M.TTZR OF JoPLNESE ViR CRIMES MDD IN
THE M.TTER OF KR.NJI NO. 2 C.MP, SING.PORE.
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T, Noe 125474 Mejor JaMES VILLI.M DOUGL.S BULL, Reyal .rry Medical Cerps,
specialist radiologist, with perrmnent home address ot st. Oswald!s House,
Stony stratford, in the County of Buckinghan MIE OATH +sND SAY AS FOLLQOUS:

i 2 I was captured in SING/PORE in February 1942. I was at CHLNGI
PO Carp from February 1942 to My 1944. I then went to XRANJI NO, 1 Carp
from ppy 1944 until ,pril 1945. I then moved to IRANII NO, 2 Corp where I
rencined until hostilities endec.

2. I have read the afficdavit of Mojor Bradshow whe was senior British
officer at KRINJI Nce 2 Corp and I agree with hinm about the distinection
between KRLNJI MNce. 1 cnd KR.NJII Nce 2 Corps. fi wos senior nmediccl officer
at KRLNTI Nce 2 Caup. | :

3. I cgree with paragraph 3 of Mpjor Bradshaw!s affidavit which sets
out the work which the innates of KR.NJI Noe. 2 were supposed tc do.

X, ith regard to medical conditions generally at the ecrp I heave
~this repcrt tc moke;-

i peficiency disecses; Beri-beri woas most preminent and was elways

| on the increacsey For exarple in ,pril 1945 only two cases of beri-beri
were unable tc go tc worke. In Moy this nwber had risen to nine and in
June tc 35 and July tc 43. During this tire at least an egual nunber of
people had symptcuis of beri-beri but were just able to continue their work.
By the end cf July nearly 100 nen had beri-beri symptoms. Despite repeated
requests which I made for rice polishings thesec were only prcvided from nid-
Junc to Mid-July, Jven sc only four pounds daily was supplied which was
about one seventh of the crount we wanted. U slight improvement was shown
aniong these favoured few to whom rice pclishings were given.

; / Mnlaric; No anti-neloricl preccuticns were permitted in the
fvicinity of the campjand it was thought that the incidence would be very
high, particularly as the second quarter of the year is the seascn for
nalaria,

Incicence; Table 1 shows the figures., No case suffercd fron
very grcess acnaenia in spite of the great nuwaber of relapses in
many individuals. There was cne case of cercbral sub-tertian
melaria which rccovercd. In view of the lack of anti-mnlarial
neasures it was considered that the incidence was not unduly
hig;h 3
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Table 1.
Slides Total Relapses Prinary
1945 exaidined BT MP TOT ET M IOT BT ML TIOT
Lpril 86 25 9 34 10 ki 8. 5 33
Moy 265 71 31 8 87 b w3y 2k Paed
June 297 85 14 99 74 6 80 g IR i L
July 370 109 16 125 89 7 96 20 9 29
70 22 [ugust 253 8, 11 95 39 7010 e
grand Tetal 1271 78 bigss " 900 2% 32k T4 3T 111

' i Dysentery: The carp was virtually free from dysentery until July
when therc was a suall outbreak of a mild bacillory form., Fortunately there
were nc sericus cases and never nore than nine at cny oné time; thus it
will be seen that the outbreck never reached epidenic propcrtions. However,
ascaris was very commcn ond was the cause of rmuch diarrhoea and a variety
of cbdominal syrptcms. It is estimated thot nearly holf the carp suffered
from this infection,

fbulmonary tuberculcsis; Two cases were dicgnosed in July (strcng-
ly positi%e sputuin)e They were bcth very active cases and both in very
unéer-nourished nen e€x~P;IIMR.NG., Facilities for X-ray cnd artificial
pneuro-theorax were availeble within 300 yards but were repeatedly refused.

Diphtheria; There were four coses of skin diphtheria, all
appearing in July. .11 had large leg ulcers, but ncne cf the cases was
seriously ill,

is no faeilities were available fcor isclation the T,.Bs., Giph-
therics and dysenteries had to be housed underneath huts. The head-roon
larounted to abcut four feet moking mediecl excminction cnd nursing very
difficult, PFurthermcre imch of the dust frcm the floor above incwaby
cane ¢cwn on these unfortuncte patients{/

l i Trcpical skin ulcers; These were very corrcn, and left mony rien
loff work, scrie for scveral weeks. Tortunately none beeiiie very severe cr
develcped complicaticns and amputetion of a linb never had tc be considered.

"g@jurics; Consicering the highly doncserous nature cf the work
being perfcried and the lack of proper precautions, the injury rate was
relatively lowJ (ne mar woas buried by a fall cf earth ond suffceuted to
death befcre he éculd be dug out. 1o other injury incupacitated anycne
for nore thun a nenth,

! / Hospital accormzodaticn; fThis was gressly inadequate in every

irespect. It was impossible te cbtain beds for all the putients amd
im&trosses were supplied only to the mcst serious cases. In the first few
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weeks no matresses at all were available. No sheets werc available at any
tine, There was extrene overcrcwding, Not rcrethan nine inches separated
each bed-space. Only cne bed pan end one urine bottle were provided for
the whole hospital, No bowls or basins were provided at cll,

Operating theatre; part cf a hut was irprovised as a theatre and
electric light was available from an engine in the adjicent cemp, On three
occasions, however the engine was deliberately stopped before the completior
of an operation at night, and candles or burning red paln oil had to be usec
as illunination,

Drugs: Deficiencies were far too nunerous to list, but the
arrival of ReG Cross supplies mnde on enormous difference,

Reticns; These were gquite insufficient and the prisoners of war
suffered seriously from under-nourishnent,

Caup hypicne;

le Iatrines; PRore~holes and deep trench latrines were usedﬂj
The chief difficulty encountered was the tctal ubsence of a supply of
wood for latrine tops in spite of repeated requests. Noils cnd serews
were also not available, .8 & result living quoarters had to be purtially
stripped to obtain wood and nails., This never becare a menace in the camp,

ii, tkter; The supply was adequate but the nunber cf showers
grossly incdequate - one per hundred men, There would have been nc
difficulty about supplying further showers but all reguests werc disregardec

[ 331, Cookihg; Facilities werc grossly incdequate in overy way,
One sr2ll cockhouse hied to feed the whole caiip.

iv. Housing accormodaticn: Gross overerowding existed due ftc the
insufficient accormodation., Thirteen huts were allotted tc house the
other ronks (15 officers in one siinll lut 32 feet by 15 £1. ~ 32 sguarec
feet per head), and the average number per hut was 69. Tc alleviate the
congestion o number of men were alloved to sleep uncer the huts, the
nunmber averaging nine perhut. The huts werc of o uniforn size ieasuring
96 feet long by 15 feet wide cnd having a floor spzce cof 1440 sguare feet.
Fach mon was thus allowed o space of approxizately 20 square feet and when
it is considered that the ncrrnl flcor spuce is 60 fest sore idea of the
extent of the overcrowaing eon be cbtained. It might 2lsc be added that a
ruch greater space is allowed to troops in tropical stations, (Straits
Settlenent 100 squure feet ), /

Sick and working figures:
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l".
percentage of
Tetal Werking party
No Total Working reguired by
Date Hospital Duty Sick porty IDe JOPGRESE LTI
/lpril 1 1945 1 3 I 602 -
15 9 18 27 572 95.3
By 1 11 23 34 558 93.0
15 0 11 5 545 90.8
June 1 31 39 70 534 89.0
15 37 31 68 542 90.3
(strength increased by 300)
Flcky Q 39 55 ol 802 85.8
15 43 5l 97 827 88.5
Mg, 1 56 67 123 802 85.8
15 63 8 147 796 85.1
17 (i 78.8

The cbove table shows the hospital figures, nc duty personnel,
total sick, working perty strengh and percentage cf working party
required by the Imperial Japanese .ruyy out at work. The figures for no
cuty personnel ore extremely high owing to the limited hospitul accorzio-
dation. In places where more normal ccnditions prevail the majority of
. these wculd be hospital potients,

/ In the early part of jugust it was obvious that the health of
the nen was detericrating cnd that they werc beginning to crack under the
strain of hard wcrk and under—nourishnentg' It becane prcgressively nore
Gifficult to maintain working figures. On 17 iugust the penultin te
working day, the working figures had cdropped tc 737, and hu¢ the war con-
tinued there is very little doubt that by September it would have been
impossible to find 700 £it men to go cut to work.

{ The inerease in the number of sick couscd VEry grcss over-
crowding in the hospitcl, and nony patients wio should have been hospita-
i lised were of necessity treated in lines.

The incidence of troumatic leg ulcers contracted at werk was
ever on the increases. ;

Conclusions; Judging by Melaycn PO, working canps there is
nothing remarkable to note except perhaps surprise that the sickness was
not rmuch higher. Then one remeubers that a man had cnly one day's rest
in ten, that he arcse fron his natressless bed three-quarters c¢f an hour
before dawn, hurriedly ate his mecgre breakfast, rushed out to work,
returned ot dusk, ate his evening meal at, or after, dark, had a shower,
then visited the mediecal inspection rcom for the dressing of his scres by
very inadequate artificial light, was then left perhups half cn hour to
himself before wnlights oute it is very remarkable that sc meny men were
able tc continue this without interrupticn for well over 100 days,
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The norale throughcut was excellent and the behavicur of the
patients in such difficult circunstances alsc excellent. There were no
cases of mental disease. There was some tunnel-phoboa, particularly just
after the unfortunate individual was buried alive by a fall, 1

{ practically all requests for irprovenents in ncdical conditions ‘
were refused, |

in cperating theatre (first-class by PO standards) existed in
the adjecent camp but we were not allcwed the use c¢f ite The liver absecess
was operated upon in the next carp after the Imperial Japanese ,riy had
been at last persuaded that the men would die if he were not transferred.
411l other facilities such as they were ot the adjoacent hospital were also
refused.

Only one decth ocecurred in the carp during the period under
review (acute pancreatitis) cnd one case (suffccation in tunnel) was brought
in dead., Jj doctor Lieubtenant N.KI of the Tuperial Jopanese iriy was in
nedical charge of the canp but mever once wisited it or consulted me in
spite of repected requests by me to his juniors particularly with regard
to the exarrdination and disposal of serious cases.

gorment: No change ocecurred in the attitude of the Imperial
Jopanese ,roy until after the copitulation. XJEven then the only necical
.concessicn they made was that operaticn cases would be permitted tc be
transferred to XR.NJI No. 1 Hospital, The general lot of the paetients was
unchangec except that the degree of overcrowding was even greatbter than
before,

e [ Fron: 22 Lugust onwards until the relief by British Forces early
in geptember conditions in the camp slightly improved -~ for exciple two tons
of rice polishings came in in one day. Prior to this only four pounds were
issued daily for the whole carp strength of approximetely 1020 and then
only for about one month,

6. Furthernore jencrmous gquantities of Red Crcss parcels and stores
which had obviously been on SING.PORE ISI.ID for months if nct ycors were
sent in to us. In addition large stocks of butter frou the cold storage

in, Singapore were sent in, This was justralian butter which had been

there since the capitulation in February 1942. Powdered milk came in in
lzrpe guentities. e hed repecfedly asked for this for our sericusiy ill
cases, porticularly those with gastrie ulceration, .11 our requests had
always been refused, This proves that the stocks of Red Cress food cnd
rilk and butter were available on the island, and that our starvation was
not due to the allied blockade, The persons I regord as being primarily
respcnsible for this were the Céxp Coriendant, CSIH YOSHIK. sy Who wa
cormandant of both KRANIT Noe. 1 2nd KRANJI No. 2 camps. It was he who
refused iy requests for very sick people to be transferred to KRINII Noe. 1,
which was the hospital camp. He was an unpleascnt mon and rde no sesret
of his dislike for the pritish and was in every way brutal and callous
itowards use. .nother perscn whon I consider as much responsible us YOSHIKLLA
was Tieut. NLKI, the doctor. He cane toc us early in June and made & speech
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cn his crrival saying he '.'Jould give us every ussistance., In fcet he
gave us none pe scn L1y only saw hinm cnce after that speech. He
never cawme round th ca 11: and rode no effort to get YOSHIE.L to toke

in our very sick people Other personalities include Serjeant-lmjor
MISENU who was the mediccl NGOG, He wos not aetuclly eruel but bone idle
and of no assistconce whalsver, ucrpcw*l N"'_Ls_'Fﬂ“LJ; acted as guarternmaster
and to my ceriain kuowlsdge misappropriated our rctions, He used to sell
them in the bozaor,

SUORN by the snid FUMES LILLILY DOUGL.S BULL )
ot 6 gpring Gurdens in the ity of Yestiin- )
ster this 17ih doy of Jamuery 1945 Y (Sieped) Ju0d). BILL,
Before ne

(signed) Ao.M. BELL-MACDONAID.
Mejor,; Legel staff,
1ilitary Departnent,

office of the judge .idvocate General, Iondon.

I certify thot this is o ke copy of the crigincl offidavit.

(signed) L.l BELL-M.CDCNAID.
Mjor, Legal staff,
office of the Judge ..dvocate General,
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UMNITID STATES OF AMERICA [ND OTHERS

LHRAKT, SaD4A0 AND OTHERS.

I, BURNLTT LESLIE WOODBURN CLiREE of BRISEB.NE in the STATE of QUEINSLAND,
MEDICAL PRACTITIONER, nake oath and say as follows:-

I vas X.22806 1L.JOR B.L.W. CLARKE, 2/13 4.G.7. 7 &UST, DIVISION,
when I became a prisoner of war in the hands of the Japanese Forces,

24 e vere captured on the 13th February, 1942, two days before
SING.PORE fell, oOur hospital was left alone until appoximately 20th
February, 1942, . series of Japanese care out, had a rough look over the
hospital and told us we had to be moved out to SELERANG RBARRACE within five
days.

3. 77e had approxinately 1800 patients on our hands., Two thirds were
battle casualties. Ve asked for time to allow some of these seriously
wounged men a chance to recover, The Japanese refused, They supplied us
with/certain amount of transport. By over-crowding the vehicles with men
and material, everybody received transport to the new area.

4. on arriving at SEIERANG we were given o long barrack building which
we had to clean up. By cleaning up, I mean wreckage had to be shifted

where shells and bombs had exploded. The space allotted to each nan was

6 ft. by 3 ft. with no provision for passcges betweenthe beds whick were
jommed up againgt each other,

S our ration of water was one quart per men per day for all purposes.
This weter was infected and had to be sterilized by boiling befcre we could
drink it., The fuel ration was 2} lbs. of wood per ran per day.

6. It was extremely hot at the time and naturally a grezt deal of con-
taninated water was drunk by the men. Dysentery followed. I am not guite
certain of the figures, but I believe 5,000 out of 12,000 men got dysentery
in the first three months. In addition the hygiene syster: had conpletely
broken down., The Japanese did not gve us any tools to dig latrines, This
Lelped the spread of dysentery, It was approxinately ten weeks before they
would give us any tools or covering for the latrine pits. :

s After being in SIIFRAMG for two weeks we were omered to move to
ROBERTS R.RRACKXS about one and & half wiles away, the Jopcnese idee being to
make one corbined hospital in a separate area, A limited amount of transpor
was given for this second move, so that really only the sick were transporte
lie rest walked. Conditions in RORBERTS R.RR.CI'S were worse than in SELIRANG
4 trenendous amount of demuge had been done by boubing and shelling and we L
to clean this area up in the sane way as we cleaned up SELERLNG, ¥e repuire

e

e
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various buildings, using a little bluffing to get some of the things we
wanted, In the meantime the Japanese had put us all on the I.J.., ration
which consisted mninly of rice, @ur medical men pointed out that this
diet was cefinitely deficient in proteins, fats, vitacins, etc., and thet
within two months deficiency diseuses would follow, and in ipril 1942, a
lorge tuwber of men came in sufferin; from beri beri, Thics was followed
in subsequent months by a great many other deficiency disecses,such as
ambylopic, serotal dernatitis, glossitis, stometitis, pedialgia (happy
feet) and various forms of paralysis. .n appeal was nade to the Japcnese
for rice polishings to countercct some of these deficiency diseases,

ifter sone considerable delay, approximately two months, they gave
us some rice polishings and told us we could buy some more from them, In
Iy ovn private opinion the Jupanese showed no interest in our food at all,
Ti.at was the general attitude of the Japanese.

8. 1y own personal problem was in connection with ny skin ward

{I was A, I,.F, Deriuetologist) and with the lack of dressings and umedical
supplies, an uppeal for dressings was answered by receipt of a truck load
of old clothes, towels, various discarded bits of linen and other

fabriec which we had to sterilize ourselves, with no increase in water or
fuel ration to help us.

9 ibout the end of 1942 approximately 150 men were brou ht in fron
Tuala Lumpur geol. These nen had been cut off during the war, incarcerated
and, in addition to the ordinary deficiency diseases, they were covered
with scabies., Up till thot time we had no scabies. After this we were

not able to elimin.te scabies from the prison area in Changi, mainly
because the Jopanese would not give us any extra medical supplies or
dressings, Requests for such matters as hot baths failed to rousc¢ tle
interest of the Japanese, However, by careful nanugenent on our part, we
could give a certain number, roughly 40, hot baths per dey. IMore vital
drugs of the Benzol group were refused. geabies rapidly became infected
and opened up the way for piphtheria involving the skin, In the early days
we had brought in some anti-diphtheria serum, but the Japanese gave no
replacenent to my knowledce until 1945, and then only very limited amounts,
so that only selected serious cases could get the serum, Certain skin
diseases, such as tinea, reached treuendous proportion and after our own
linited supply which we had brought into the camp had run out, the Japanese
only gave us the barest mininun whiel was totally insufficient to cope with
the outbreak of skin diseusess,

10, Mplaria, Before the war gSingapore and lower Johore were malaria
free, Japsnese nude no atterpt to control the spread of nalaria with the
result that over 80 percent of the prisoners were infected with malaria,
owing to the limited supply, our treatment of malaria was totally inadequate.
large numbers of patients who have returned to ,ustrclia can tell of 30, 40,
or 50 recurrences.

11, with regrd to deficiency diseases, appeals were made +n V-

TN AIN oo~ ©
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response was negligible, but we had been able, by what amounts to
bluffing, to get the Jepanese to pass over to us large quantities of pMar-
mite which we knew was stored in the British Medical Depot in Singapore.
soumetiies the quantity given was adequate, but more often it was totally
inadequate, e were reduced to rationing Mornite anongt the very sick,
It wes impossible to use it as a prophylactic,

12, For the first five months about two ounces of neat per men was
brought into the camp twice a week, This ran out about sugust. 4 Red
Cross ship came in in September 1942 and the Jepanese delivered to us
fairly large supplies which carricd us on for three months, We received
food and some mediciness The food consisted of such things as bully beef,
ovultine .nd marmite, personal observation here is that it was the
intention of the Jupunese to fatten the men up prior to removing larce
parties to other purts. These big parties begen to leave CHANGI in late
Januery 1943 up to Iy 1943. It was subsequently found that the parties
referred to had been sent mainly to Burma, Thailend, Borneo, and Japane
After these porties had gone conditions temporarily improved owing to the
exodus of such a large number of ren, The Japanese said they were going +
substitute fish for meat., The majority of the load of fish that was
brought into camp consisted of little things about 2w to 3r long waich
appeared to be several doysold and in the majority of cases, were totally
inedible., ‘e used them for fertilizer for our gardens,

13, In Decenber 1943, & large portion of F Force returned from the
Burme-~Thailand Reilway., These men were in a shocking condition suffering
from gross attacks of beri beri in its various types, malaria, tropical
ulcers and gross debility. The loss of weight was siuply appaling The
averace loss of weight would appear to be in the neighbourhood of 70 to
80 lbs. per individual,

. Approximetely 80 percent of these men had to be adnitted
immediately to hospital, and we were confronted with three serious
problems -~ (1) The lack of beds of any sort for the men; (2) the
replaceiient of clotlhing, and (3) the enormous drain on our minimun
medical und food supply. To ny knowledge the Japanese made no atterpt

to replice any hospital equipment such as beds, bedding and other import-
ant equipment until after the 16th sugust 1945, Many of the men who
returned from Thailand F Force had to lie on bare boards or on the con-
crete floors, e appecled for clothing but the appeal fell on deaf ears,

15. rarly in 1944 more parties were returned from other parts in th
sane state.

16, in ipril or lamy 1944, after nany appeals to the Japenese, they
decided to set up another hospital at Rrangi, The remainder of our beds
and beddin; was sent out to xrangi vhere it was the intention to estab-
lish a 600 bed hospital escentially for the trectment of chronic cases
such as T,B,, gastric ulcers, ete, This hospital come under combined
British and jpustralian control while we were left in Chanai with nraec-

+°*-~"
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ordered the whole of the arca to be vacated and a hospital set up in the
outskirts of changi gaol.e Here the men were housed in 100 metre huts and
approximately 220 men had to be accomacdated in these huts. The huts were
built of barboos, cocoanut pali: and other jungle meterial, Many of them
were not even waterproof. The men lay on platforms, the space for each
bed was 6 ft., by 3 ft. for all purposes. Further appeal for soue sort of
bedding, blonkets etc,, was refused.

17. Medical supplies and dressirgs were alnost exhausted. . The
Jopanese rziused to replenish thenm, Muny of us endeavoured to divise
neans of overcouming these difficulties regarding drugs, €.g. iron as a
tonic for craemics was made in our camp by our Inginecrs, The lack of
supply of vitamiin was to a certain extent overcome by extracting the juice
frem grass and certain local flora. The Jopanese did not make any attempt
to interfere with our own efforts,

18, AMter removing to Changi gaol area in June 194} the food position
becane acute., The Jopanese greatly reduced the ration so that early in
1945 the men were showing very definite signs of emaciation which gradually
got worse and worse until the surrcnder.

19 Coinciding with this gross emaciation there was a tremcndous
increase in tlie sickness rate. The men were in such a debilitated state
they easily contracted any other diseases, such as boils, many of which
become infected with diphtheria; 1lung condition such as T,B, and
pneumonia; while as a result of the shocking diet the men developed
various forms of dysentery and many forus of diarrhoea which resulted
in many cdeeths,

20, The difficulties all the time were being increased by the
arrival of large partiss of putch, British, and iustralian, prisoners of
war from Jeva, Sumatra, and other parts of the N.E.I. All of these were
in an appalling condition and no help was given by our hosts regarding
foody medical supplies, or the elementary requirements of an ordinary
carp.

2h, The lack of clothing was having a very disastrous effect on the
men end in about rFebruary 1945 & disease which we regard as pellagra
established a firm hold on the prisoners of war. I am definitely of the
opinion that had the Japanese supplied us with reasonable clcthing and
reasonable food this outbreak would have been averted,

22, Right through the whole psriod that we were interned it was
irpossible to eradicate scabies, tinea in its meny forms, dysentery,
malaria and the general deficiency diseases such as beri beri, palagra

7 etc, (ﬂ&rown private opinion was that the Japanese desired to exterminate

us by these meansed Thelr attiitude was one of total indifiecrence and tae
results were only to be expected,

23, on approximately the 16th of iugust 1945 the Japanese brousht

iﬂtr) onYr eamn enATMaA e -t
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}blanket, one pair of shorts, shirt, boots, socks., The food supply was

{ extrenely extravagent, the rice issue jurped from 12 to 30 ounces per day,
! tons of butter, cheese, milk and meat were brought in such huge quantities
we could not possibly handle them, I saw the nark wjQ0RCO" on sonme of the
butter, This food was in quite good condition and although the date on

one parcel of New Zealand butter was 1933, it was still good, In addition
enormous quantities of medical supplies were brought in, including vitamins
atebrin, and other drugs, which we had been desperately wanting over the
last three years. 1e believe this material had been available all the time

2. .S regards the Red Cross, nmy observations were that a Red Cross
ship care in in geptember 1942 and for three ronths good supplies were
handed to uss In Morch 1944 a small shipment of Red Cross food was brought
in which lasted about three weeks, The next was in mrch 1945. One Red
Cross parcel, approximately 7 lbs., was distributed between 286 men on
Wednesdays cnd sundays. That lasted ten weeks, This food really only
acted as flavour, On many occasions we saw Japanese smoking Camel and
Player cigarettes, The packets were quite fresh, They were sinilar to
the ones the Red Cross issued to us after the Jopanese surrender. On
several occasions I saw Argentine Bully Beef tins discarded by the
Jepanese, /jrgentine Bully Beef was supplied to us after the Japancse
surrender, '

‘!
|
|

—

i The only marking on the hospital was a Gensva flag in the niddle
I of the camp, Lights out was at 10 p.m. and we were not allowed to use
{ lights in the wards after this time, Japanese guards used to coie to the
hospital for treatument.

26, The Japanese D.D.l}7.S. of Changi was Capt. Suzuki., I personally
intervicwed him on more than one occasion, I rmde nany requests of him;
none were acceded to, I cannot recollect him granting any request,

27 In approxinately gseptember 19/); the Japanese issued three scales
of diet; heary duty, light duty, and no duty. This meant that the sick
nen ot only Lhalf the ration of a man on heavy duty. The heavy duty

ration was in our opinion, totally inadequate even for a man in a sedentary
occupation, This continued until the day of surrender.

28. The Japcnese also refused to pay anybody who was not on duty. In
other words - no pay, no food for the sick men.,
Fiel
SV/ORN BEFORE ME AT BRISBANE OI7 TH®
13TH DAY OF SEPTTIEER, 1946, ) (sizned’  B,L,V, CLARKE.

(signed) A H, DEXIN, J.F.
JUSTICE OF THE IE.CZE.
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rvidence taken at SYDNEY before Mre Justice MNSFIEDD
on Thursday 22 November 1945,
S
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,irigadier Frederick gallagher GAILIEGHAN being duly sworn ;ives the
¢ following evicence;-

T an NX70416 prigadier Frederick Gallagher GALLEGLN of 27 bde,
1y private address is 68 .venue Road, losren, N,S.W.; telephone number
X1B36 puring the fichting preceding the fall of singapore I was a
Cs orronding 2/30 mn. 71 was taken priscner at Singapore o % T
( Febe uring; the fighting pFior to the surrender I did not see any

“—Fapemese war crimes or atrocities,

P e gl

I was a prisoner at Changi. On the departure of !mj. Gen.
GALLAGILY I becane Cormencder of the 4,I,F. Changi and T renained as such
until the Japanese capitulation in 1945 Col, Holmes was in charge of
Mlayan Cormand, [Iis actual posting was Commander pBritish justral ian
Troops Malaya. I was Deputy Cormander to him and for the last 18 nonths
i I was ,./Cord beceuse of his incapacity.

I wvas in charge of a working party in singapore and nothing
untoward happened until I was involved in the gelarang Incident.('bn 31
sugust 42 pressure was broucht to bear by the Japanese on us to s¥zn a
non-escape form. The Japanese issued an order dated 31 Auge and
nunbered 7 which required all prisoners of war to sign oh-esca
(_ceclarationy oOn that day they paraded Col, Holmes and the 5 Divisicnal
germanders who were there, showed the form to Holmes and said they re-
quired us all to sign it that day. i7e had no knowledge of what they
were going to aske Holmes refused on his own behalf to issue the order,
It was then passed to eash of the Cormanders in turn and we each
refused to issue an order to sign ite Some discussion tock place. It
was pretty obvious we were going to have to sign it. 7€ tried to
reach a compromise, Their main point was that they were going to shoot
anyone who atterpted to escape. e said we would promise not to atterpt
to escape understanding that the penalty was death, and asked then to
put that on their printed form, which would be against the Convention,
They refused to do that,.

After a lot of talk, lasting 2 hours, they refused to make any
arendrient, They said the form was drawn up in Tokio and only Tokio
could amend it. It was phrased, 11;E§féby promigsen or, " promise upon
ry honour not to atterpt to escapem. I took the objection that no soldiex
has power to promise not to escape, There was no opportunity of escape;
it was a matter of prineiple, It is a soldierts duty to escape, and the
Japenese, having signed the Cconvention, had no rizht to ask us to sign
that,
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48 we had refused they asked us to give an order to the troops
to do it, 17e refused and they said the whole of the troops mmst have
an opportunity of signing if they wished, That was on 31 Lug.

The main Japanese present at the conference were Lt. OKASLII,
vho vas a gtaff @7ficer, Col, OK/NE and Cole ILKTIMRT. Tué one civing
the order was Col, IMAKIMURI. Up to then there had been several Jap
gtaff officers coming down to see us.

ve cach put it to the troops and they all refused, excepting
cue or two Jritish who offered to sign it., 1o Australians offered to
sign it, ST :

o i

on the nighkt 1-2 septs we were warned that by 1800 hours the

next day the whole of the prisoners of war would concentrate

parrack squurs, e had to issue orders through the night about it,.
‘It was a big nove,

4t 1100 hours on 2 gept. the Japanese people called for 4 OR's,

y
;éwo of whom were justralians, Cpl., FREVINGTON and Dbte., GALE. The
/instructions were to hand these 4 men over to the driver of a truck,

1 The 4 men concerncd had rade an atterpt to escape and Lad been appre-

'

—

kended by the Jaopausse, I _just forget how far previngten and Gale had
&ot, but they had (ot a congiderable Cistance and they had been back ifl
Japanese hanas since about June 42, They were taken to a carp controlle

by the mmdian Raticoal [riy, quitc adjacent to the TOW Carpe T Kiew —

that these two soldiers had attenpted to escape, but they had been back

Indian camp for interrcgation..

‘ W@ icularly as thiey were in hospital, one never
expected anytiing but the routine thing, which was tc take them to the

The novement to the Rarrack square was by then cormenced, 4t
ncon Col, Ilolnes received an order for himself and his Airea Commpnders
to rendezvous, Jie had given o subsidiary order to meet him at another:
spot so we could all go together, Nobody knew what it was about, and
we thought the Japs were probubly altering their place of incarceration
fron the rarrack square, whieh had buildings, to the beach where wc
would bc without any shadc at all, Thinking that is what it was all
about I tock with mc ry personal assistant, Capte N.G. MeCauley, and we
arrivcd at polrest rondezvous to find they had moved on to the beael,
about anothcr threc-quertor miles, before we arriveds I ot to the

7lbeach, reporved to Tolmes and was informed we were there by Japanese

order to witncss the execution of the 4 soldiers, including Crevington
LaI’.d C’a}.‘?‘

Okasaki pickeé us up on the voad in his cor, about } mile fron
the beachs Ije was most polite and rost friendly and didn:t cive ne
any indication as to what I was going to,
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e ot on to the beach beforc the fellows to be executed had
«arrived, FHolies told us that was what we were there for. .n intcr-
preter naned IFORRCHT was there, I had a talk with him and asked could
anythin; be done to stop these executions, He rcplied he was there
* purely under orders as interpreter, but he could assure ne nothing
coculd be done neral FUYUKE had given the orders for execution

later 3 of the soldiers arrived by truck from this Indian camp

The fourth man, who had been $00 ill to go into the Indian camp, had
been picked up at our own POV Hospital and he arrived, Three of the I,
including Brevington and gale, were in pyjamas. BDBrevington could not
stand without the assistance of a stick. i

ifter the | scldiers arrived, a truck load of what we ealled
the Indian National /riy troops arrived, 10 or & dozen of them, with
picks and shovels. In the neantirme. the 4 soldiers had been taken
near the water's edge and were standing there in the sun without hats,
The Indian troops with their picks cnd shovels were moking as much nois
with thex as they could, thinking they were there for a pienic,

Later 4 rnore Indian soldiers arrived with an Indian officer
named I¥e RAL. Pana had been a Viceroy commissioned officer in the
Indian ATy e e

gkasaki went to a lot of trouble placing the L men to be
cxecuted in what he considered the correct position, moving them from
one spot to another, and then the spectators were roved arounde I
gained the iupression this wae to rwke the job harder for those watchir
Finally the correct spot was selected, They were placed with their bac
to the sea, fThe 4 Tndians who were the firing party dropped to the
kneeling position, okasaki went to the ) soldiers and asked them aid
they want to be blindfolded and they refused that, They allowed the
wssistant chaplain general, Rev, Lewis pryap,und Dadre jatson, one
Roman catholic and one /nglican, both >ritish padres, to talk to the 4.
They allowed then about 2 minutes each, There were no [Cts there and
iatson came back., lewis DJryan said & prayer with the 4 and then he
rejoined the spectators,

¥ The order was then given to the Indian firin: party to load.
Just at that time, Lt. pama went to ithe 4 Ten, pe apparently knew Gale
before, because he shook hands with Gale., Subseguently he shook hands

with prevington and then with the other 2, but it seered obvious to ne

he went to shake hands with aale.__l&LJgggLjggugL4;;@@;9@_1h§_mn._2_iﬁ§i;w
of %he firing party who was opposite gale to relinquish his position,

tock his rifle and kneeleéd dovm, C(kasaki cave the order to fire by
Tandkerchief, The whole 44 were knocked on their backs with the first
shot, In 1y opinion, none were killed, e later thouzht that possibly
the man on the right who was shot through the chest risht have been.
The nen ‘fell in all sorts of aittitudes, and as scon as they fell, the
firing party continued to fire at thenm on the ground. They fired
possibly 5 or 6 shots when Irevincton sat up, He said, "For God's sake,




Evidentiary Document # 5058.
L.

shoot ne throuch the head and kill nme., You have only hit me in the arn,
ile was hit 1in nore than the arm because fhiey hit the whole 4 of then
between the legs and in the stomachss They fired about 10 shots and
Okasaki gave the order to stop firing. ERach member of the firing party
was then moved up opposite the man he had killed, or was suppcsed to have
killed, and they were all ordered to fire 5 nore rcundéds into the body.

Ccol. Okane cane with Ckasaki and the interpreter and addressed

tle spectators. The general bist of what he said is, ®These nen have

een put to de ed the orders of the Irperial
Ja#ﬂnggL_ngyﬁ The Japanese ;rriy do not like to put to death DPov but
unless you obey our orders you mmst be put tc death, _i/e cannot understand
why you will not order your scldiers tc sign this non-eseape declarations
Jou pust understand that this is a Japanese orderv, vwe had asked, if they
wanted us tc sign this order, to give us a Tirm ordere If they ordered us
to sign, it relieved us of any question of obeying it on our honour, The
question was irmediately raised, were they ordering; us to signe. e said,
mjo, but you rmust all signe, Interpreter rroriachu spoke very gcod mnglish
I did guite a lot of dealing with him, 7T said, wfook, it is no goocd. U6
are not (oing to sign that unless you orcer us to do so, _You have been
educated in gnpland, You know if we are ordered to sizn it, we are not
bound to obey it.® pHe said, T think it would be better for you all if
you signe <You have seen men put to deathen

1'e were ordered into the trucks and went back to supervise the
movenent into the parracks gsquare,

revington and Gale were not tried, I would say that none of
the 4 were tried, Later we had men cau ki for atterpting to escape and
they did go through some form of court mortial, but there had not been any
court martial or anything of that nature at this stage.

The rmovement of the whole of the troops into the parrack square
wvas completed on the night of 2 septe gSelarang parrack Square hes the
nermal barrack ccecrmedation for a Zritish troops reguler unit, It has
its store, nesses, kitchens, ané accomodation for approxinately 450 nen,
T.ere were over 16000 put there. e

m 3 Septs the Commanders were sent for for a further discussion
with the Japanese at their cwn 1Q's. /gain they asked why would we not
obey their orders, The question was asked, +Is this an ordere 1/ill you
sive it to us in writingee They said, %No, but it is an order.® e said,
ryes, but we have our duty to perforn, and unlese you cen give us this in
writing - and if you do that, we do rot consider it binding, anyhow - we
do not propose to obey any of your instructions in this regord,v They
then allowed us to leave. From then, in the next 2 or 3 deys, we were in
frequent conference with COla gkene, who was always accompanied by Okasaki
who was staff officer to the General, (kane tried to point out to us the
futility of what we were doins,, Ie said he hag beerin TEny carmpaigns
and had had a staff appointment in the last war when we had been allies,
and he felt we were doing no ;ood and would we please signe He rot a
further refusal, but we again discussed with thom the gquestion of emending
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the form, but they refused to consider any corpromise or alteration to
the forn,

et

.part fron the conferences with the Japs, the Cormeanders were
in practically continual conference during the whole period. The healt!
of the troops in the Square was becoming an important factor. There was
an alarning increase in the number of dysentery and diphtheria cases
and to have remained in the circumstances mumeh longer would have ueant
tlie loss of most of the people who were there, .bout ridnisht we had
a conference and decided, to safe life, it would be better if we agreed
to issue the order, 1 retired for the night on that decision,

Farly the next morning, oOkane came again to see us, It was
apparcnt during this conference that the Japanese were very worried and
instead of adhering to our decision of overnight. we continued to ask
then to amend this form or give a firm order, Ile went away to see Gene
Fuyuke and later, on returning, said that they would issue an crder.
They asked for the return of their order, 1o, 7, which was dated 31 Luge
It came back later with another order, which didnit say that we were to
sign of our own volition but ordered every row to sign this form. That
was also dated 31 iug, and was nunbered 7. It was pretty clear it
was a trick, but at that stage, we sar no point in raising that,.

Col, [Tolmes imediately made a declaration to the effeet that
the order No. 7 dated 31 Luge had been withdrawn and substituted by
this further order, 1/ also had a copy of the original No., 7 order made
and had that attested to,

puring the period we were in the DPerrack Square no rations |
wuatever were allowed to be supplied to the po7 and Fuyuke had _iven an
order that no rations were to o to the hospital., ,t first, it was
decided to put all the patients in the hospital into the Sguare. e
made representations about that and he subsequently allowed the hospital
to remaih, but he issued an order that 1o food was to o to the hospital
or the PO incarcerated in the sguare, The hospital ot food because of
the deliberate misunderstanding of the Japanese order by Capte. James,
of the pritish Arry, who was interpreter at Japanese 1's. Ie was told
in Japanese to send the hospital truck back to gSingapore and he misunder
stood that and sent then to the hospital, mis reward for that from the
Japs was that they thought about executing hin, but nothing happened.,

48 the order had been issued with the Japanese signature on
it orderin; us to sizn the form, we proceeded to order the various forma-
tions, is the justralian cormander, I could not, in the circumstances,
accept Col. Ifolmes! order to do so, and I issued 1y own order that all
ijustralian troops would sign the form. pefore doing that T addressed
them, explained the whole of the negotiations, and expressed the
opinion that the mere fact of making the Jap change his mind over the
issue of the order, was, to me, a roral victory,
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§ They then allowed us to resyne our normel quarters, but the

i following Qay took away gquite a considerable amount of the accommodatic
Tven so, we could not complain about the accommocation as it was quite
adequate,

Gen. Fuyuke himself did not come into the ne otiations person-
ally. 1In the Japanese ,rumy, no rnatter what the business might be, you
never, at any tinme, see a Japanese General, Order }o. 7 was signed by
Okascki, Japanese gtaff officer for Fuyuke.

I don't know of any other specific atrocity in the way of
executions cr mass punishments of that kind in which I was perscnally
concerned, but, prior to ny takingz command, the Japanese informed us
that a number of justralians had been executed for attempting to escape
_That was about lmreh or [pril 42, I know 1 or 2 of the men shot came
from 18 rn. They informed ,ustralian 1 thet these men had been
executed and gave their nanes,

e were able to save the diphtheria cases caused by the
Selarang square Incident, It is difficult to say in the dysentery
cases as they would _c into hospital, and whether any deaths were
caused in thot regard by the gelerang Incident, it is hard to say., No
one actually died on the square. 77 were not allowed to evacuate anyon
to hospital fron the sguare, Ve were forced to keep all the contagious
cases there. s far as the ., ,I,F. Wes concerned, we did take in a
medical teuri, te had a hospital of sorts there to trecat them, The
Senior MO was Col. Je Glyn thite.

| me——a

i ——

The food issued by the Japanese in Changi carp was never
sufficient, It cormenced to decrease from the middle of 42, and it
becaie practically a starvation diet, i/ithout the use of money
obtained by cormandeering officers! pay and a small amount from the
troops, and growing cur own vegetables, it would have been impossible
! for anybody to have lived on the food, In my case, I was 15 stone,
and in the years, 1942.-3-L, I was 9 stone 2 lbs. I know of & case of
a man of 16 stone dropping to 4 stone., That was practiecally general,
Tverybody would be at least one third under weight.

Diseases occurred which were attributed by the jedical officer
to malmutrition. Imny got beri beri. Also it was necessary to eat
potato tops and a green weed called wbyenmr, fIyen is a very fibrous
weeds It is comparatively pleasant with rice. On account of the
fibre in it it caused considerable damaie to the intestines, It
caused a lot of stommel trouble, I attribute a lot of the duodenal
ulcer cases that we dealt with to the diet., 7ve gt a number of cases of
pellagra, which is malnutrition in an extreme form. In the end we had
approximately 300 justralians in a special melnutrition ward, They
were the ren who had lost weight badly.) The 10 in charge of that ward
was Mpjor pruce runt of Perth. wWe wérc trying very hard to augment the
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fTood, but even with the augmentation we did arrange, Major munt told
me I could anticipate a very (reat number of thenm dying in the next 4
wecks, That is just irmediately prior to the Japanese capitulation,

o ey

1
§
!
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The food, plus the living conditions, brought on a considerabl
amount of skin trouble; dermatitis, scabies, things like that. The
Japenese provided us with very sumll quantities of drugs. 1In the year:
1942-3 we ot 2 lots, one in each year, but it was totally inadequate.
They told us they could not obtain quinine or atebrin thenselves and
that they could not obtain certain other rediecal supplies. then the
capitulation of the Japamese caie, we discovered in Singapore a factory
making the very thing we had been crying out for for years,

I think they could have supplied us with more rice, e had
sufficient rice in stock to see us through to January next yeur when
they capituluted, on their scale of issue, I think they could have
issued us with more fisk, That is plentiful about the pluce,

Up to about jrreh this year their own troops were for better
supplied than we were, but frowm treh this yeur cnwards, they were on
exactly the sume rations as we were, but the Japanese soldier had an
opportunity of buying, which was not available to us except throuch a
Japanege conteen, He could ;o into Singapore and have & neal of fowl,

he had the noney,

Lack of protecin was our main trouble, (e started our own
ardens, which were subsequently extended, with their permission, to
120 or 130 acres, 7 laid it out and it becare a very good show,
Tarly 1943 or late 1942, one of the visiting Japanese Generals saw it
and thoucht it would be good for propagcnda and they tock it over,
From then on they controlled the garden, although we were still the
technical advisers. Auonist other things we had planted were several
thousand puw paw trees, Just as the paw paws were conin; ready for use
the Jopanese ccnfiscated them all, e explained we were only growing
raw paws for hospital patients. They said it was General Sitot's order
tlat they be supplied to the Jayanese.} The lad in charge of the garden
Wwas a Korean whose nane I forcet. 1Ile spoke very good Inglish, e told
hin the nunber of really sericusly ill patients we had in hospital and
he arranged to give us paw paws for those patients, The rest they took
and distributed amon;st the Japanese officers,

B

until we moved to the Changi gecl area the accormodation they
supplied us was generally reasoneble, but at times it was nost
unreascnable, jt one pericd we had over 10,000 who rermined in the
Changi area and we were nost overcrcwded, ..t one stage in ry own unit
we had a Darrack block which nornally accormodated the usucl Coye
Comender!s office and Q)1 store and 150 troops and we had 998 in that
blocks, 7ith the movenent of forces from early ,;pril 1943 the accormcda:
tion was there in space, but that was all, In a house occupied by a
Dritish officer and his family we would have to put 150, very closely
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packed together. Tach mon would only pet 18 inches of space, but he
would have space to lie down. Jowever, the ordinary kitchen in the
house would be useless, Our main trouble was the cookinge, Thuyagave

us nothingin the way of kitchen gar, We hac to secrounge all that
ourselves, The Japs issued us witlh no nessing gear or anything to
assist us in cooking. Iowever, we had officers in the area who were
permenently stationed there before the wer and they could tell us where
certain things were, and we either ot Japanese permission to get then
or just took then, hen we asked for messing or kitchen utensils fronm
the Japs, it was useless unless we could say we knew where they were in
gingapore. The IO7 organisations would let us ¢o and get the stuff but
we were never issued with any,

All DO were concentrated in Changi Gacl and an area outside
the Gaol, The number in the Gacl was 5800 and it weut down to 3000,
The Ggaol was built to hold 600 personnel, 550 Asiatics and 50 Buropeans.
That move took place in Imy 194, e had built an aerodrorie for the
Japs at Changi. The iir /rny said they wanted the whole of a certain
area without any TOW and the Tow had to get out, Imd there been severe
attacks on the aerodrone we might have lost troops, but I an of the
opinion that the move was only just another instance of tbloodinesse,

on the credit side of that iove, they rwoved the civilian
internees out of the gaol and we were quite haypy over the rove on
account of that. There were sone 3 to 4000 civilian internees, amongst
wierl were over 1000 woren. These woren were incarcerated in one portion
of the gaol and for sone nonths they were never allowed cut of the Gaol.
Then they were allowed out of the gaol for a swirn, The conditions they
lived in were frightful., 'c were quite happy about that iove because it
meant they were roving into better quarters in gingapore.

For 2 years the Japanese gave us no boots cr anything to repair
the boots we had. Then they decided they would repair boots for us.
we asked that they not attempt to repair them but that they ive us the
leather, They did that for a period, althouch never in sufficient
quantities., later they decided they would get the boots repaired for us
To do that they had some natives working for them in Singapore. There
vas some propaganda in the fact that these people were repairing PO7
boots. For a period they compelled us to hand the bocots to them for
repair, !¢ never received back one tenth of the boots sent in for
repair, so we decided not to send them in but to repair them ourselves
with rudber from tyres or a locally made rubber, % repaired the boots
with those, They issued a few Japanese rubber boots but there would not
be one man in 20 get a pair, In the hears half of 1943 and the whole of
194k, 9 out of 10 of the men going to work would be wearing wooden clogs |
which we made in the camp ourselves. ~hen the capitulation cam they /
issued sufficient boots for 1 pair per man, but not in the right sizes. /
They were all Japsnese boots of small sizes.

e had sufficient clothing given us on 16 sug, to make an issue
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! of at least 1 singlet and 1 pair of Japanese-rmde shorts per msn, but in
i all the years tvefore they tcld vs lhey didnit have aay,

They always prordised to give us hats, but they never did so,
/s soon as the show was over they were able to iscue us with khaki drill
hats from our own stores which they had all the time, but had not issued
to us, Then the war was over the Japs issued booits, shorts, and singlets
and some pritish-sype hats,

The biggest task the men had was the job deseribed by the Japs

a relling, = had not been doing it very long before it took
on the appearance of bzcoming en aerodrone., That job involved two to
fhres Tiiies TETCHINE,; and working for n.ine nours, The men were away

normelly for 10} to 11 hcurs, The Jepanese, uot the Koreans, were the
work supervisers, They were particularly harsh and very brutal. At this
stage General /NTIURA was in charge. Rt

nepresentations were made to him on the score of brutal treat-
ment, long hours, and hard work, brought a little alleviation. That, I
think, was the biggest job, because it was a continuous job teking a
whole year. A% the time the men had no boots and no clothing. e
reached the stage of having to withdraw every pair of boots from any
man at all in hospital or doing any indoor job, thereby permitting men
‘going out to work to have some bocts - some of them, anyway. From
Januvary this year the number of parties all known as X-parties were dis-
tributed all over singapore, and two of the parties at Johore pahru,
capital of Johore, were employed in digging Jap defences; and in several
canps men worked as long as 1li hours a day, I cannot give you any
information as to those camps - I am only quoting from verbal and written
reports furnished to me later, There was another party which went away
early in Merch 1942 to a place called Blakang Ieti. They were under the
command of Major Oakey, of 2/18 Pn., and they remmined therc until the
capitulation, They kad a very bad time for the first year or 18 months,
but again I cannot quote from my own knowledge., I suggest that mjor
- Qakey might be able to assist you there, Tiey did carrying and stacking
of bombs. In that camp, one nan was drowned. |
captain F,E, sStahl, from Brisbane (rrotably in vietoria now )
was in charge of one of the very bad cemps; (aptain Talker of the 26th
Bno was in charge of the worse of the two camps at Johore pehru, Captain
puffey of 2/30 pn. was another of our officcrs et that cemp.

e

S—

I saw Jap military plares using thc aerosdrome when it was built,

There were no visits by anyone at all iatercsted in our welfare,
There were many inspections bty high-renking ofricers bui never anybody
we were allowed to talk to, There was no visit by any representative
of the International Red Cross. 77e made repeated requests but nothing
wvas done, In the early days of 1942 our own Rned Cross representative
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was permitted to go to Singapore to talk to Mr. Schweitzer, the Inter-
national ned Cross delegate, to arrange advences of noney for the purpose
of getting druzs and medicines, but at the end of 1942this permicsion was
withdrawn, Trom the day we weni there requests were made for the Inter-
national fed Cross delegate to visit the camp, I continued until the end
with this request but it was ncver ganted. I have since talked with Mr.
gschweitzer and he tells me tvhat he himself was under surveillance; and
that he had his face slapped on & rumber of occasions.

! mhe Japeanese made demands of certain numbers of men to worke,

: The most you could hope for by representations was a compromise as to
the number, It frequently necessitated sending out fit men to work for
the Japs and putting the less fit men on work within the camp itself,
For instance, the Japs did nct ever regard cooks as either necessary or
i as hard workers, and for a long tine for the first threc years they did
not recognise cooking as work, That we did was this - we combed out the
orderly room and light dusy personnel and put them on to work. Iinally
we reached the stage where everyone working in the camp itself was
actually unfit to work, amnd & proporiion of he men proceeding to work
were t0 a ninor degree unfit for that work., BpBut we would rather gt our
sick men working under ourselves and put the others out to work,
Because of the Japanese order, sick men were working inside the cemp.

The Japs actually made numerical demands for labour which could
not be filled without nmaking sick w.en work in the camp,

In representingthis to the Japs I always said that there were no
nen in the camp fit to work, and pointed out that working on the meagre
rations and under the living conditions provided was an offence against
the convention., I did all of the represntations in these cases., I
alwayc warncd the Japs that when the war wac over we could not forgcet
it all,

e maintained that nobody was fit to work,

Rells of prisoncrs and cagualties werc cupplicd to the Japs
within the initial six wecks, or about tiet timo, They were supplied to
the Jape once through my own command; &and on another ocecasion Captain
Thomas, who had bean their R interpreter, wes being sent to Tokio and
Lhe took a set of separate rolls of prisoners and casualties, I have
spoken to Lim on the telephone since, and he suid .he had delivered them

~in _Tokio, and he wondered if thuy over got baci to justralia, From time
to time the Japs were given advice as to cur casualties, as a routine
ratters

puring the whole period we were permitted to send four posteards
with 25 words on, The last one was elther June er July this year., In
addition, justralian prisoners were allowed to send during 1942.one

broadcast message homee At that time I had 10,000 men under me, and the
'ﬁ—-—s"—_——\

———
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whole 10,000 mescages were dewmanded at one and the same time., The
result was THat GITHoLGH tho Mimmwe :
inTIusf?EIla Toczived wireless messag N who -In
‘one instamce had been dcad nine months before the actual date of the

of those four—+® five writiten messeages which I sent, two reached my people

I perscaally received 51 conmmunications from .ustralia. some
were better, and yet a numbsr did not receive any. The whole Jap system
of receipt and despatch of mails was an irpossible onec, Ve were getting
letters for men who were in ¥crea and c¢lsavhare, and doubtless they
were getting ours, First maiis for prisoners; Rritish and justralian,
came to Singapore, and we reguested and received permission to sort the
mail into proper bundles, These we handed to the Japs for distribution.

we bundled it for mpurma, Thailand, Japan and Burma, e put a
label on front where it was to go - yet we still got some of those
bundles back in 1945, Their system of distribution was quitc hopeless,

—— e s

For the first seven months, the commend of the prisoners of war
on Singazpore Island was under Lieut. (later Captain) (Ki3iKi. .bout
late July or early iugust the first General was appointed - he was
Iejor-General FUKUYE. Vhen Fukuye came the canmp cormander was firstly
Okasaki, There were five in succession, including Qkasaki, Others were
TAZUMI, TAKAL.STIT, and }MJRA, and another one whose nam I forget. The
Mejor-Ggeneral issued orders along the norral militory channels of
commmnication but very frequently the General gtaff officers woulc
proceed to POV [IQ and issue orders also, vhich probably the caip
cormander or commandant would not know until we told hime. Fukuye was
GCC Fus in }mlaya and sumetra. I8 was succeeded by General ARIMUNL,
followed by General SLITO.

I understand that their chein of conmend went to Tolio,and not
through the normal military chain of commend so far as things concerning
prisoners of war were concerned. It was compebent for a combatant General
to demend prisoner of war labout and it wes compevent for the general
commanding pvs to reject that. It was corpeten for the General commending
Pi's to lay down terms of work and hours., I know that, because on one

ccasion we werc representing the cuestion of brutalities on the aero-
drome. The then carp commandant Tekahashi tool the matter up with
General saito and the result was that en order was issued that no
prisoner would work for the Japs next day. Incidentally, that stood
until 1000 hours, and then another order came oub that they had to start
work. another time when a complaint was made they were given a holiday
next day, So *he Genercl cormandingmist have lLad sone control over
prisoners, where he could recist the crders of the combatant General.

There was a $OC Singepore nane PAGARIs s headguarters
was naffles, Es-ffffffdcd Singapore and portion of }mlaya as combatant

roadcast TEssege, Tt took the Japs about 18 moaths to send the messages.
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general, Ij& was under TIRAUKI. Il was responsible for the operational
*side of gingepore, and carried that responsibility over us. (eneral
saitowould deal direct with Tokios. I do not know Saito's immediate

superior in Tokio,

I personally know Tulkuye, iramura and gSaito,

regard e as the most i
coumand of troops. Arimura I do not think had any sins of ccrmission;
it was just That he was an old man obviously brought back from the
reserve and took his job wvery lightly. saito - there are no instances
of brutality by gaito himself, Ile in ny opinion was the best of the
three., then our representations did get to him, actually through his
owmn staff, he would always either act or send back cnd say that he was
not going to do it or eoculd not do it,

Fukuye never saw prisoners in their own gquarters. I do not
remember him ever being on his feet in the camp,

srimurea frequently rode round the cawp in a car; he spoke
Indish very well and on a number of occasions talked to prisoners,

saito was round the camp at lecst three times a week,
.
I regard them in that order as criminals - Fukuyec:s Lrinura;
saito,

The five camp commandants were carrying out orders. 1In no
instance except that of Takehashi did I know of any of the canp
cormenders attempting to punish prisoners of wer. The other four would
always go and rattle their swords and say, w7e'll leave it to yous,

In Takahashi's case, he punished them himsedfy— — =~
e s s R

e have cases where Takahashi handecuffed a couple of .ustrelian
and as far as he was concerned they stayed like that for a week. But
we had a skeleton key to the handcuffs cnd tock thew off at nikt. e
himself would not take then off or pive permission to let them be
talken off. [ T etines saw vhat he considered was an offence and would
clep a men into guol. On wnother occasion he handcuffed a Rritish chap
- to the iron gill of his cell., The handcuffs were on like thet for days,
Jle was the only camp commonder who ever awerded punishments himself -
the others, well, none of then were really difficult to get on with,
They vere dcing their job and they had their orders. on the question

of numbers of men required for work, Tuzwii gave us a very reasonable
hearing, oOnce I discussed the matter of physical fitness; he pulled
out of his drawer a graph showing the situaticn as T hed it; he was

in a position to discuss it, Ie would aclways conpromise, The only

one that I regard as a nasty type was makahashi -~ yet you will find

that rost prisoners will scy he was a good mm, They did not know him.
7Te paid me the compliment of saying once that he would not deal with

—
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e any longer - that I was far too arrogent. Ile introduced & Colonel
" named rvewey, an Inglishman., Against orders llewey accepied the job of
“FEPresentative officar - for which he has been placed under orress and
will be ccurt-marvialled ak Ilope. Taokahashi introduced Newey. The
result was that althoush Newey was bad, the troops did not realise that
pakchashi was behind that move, end that it was not done for the benefit
of the prisoners of war, f the camp cormunders, the only one I regard
as indictable is makehashi,

The average Jap soldier that we saw in the central administratio
P's were not the pecople who committed the offences. They were the Japs
out with the work parties who were brutal, : :0f eourse, you gob
he odd bashing or two within the camp., But they were cases where you
could actually nail the Jap responsible and within a couple of minutes
you could protest; pinning him, Generally specking, the canp commanders
reacted very favourably to this question of hitting prisoners,

gome guards have had a few hits at me but probably I think as
face-savers, I personally at one stage had 40.000 men that saved me
fron hitting, They once beat up ry interpreter for saying just what T
said - he was a chap named Tavey, a British man, That also was face-
saving on their part, It was, they felt, safer to hit him, and not ne,

1then we got orders for I Jorce to move, the matter was the
subject of a conference with the Jap cormandery at that time, I believe,
Tazumi, I asked where these men were going to work, I do not think
he ansvered that day. Mo, he did not., Tle said he could not answer that
guestion, gubsequently - next day - he said they were not going to work,
Then on the question of the type of werk and the numbers required, we
were told that the men were going awey to new camps, to a place where
focd was mmch better, and the men would not have to work. Tazumi told
we thise, Then the number of fit men was not cnough., The matter was
referred to the camp commander, who sauld we could include 30 per cent
of sick. That raised the doubt as to what the men were going to do.
Again Tazumd was asked about it, e said they were not going to work;
that they would have a canteen and that we could send up our doctors
and have our own hospital, e said, Tt will be & camp just like this,
except that you will not be in this type of buildingbut in country where
the climate is better and the food plentiful,n

count Teraucki inspected us twice, Onge some Jap royalty came, -4zztho
but we were not permitted to look, Tojo once was in Singgorc but
never came out to see the prisoners.

As far as we were concerned, these inspections were not
inspections of us or our quarters, Tve called taem 'gilont parades!,
e were lined up on the road and a couple of trucklo.ods of armed Jap
soldiers came along, then a car with six men armed in the back, then
o big motor car with & high personage in it, followgd by meny other
arned cars, obody over walked about the camps,l L Jaly this year,
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Jtagaki came out and was the first and only Jap vho cver did this - he
ent ® see the howmifal; bhe actually stoed ot the corner of the road and
the hospital was pointed out to him, fThe Japs had ordsred an officers!

party. and T went among the 20 to 30 officers in the hope of being able
to say something,

e e e,

put he did not look at usg/although obviously we had been sent
there on somebodyis orders,

I certify that the above evidence is true and correct.

(Signed) F.G. GATLEGIIAM.
Brigadier.

Teken and sworn before e ot

e N 2

Sydney on Thursday 22 November 1945.

(signed) 4i,J. MANSFIFID,
Cormissioner,



—

Tvidentiary pocuicnt Noe 5057B. ] ( , Y ﬁ—

The International lMilitary
Tribuni&l for the For rost.

THE TJVTED STLTES OF AMERIC) LMD OTHERS
“Ir a

ARMET, 3adao and othcrs.

-

—————— 42FEBANICL

=3 Avenue, Toorck, in the

I wus Aeting Cormissioner for the justralian Red Cross Seeiety
in mplaya, j
I went to pnloys in October, 1941, «nd wes attcched to the
ribti: pivision, .,I.¥, By previous wurringeient, we werc extending
sustralion Red Cross benefits to the pritish Forccs.
{——I becume & prisoner of war on th /J.jth Februcary, 191;2\. I spent
tic vhole of ny tine os a priscner of wor -;—i&:tﬁ.ry prisocner
of war cunp, except for three veeks at River yelley Caps I was uedically
unfit until scptecber, 1942, and in that interveing period, Mr. ¥.E.
Roberts corried on as .eting con;issiozfy

5 on the 3lst pecember, 1942, »r. Roberts wus carrested by the
Japcnese and inprisoncd in the gaol at Qutrai: Roud. I took charge of the
Unit next dey., I immedistely rwde ecntuct with the Carp Comenduntts
coffice und intcrvieved ILicutenont Iunaggij I put before hii. the wholc
postion @¢s regords Red Cross, quoting clcuses of the Convention, which I
offered to quote to hinm in full., He stated that he hud a copy of the
Cenvention and made notcs of the clauses that I hud quoted, I irforied
hiu: that we usked him for no extro privileges other then laid dovn in the
Convention. On being asked whether the Japonesc had signed the 1929
Prisoners of or Convention, he would give e no definite answer,

Hovecver, I found fron subsequent experience thut they would quote elauses
out of it vwhen it suited theis I quoted to hiwm from the Hague Rules of 19
and from what is knovn as the Red Cross Convention of 1929. He took notes
of thesc, but never denied thot they opplicd, I elso iade applications in
vriting to the Juopanese, but written applications were quite useless
Pey never on any occasion answered any letter that I wrote to then. I
always had to fellow it up personally «nd they took so little interest
that very often, when I obtained ¢n interview, they would not be oble to
find thc letter that had been written to them on the subject, | I was sent
by Lieutenut Tuncke to sec Cuptuin Haehisuka, who uppesred to be .djutont
to generul /rirurc, Through his officc I wus perritted tc ke contuct
with Mr. He Schweizer, the Internctioncl Red Cross Delegute,with whorn,
Hochisuka informed i, he had becen in touch previously, I had rade
ppplications for roney through Red Cross chonnels cnd Hachisuka eventually




Evidentiary Document No. 5057B.
26

intormed me that I could obtain 40,000 dollars from Ir. Schweizer on &
promissory note, This monsy I eventually obteined in Merch 1943. Ilater
on in 1943, I was able %c ottain another 50,000 dollars, havimg been told
in the weantime tha’' tias fuastio- of money wes not one for the Japanese,
wiio mer=ly acited as interiediarirs, bu* if gchwsizer was willing to lend
and I was willing to borrow, that was all there wes to it. They gave the
impression thet they would pant {aciliisies for & continuation to the obair
ing of loans, but later refused~§§:J The particular Japanese who refused
ii was Ticutenant Shimokcwarra, He hat taken pFachisukal's place about thsa
erd of .pril, 1943. ! An being refused facilities to obtain further loans,
T “nterviewed Fhimoxewarra on mapy occasions, pointing out to him the
urzent necessity for fed Cross financial assistance for the gick and
wounded and prisoners of war generally, particularly in the absence of
any reguler supply of Red Cruss goods from outside, but did not meet with
any success, Zventually, the Japanesc sent for pmjor sShean, who was the
ILiaison officer between the camp and the Japenese camp office. He was
irformed by Tenakea, to use their own words, that they could not observe
me any longer. because I had been taken with the fighting forcgs.} Mujor
ghean asked if they h.d any personal objection to me and their Teply was
there was nothing like that about it. He challenged them with & change of
face and asked whether it was ean instruction from higher up and en whose
instruection this attitude was wdopted. MMTanake said it was the opinion of
Gencral irmura, He then saild if there Vos a swiss or portuguese
\representative in gingapore, it would be different., Major Shean then
repeated our oft-made request for Schweizer to come into thecamp and do
ordinary Red Cross work. They scid they wented this request in writing.
}It was given to them in writing by Colonel Holmes, who was Commender of

e S e e e S et

the troops in Changi, and had taken General Percivalt's place. Later they
! sent for Colonel Holmes and told him that they could nct acknowled.e
| sSchweizer because he had lived in gSingpore prior to the capitulation and
fndght be biassed towards prisoncrs of war. There werc no representatives
lof any other gociety, but the australicn in the camp, and as Acting
Comissioner I had to meke Red Cross representations on behalf of prisoners
of wer of all nationalities, | After the refusel to allow mc to obtain furti
funds, I was never again granted an interview with any Jupunese official,
They issued an instruection that from then on all Red Cross matters were to
be done by correspondence through Cclonel folmes, I wrote several letters
to Sehweizer through this medium, but learnt from him after the Japunese
surrender that he did not get them. Apparently the Jupanese had no
intertion of forwarding them.

[‘;¥om November 1943 onwards our money being exhausted, the pur-
chuse of supplementary rations for hospitel patients came to an end, and
when our small stock of foodstuffs and comforts became exhausted in 1944,
the work of the sustralian Red Cross Unit practically ceeased. !

At no time was Red Cross allowed to function in the camp,except
in a very limited manner, and no offer of facilities cver came from the
Japaenese side, Anything that we were allowed to do was only uafter
represcntutions had been madc to tlem for permission, and as previously
stated, our aetivities practically cume to an cnd in Wersh 10h).
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i [;s far as Iicutenent ghimokawarra was concerncd, I had close

f dcalings with him, includin, thc arrangement of a loan of 50,000 dollars
{ tirov : the Intcrnational Red Cross Delegute, on account of the Austra-
licn Red Cross gociety. However, he would give me no fucilities to go ik
singapore and sec the International pelegate, stating that this was oguir
tie Japanesc rules. He brought the money out to the Chungi Camp end I
signed tihe docurcnis therc. He would give me .no facilities to go out

of the camp at all to make purchases. I took up with him the question of
doing sometling for the prisoncrs of the Xempei in Qutram Road Gaol, aski
permission to send foodstuffs and clotling to them from our stocks in
Chon i, but he would not _rant permission for this. He explaincd that th
gaol wis under Fempel administration and arrengements would have to be
made throuch the Japanese High Command, ¢s the POW administration could
not approwel. the Commandunt of the OQutr.mRoad Gaol direct, I brow,lt thi:
matter up with him on several occasions, but l.e eventuaclly refused to
listen to further requcsts. ¢ admitted that the personnel were in a bad
condition when they ccme out of the gaol, but said Le could not do any-
thing about it, I also suggestcd to him on onc ocecasion, in an endeavour
to zet over the difficulty, thuat lLe could let the internaticnal pelegate
know tlLat there were prisoners of war in tle Qutram Rozd Gaol, and

\ su gested that e eall on the zeol commandant to see whether there was

,anything he could do for them. He would not do this ¢nd appeured to be
tmore frightened of the Kempei than we wcgE;:Isminnkawarra had in his
‘office a copy of the Red Cross Convention in Japunese, On ene occasion,
when discussing Red@ Cross woney with him, Lhe said it was a matter betweern
the Internationul clegutc and myself. I informed him that I knew that
gehweizer could loun me money vnd that I wus quite willing to borrow it
on bel:iclf of the justralian Red Cross Society, as it was very necessary t
help the prisoners of war cenerully os uuch as possible. I had been
extendin: the service in the camp und instead of buying only supplementar
retions for hospital demwunds, I had becn allowing a small amount per head
to purciuse rations for cll prisoners of war in the camp. He took me to
task over this and I quoted the Hague Rules and Red Cross Convention and
gtated thot the Red Cross sSocicty looked after all prisoners of war and
not only the sick oncs. He referred to lLis copy of the Convention und
started to rcad it. after a while, he suid, wic will put thut awaye,and
rleced it on the shelf in his officc. He found out thet it did not
support Iiis contention, mThis attitude was typical, not only of shimo-
kewarra, but of all Japenese with whom I had contact. They would guote
tie Conventions, even the prisoncrs of War Convention whiek they had not
signed, when it suited them, but would put it uside when it did not.

Z:;&. Sciweizer, the International Delegute, was never permitted
to visit the Chuengi Comp until wfter the surrender of the Japanese, when
orders were rcceived from Tokyo that Internctional Delegates must o
allowed to function., I made mony representations for Mr. Schwecizer to be
allowcd to visit the cump, ws clso did the army authoritics,but we could
ncver obtain permission either from the Comp Commendentts office or from
the meadquarters of the pOv7 Adimistration. Mr. Schweizer alse made
representations without sucqggth is far as r. sehweizer was conecerned
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I think he tricd very hurd to.carry out his duties as an International
Delezute, approacking the Japanese in Singapore on his own account quite
frequently on behulf of the priscners of war ond civiliun interneces. He
was alloved to do slightly more for the internees than for the prisoners
of war, but like the australian Red Croses Socicty Unit, weas never allowed
anything approaching adeguate facilities, He appeared to me to be trying
all the time, for examplz, mhen Hochisuka left the POW Administratiogand
took his place, I culled on Shimokewarra three or four days later, to
inform him of what haé bsen gn'inz on in connection with Red Cross,
perticulerly between Mr. s~hwelzer and myself, end was told by him that
there was no need to explein as Mr. Schweizer hed already been in touch
with him and explained everything,

Apurt from the money which we were able to obtain through the
International Red Cross, the following shipments were received from over-
seas. In August, 1942, 230 tons of foodstuffs arrived on a returning
diplomatic exchange ship from portugucse Fast Africa. In September 1942,

] 1650 tons arrived on o second exchange ship, also from Portuguese Fast
-Afriqu) .is was put into two jo-dowvms in Singepore, and the Japanese
agked for a represcntative of the Red Cross in the camp to go down and
supervise the distribution, I went in with the pritish Army representativ
and stayed at the River valley pOW camp for neorly three weeks. However,
the Japanese did not really allow us to supervise the distribution, They
laid down a plan of ullocction and all we could Go was to try and persuade
them to make a few small alterations in this allocation, such as sending
more Marmite to the civilian camp for the use of interned children. We
could net persucde them to make any material alterationin their plan and /
appeared to be only there as a way out for them if there were any complei:
in the future, 7

f

fA further small shipment arrived in February 1944 which included
medical supplies. Ve were never supplied with any lists other than
Jopanese ones of the total quantities in these shipments, so could not chc
then properly._L

with the exception of the September 1942 shipment mentioned above
goods from these shipments were just delivered into the comps on Singapore
Island by the Japanese authorities, but we know that they used some medice
supplies for themselves, as the greuter quantity of these were kept by thc
Jopanese A,D,M,S., vho deult it out to us from time to time.,

The weight of the food parcels which arrived in February 1944, wc
11 pounds yross, and they contuined approximctely 8% pounds of food, This
shipment came from Goc in portuguese REast Africa and the only list which
was held by the camp authorities wus one given to one of our supply office
by a Japanese officer, showing whut was delivered to the other camps and t
tie Jupanese A,D.M,S, I understand that the supplying of this list was gu
an unofficial matter ond there appeared to be no particular reason why it
should be given to us, by this Jopanese officer,

A fsurth shipment of Red Cross supplies arrived in Mprch 1945,
comprising Conadiun, British and American food parcels, a small quantity
of drugs and medical surplies and some clothing. These supplies were
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handed over to the camp autlhorities, but as the Japanese rations were so
scanty at the time, each PO in the camp was not handed out a parcel. The
parcels were broken dovn and portioned out cs an addition to rations, to
make them lust over a longer period. These supplies came on & merey ship
from yladivostok, arranged by Red Cross. They were distributed without
reference to the International Delegate or myself, 4is far as the Inter-
nctional pelegete was concerned, none of the International Red Cross ship-
ments were roferred to him by the Japunese. Working parties were sent to
singcpore from Changi to handle this shipment.  They reported to me that the
vhole of the supplies were not distributed, some being, set aside, they
thought, for Burma «nd Sumatra, end o portion left unalloccted. .s far as
I knew at the time, the Japanese had no means of getting these supplies to
purma or sumatra, BParma at that stage was practjcally cut of tleir control
rand their shipping position was very parlous. | The supplies were just left

{ in store and in spite of representations which were made to them to have
some of the supplies sent out to Changi Carmp, us people were dying for want
of proper food, the Japanese ould not corply with this request., After their
surrender, they sent these supplies to the Changi Cump and other caups on
singapore Islend, and generally tried to ingraticte this by making other
supplies they had in store available and allowing lr. Schweizer his drugs,
so that they could be celivered quicker,

aAmong the supplies, in addition to the Red Cross supplies, the
Japanese rclecsed cheese, condensed milk and other cormodities which had
‘been in siniepore since before its capture, which shows that they could
have done a lot more for us during the period of our captivity.,

The Jopanese also sent out further medical supplies, of which we
had been very short and which they informed us they could nct supply,
They had been in their Red Cross store in Singapore for somemonths.

A" for us my personal treatment was concerned, it was the same as
that meted out to any other officer., I feel thet T rust repeat that if I
cnd other represcntatives of the Red Cross had not made representations for
pernission to do Red Cross ‘‘ork, we would have been left in the camp and
ignored by the Japunese. INo move ever came from their side to facilitate
Red Cross work. Mr. Schweizer commented on this to me during a few
moments we got together on our own on an occasion when Hachisuka took me
into gingapore, slso, that on no occasion hud he seen any representative
of the Japanese Red Cross Society there, wWe both had to dezl 1ith
authorities to whom Red Cross work was a side line and who regarded it
cenerally specking as rather a nuisance., As far as I an aware, there was
no Red Cross representative in Maluya, and no representative of the Japanese
Red Cross Society ever visited the Changi Ccipe On one occasion, I heard
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that o pow pDelegation was coming from Tokyo to inspect the POW Camps.
I made application to the Japanese camp authorities to meet the delegatio:
but the reply was that they were not coming and we did not see anyone,

Sworn ¢t Melbourne in the gtate )

of vietoria this the tenth day ) (signed) w,J. CAMPBELL GUEST.
of october 1946, )

Before ne,

(signed) S.E. EIDER.
A Commissioner of the guprene Court of
Victoria for taking affidavits,
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IN TR MATTER of an Investigation carried
oub at Japanese Military police Headquarters,
in respect of givilian gnternees of the Sine
Road Caip, Sihgapore.

pvidentiary Document No. 5078,

[I, JOHN ILEONARD TILSON:. The Right Reverend Iord Bishop of gingapore,
presently terporarily resident as Dmedm_:z.n the pormiinion cf New Zealand
MAKE OATH LND S.Y as follows;- E.o

e I was apmmea Bishop of gingapore in oy 1941 and arrived in
Singapore in Au use 1};4 th'['" T rer _;e_cl v1ll the surrender on Feb. __ith

'/
112, B

24 I remained in Singepore ou paccle till pprch 1943, when g 'Wwas
interned at Changi prison, thon a ivilian Internnmsnt Carmpe.

3. on October 17th 1943 ¥ wes arrested by the Japanese lilitary
police and taken %o (filitary police Headguarters at the old Y, M.C.A.
Building in Singapore, I remained in this building until MBy 26tn 194)
when I was released and sent to SiMI RO.D Carp where the civilian intern-
rent carp at Changi had been transferred, I remained there until the prit-
ish arrived in gin;apore in pugust 1945 when I left for iustralia,

b During august 1945 1r. R. Collinge, the Cormandant of Sime Road
Internment camp (at which I was then resident) appointed a Commission
(hereinafter referred to as whhe said Cormission®) consisting of

Ms S.N, KING, M,C.S., @ scnior civil servant (Chairmen)
Professor N.S, ALEX.NDER, M.S., TheD.y Irofessor of rhysics at
Raffles golilese, SINGAPORE. .
Wl BENTHE & Bl oS

to investigote the treatment of the internees who were taken to Japanese
IMlitery rolice Headquarters at Singapore in connection with the enguiry
conducted by the Japanese jfilitary Police vhich cormenced on 10th Qctober
1943 and extended until Augsust 1945,

ha I was at Sime Road Cewyp at the time the said Cormission was
appointed and (ave evidence before the said Commiission, The Members of the
said gormission were personally known to mes. I saw Mr. King and Mr. .~
Alexander sign the report preparcd by the said Cormission and also saw the
signatures of all the members of the said Cormission appended to the
report and personally read the signed report

B Attached hereto and marked with the letter mir is a copy of the
report of the said Cormiissione This copy was typed under ryy supervision
from a carbon of the original repcort and I can personally testify that it
is a frue and correzt copy of the original,

6. During ry confinerent at the Japanese lMilitary police Headguarters
I had personal knowledge of the conditions, torture and ill-treatment
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detailed in the said report (with the cxception of the mmticrs detalled
in the last paragraph of such report. ) and tesiify that the said report
is a fair and accurate account of what I saw anc expericnccd at the
Japanese 1Hilitary Headguariers Jron pefober 17th 1943 to 1ny 26%h 1944,

T on arrival abt the Japancss
1943, I was placed in a ccll with approxivmtely 15 others under con-
ultlons set ous in the report. On t sanme nizhit I was baken to

another room for investigation. and "P*4vod beasings on the shounlder

with a rope. On the followiag day (O2tober 18th) 1 was rwde to kneel wit]
a sharp edged pieco of metel behind ny knces, 1Yy hands were tied behing -
1y back and I vas roped under tha knes-hole of & desk in a very painful

i itary Headquartcrs, on October 17t]

pesition, 15:7755—_:3:T36?s Stiped upon ny thichs and twistced the mctaIA
behind ry knecs so—+that 1§ cus sato the fiesh, ¥ remained in this
position for 9 or 10 hours scmesines being interrogated, other times

being left under two Japanese Guards who kiclzed me back into position
vhenever I moved to try and get releass, T was then cerried ba e fo the
cell, iy legs bein: too weak to support me. On the following day

~ (october 19th) I vas again carried upsivairs and tied foce upwards

on to a table and flogied with ropes receiving nore than 200 strokes
fron six of the guards ond the chief investigator working in relays.

I was carried back to II€ cell and remmined seni-conscious for three
days and unable to stand for nore than thrce wecks. fThis incident is
recorded without reference to names in the report of the said Cormission.
After this, long investigations took place with threats of torture and
death, but no fwore torture tock place until February 194) and then only
for half-an-hour, I received medical attention and dressing for wounds
fcr more than two monthse This was given by the Japanese Doctor and
“érecsser at the Military policc Headguarters.

g T did not see tle actual torture of other priscners durin:
investigaticn but I saw tiie results of their maltreatnent when they
returned to the cells. I alsc saw rany cases of brutality by the
Japanese gcuerds inflicted on their prisoners, In one particular case
which oceurred about the beginning of November 1943. I saw Dr, Stanley,
who was in the next cell to mine ab the Japanese Iul;tary Tolicc Head-

)7Ehurters,belng rereatcdly taken to and returned fron the 1nvcs+1batlon

rooil. Thile he was away I eould hpar his voice crying out in agony
denying charges nade acainst Lin, ocmetlies he was carried on a chair
gni_ggggjggkgggg_a srrcuc“br DEG fhc f651ﬁ55 cou+1nucd over a perloadt
of at lcast two weeks, ingly un
Japanesc uoct0¢ was callead und he was tahen amuy on reteconer 1nd
never roturned vo the ccll° I was told by a Japanese interpreter that
he had dlua, This easc is also referrcd o {(without reference to ndmes)
in the report. His death was undoubtedly due to the rmmltreatueht he
received. I saw people getiing thinner and thinner as a result of their
ordeal and lack of food, and some of them were returned to Sire Roud
carp either dead or mylnuo'

=]

O I do not know personally the names of any of the Japanese

concerned in the variocus inecicents referred to in this affidavit or in
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the report of the said Cormission. On two separate days in Septenber or
october 1945 I aticuded at the Central Dolice Station and Outran Road
Irison identification parades of Jopanese arrested by the British Forces,
1 identified a certain number as being precent during ry confinement at
the Japanese Military police Headouarters and others who had definitely
taken part in ry investigation and torture. 4 British officer named
Tild (of, I think, the rank of )}rjor) was present with me at all
identification paradcs which I aittended and made notcs of ny identifi-
cations,

SY'ORN at punedin in the Dominion )
of New Zealand this yourtcenti ) (signed) LEONARD SINGAPORE.
day of pebruery, 19%b6. )

pefore ne;

(signed) C.B.B. BALRROWCLOUGH
4 solicitor of the supreme Court of New Zealand.

certified true copye.

(signed) R.B, LiMBZ, Lte Col,
(LteCOl. Ran Iﬁd‘lbe)
LG,
War Crines Registry
H§ LIFSEA,
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YITH THE TNVESTICATION OF CHANGI C.Mr BY THE JAPANESE

% &
GENERAL SUM/ARY OF STATZIENTS RUCCRDID I CONNECTION §

|

}

i MILITARY CLICE, =4

A4 COIIFISS!ICN appointed by the authorities of sime Road Internment
Caap to take und rccord evidence from internees who were arrested by the
Japanese Military Dolice in 2onsequence of a raid on Changi Cap on
10/10/43, first sat on Thursday 20,/2/45, having taken statements from 38
of the survivers. It was considered urgent to record this evidence prior
to the dispersal of the Samp. whizh, it was believed, micht teke place as
ecrly as the 3rd septewmber 1945,

[ on 1C 10/43, all internees in Changi pPrison were paraded soon
after dawn in the Mrin yaré as if for a routine roll-call, Soon after
this the 1pilitary police arrived and armed soldiers picketed all doors,
A number of the internees were called out by name, labelled and
sezregated, Internees were then ordered back to their Block Yards
where further labeliing and segregating took pluce., Meanwhile, a
searclh was rade on the personal belongs of all internees. puring this
search there was looting and wanton destruction by the Japanese. The
investigation finished after dusk and internees were allowed to return
inside the Trison, Imny of them hed had no food since 6 peme (T.T,)
on the previous day, and scme suffering distress and even collapse owing
to the day-long cxposure to the sun without food,

In consequence of this investigation, 57 internees were removed
from changi Trison by the prilitary Tolice on or after 10/10/43. With
one exception, these were all interrogated at Japanese Iilitary Police
centres in gingepore. The ccurse of the interrogation showed that the
Japanese were trying to establisl that there was a spy organization in
changi prison which received and transuitted by radio telephony, which
 had established contacts in the tomn for the purpose of sabotage and
i stirring up of anti~Japanese feeling, and whic.. eollected money from
outside for this purpose., 1n fact, there was no spy crganisation,.
ne radio transmission ané no atterpt tc promote anti-Japanese
activities outside the Cuarpe There were, however, radio-receiving sets
in the camp which were used solely for the reception of news, and money
was collected from persons outside the Camp for the sole purpose of
supplerenting the totally inacdequate rations supplied by the Japanese.

The conlitions under which internees were detained by the
Military police were rigorous in the extrere, They were crowded,
irrespective of race, sex, cor state of hLealth, in small eelis or cages,

ey were so cramped that they could not lie down in comfort. No
 bedding or coverings of any kind were provided and bri ht lights were
kept burning overhead all night, From 8 a.m. to 10 p.il, inmates had
to sit up strai ht on the bare floor with their knees up and were not
allowed to relax or put their hands on the floor, or talk, or move,
except to go to the lavatory. iny infraction of the rigid discipline
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involved a beating by the seniriss., mhere was one pedestal water-closet
in each cell or cage, and the waler flushing intc the pan provided the
only water supply for all purposes, inecliuding drinkings, It should be
recorded here that nearly all cf the inmates suffered from enteritis or
dysentery, No scap, towel, ftoile: articles ¢¥ handkerchiefs were per-
mitted and inmates had no clothing other than those they were wearing.

The food supplied, normally rice., occasional vegetables, and weak
tea with no @ilk or sugar, was less than half of that supplied by our own
TPrisons pepartient as punishncont diet for isiatics., It was insufficient
to support life over a long period and led to serious deficiency diseases
in all cases of long detention,

Medical facilities afforded, whether visits of redical personnel or
the supply of nedicinss or drugs, were for all practical purposes non-
existent, In muny cases, our own doctors sharing the cell with the sick
made urgent requests for prompt medical attention on their behalf,
particularly in cases where the vietiir was on the point of death, but
these requests were invariably ignored, In one case, a Japanese doctor,
who was called to see an internee suffering from a fractured pelvis and
possibly ruptured kidney, renarked that the man was not sick enough.

The three women taken frorm Changi Trison were detained in exactly the
sane conditions as the men and shared cells with male prisoners of all
races. They were afforded no privacy, even for their most intinate
requirements, and any atberpt on the part of Juropean mer to screen

then was broken down by the gjuvards. They were subjected to insults and
obscene pestures by Japanese prisoners in the same cell and the Japanese
prisoners, with the assent of tle puards, tried to corpel them to perform
the most sordid tasks in the cell,

The buildings cccupied by the Japanese Military Tolice resounded

all day and all night with blows, the bellowing of the ingquisitors, and
he shrieks of the tortured, Froi: tine to time, vietims from: the torture
chambers would stagger back or, il unconscicus, would be dragged back to
their cells with marks of their ill-{reatment on their bodies. In one
such case, an unconscious vietin so returned died curing the night,
without receiving any medical attention, and his body was not rermoved
until the afternoon, In these conditions, and this atmosphere of terror,
these men and women waited, sometinmes for months, their suimons to
interrogation which might come at any hour of the day or night.

Usually interrogations started guietly and would so continue as
long as the inquisitors (ot the expected answers. 1If, for any reason, such
answers were not forthecoming, physical violence was irmediately employed.
The methods used were:

(1) mater Tcrhbure, There werc two forus of water tortures In the
first, the viectim was tied or held down on his back and a cloth placed
over his nose and nouth, ‘Jater was then poured on the cloth, Interro-
sation proceeded and the vietim was beaten if he did not reply. As he
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opened his mouth to breathe or tc ansver guestions, water went cdown his
throat until he could hold no mere., Sonebimes, he was then beatern over
his distended stcmach, sometimes a Jepanese jumped on his stomach, or
sometines, pressed on it with his foot,

In the second the vietim was tied lengthways on a ladder, face
upwards, with @ rung of the ladder across iiis throat and his head below
the ladder. In this position, he was slid first into a tub of water and
kept there until almost drowned. After being revived, interrogation pro-
ceeded and he would be rc-irmersed,

(2) Beating wish iron ‘bars, brass rods, sticks, bamboos, wet knotted
ropesy belts with buckles, or rsvolver butts, all over the body., Thilst
these beatingswere being inflicied, the victims were sometimes suspended
by the wrists Jrom a rope passed over a beim, Sometimes their hands were
tied behind their backs and they were forced to kneel on sharp pieces of
wocd or iron, while sharp-edged pieces of wcod or metal were placed behind
their knees sc as tc cut into the flesh as they knelt. while they were
so kneeling the Japanese would jurp on their thighs or on the projecting
ends of the bar or wood behind the knees; sonetimes to increase the
pressure on the woed or bar behiné the knees, a2 Japanese would perch
himself on the shoulders of the victim, or the victin, with hands untied,
would be compelled to hold heavy weights above his head., They were often
forced to remain in this posiiion without intermission for 9 to 10 hours,
during which period interrogation would ;o on rerprselessly, punctuated
by blows, At times, the vietim would be tied to a table and flogged until
he lost ecnsciousness, In one case, the mon so.flogred counted over 200
blows before losing consciousness., This treatment was, in some cases,
carried on daily for 4 to 5 days consecutively., In one case, a Furopean
who died later was interrogated with the usual beatin, for 58 hours at a
stretch and another juropear, since dead, underwent 1l hours of beating.s
in all, according to the estimate of his ecell nates,

(3) Dpuring interrogation the inguisitor, in 1xny cases, burnt the
victim with cijarette and cheroot ends, even on the most sensitive parts
of the bedy,  e.sy arm-pits, between the toes, on the scrotun and penis,
Several ,siatics had petrol poured on their bellies and ignited, and
another Asiatic had his hands tied together and irmmersed in a bowl of
methylated spirit which was ignited,

(4) Zzlectric Torture, There were two forms of this, In the first,an
induction ccil was used, one electrode being attached to the hand or foot
and the other,a barc wire,was applied to various parts of the body. One
vietin reports that he was throwm across the room by the violence of the
shockes The effect has been described as cne of physical and mental
disintegration, The second ferm,apparently nore severe, was called the
electric talble or eleetric cap, Taere is evidence that this was used, but
not on any of our witnesses, :
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(5) In addition to these fcrms of torture, the inquisitor, often erployed
other methods, such as ju-jitsu, 3wisting of linbs, bending back of fingers,
twisting of sharp-edged wood between fingers; punching, repeated blows on
the same spot, and so on. These meshods, in many cases resulted in dis-
locations and permanent damage to limbs and joints. In one case, the
inquisitor punctuated his questions by flicking off, with the frayed end of
a bawboo, flesh bruised in a previous beating. This left a permanent scar,
six inches by three inclhes on the victimts thigh.

(6) 1In several cases, victins were led to believe that their execution
either by beheading or shooting, was imminent. They were advised to write
a letter of farewell, preparations for execuition were carried out, up to
the penultirate stage, with such realism thait, in two cases, the victims
fainted,

(7) Threats to families, Threats were also rade to take action against
the family of the vietim (the wives of some internees were believed to be in
Japanese custody in other parts of isia). Torture was carried out to the
lirit of human endurance, Q(ne internec atterpted to commit suicide by
jurping over the vercndah, 1In his fall he frectured his pelvis, but, despite
his condition, his interrogation under torture was continued until just
before he died, In another case, the internce asked his inquisitors for
the means to cormit suicides /[ pisiol was produced and was snatched away
only when the man was about to carry out his declared intention.

of the 57 internees detained as a result of the investigations on
10/10/43, 12 died of sickness directly attributable to the appalling con-
ditions under which they were detained; one, as in the preceding paragraph,
as a result of his fall and toriure and one was executed. The survivors
who returned after lengthy custody by the Military police required prolonged
treatment in the Carmp Hospital for extreme emaciation (except where oedema
was present), chronic dysentery, neuritis, sores, ulcers, scabies, beri-
beri, weak hearts, or injuries to joints and limbs.,

The Coranission also recorded the evidence of the three surviving member
out of six of the Body Disposal Squad who were arrested by the Japanese
I"litary Police in the Municipal puilding, Singapore, in March 1942, and who
were sentenced after a so-called trial, to two yas solitary confinement,
each for wanti-Japanese talkwn, Tvhile in prison, three of the six died
without receiving medical attention whatsoever, Requests for medicine on
their behalf evoked the reply wThey are enery prisoners and are not allowed
any 1:1edicines@

' (signed) s,N, KING, M.C.S. CHAIRMAN
N.S. ALEXiNDER, M.S., TheDe)

Sime proad Internment Ceamp, Professor of Thysics. )
Singapore. Wele BLYTHE, M.C.S. )
3rd september, 1945, lembers,

certified true copy.
(signed) R.Be LAMBE, Lt. Col.
(LthOlo BB LaIHbe)
AAG ‘ar Crimes Registry, HQ ALFSE4,
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JAPANESE WAR CRIMES "DOUBLE TENTH"
CASE, CHAMNGI, SINGAPORE.

AF B ED L& P TR,

! I, CHARIES FRIC HILTERIZAMY, lerchant of BRIMKMANN and Co., Singepore,
with address C¢/o Hiltermann Eros., 2l 1ime Street, London, £.C.3s make
oath and say as follows:

i I was in Singapore at the time of the capitulation of the
British forces tc the Japanese in February 1942, Imediately after the
capitulation and in company with most of the other civilians on the
island I was intermed in CHANGI GAOL. fThere I stuyed until 15 october
1943, - on that date and without warning T wus taken to the Yempei-tai
headquarters at the v, M;C.A. Other people were teken with me and they
werc LIONEL GOODALL and JIMVY MIINE, We were not given any information
as to why we were taken; nor was uny churge made egainst us. e all =
three arrived at the Y . M.,C.A, on the same day, 15 October and were at
once put into various ceges. All the time I was in the Y,M.C.A, Which
was féur vecks there vere anything from eighteen to twenty-five people
in this cuge., we just had bare boards to lie on and there was a
pedestal w.C, in one corner which we had to use for all purposes,
waghing, drinking water and of course hecessary calls of nature,

our food consistcd of very limited quantities of rice; which was a
starvation diet, '

2e within half an hour of my arrival at the Y,M,C.A. I was
pulled out for interrogation by the Japanese. The Japanese
interrogator startcd off by saying; m7e know everything, tell us
all you known, I hadn't the slightest idea what they were talkig
about and T szid so. Without more ado I was struck by the third
Japanese perscn, who was obviously there purely in the capacity of
& beater up. The other two were of course the interrogator and
his interpreter. Then they started my interrogation proper.

I was ceccused of spying, asked the names of spies in CHANGI and
agents in SINGAPORE., I was also questioned about c radio trans-
mitter., The whole interrogation lusted from 1.30 in the afternoon
until 9,30 at night, when I was caxried down to my cage in a senmi-
conscious condition. On six other interrogations within the next
10 days I hed to undergo similar treatment,

S Iy memory is a little vague as to the kind of various
torturcs vhich were inflicted on me duringthese questionings.

one of the tortures I remeuber was being tied up in a kneeling
position with & stick under my knees uand hands tied behid my
back. A rope was then tied to my wrist and over a pully in the
ceiling., oOne of the Japanese then pulled on the rope and T was
hoisted up by my wrists. lhile in this agonising position I was
beaten with sticks uand ropes. I also had the water treatment
which congsisted of a cloth being put over my mouth and then water
being poured on it and Y very nearly suffoecated, In order to
breathe I had to tdke in e great quantity of water and this
distended my stomach cnormously, I was, however, spared the
torture of somebody jumping on me.,

Vil Another method they used was to tie me to a table and
burn me with cigarette ends and cheroots up ond down my thighs. I have
the scars of these still on me, These tortures I have enumerated

were the mojor ones. All through these interropgations I was con-
stantly beuten and kicked and knocked about by the interpreter,
interrogator and any of the Japanese who were present,
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B After ten dcysof this they gave up trying to get any
information out of me and T was left moreotr less in peace. After four
weeks in the YV ,M.C.A. I was sent over to smith Street Detention
perracks and there T was kept in a tiny cell measuring 65 ft.

by 5. ft. There were sometimes as muny as seven people in

there at the same time, This minute cell had alsc a pedestal
type 7.C. in it. On the occasion that there were seven people
there we literally had to squat on the floor and there was no
chance of stretching out. Apart from this physical discomfort
there was the acute mental distress of hearing the screams and
yells of other unforitunate people being tortured in other rooms
in the same building, and never kaowing when one was going to be
called for interrogation and torture oncself., This mental
torture was the worst port of the whole inprisonment which I
suffered both in the Y,l,C.A. &nd Smith Street. It was almost
worse in the Y,M,C.A., which was & large wooden building znd as
a2ll the doors vere open, one could hear everything that went on.
It was like ®bedlamv day and night,

6. Food at Smith Street was mmch the same as at the Y.MiC.A.
It consisted of very limited guaentities of rice - not enough to

live on for very long. During the three months I was there nothing
happened to me personally apart from the usual brutal ftreatment

of the guards, gSometime in the middle of march I went back to

the v.,1,C.,A, &nd spent another three weeks there I was finally
rcleased on the 8th April 1944 and was brought back to Changi

where I spent four or five weeks in hospital,

Te puring the time I was in the Y,M,C.A. cnd smith Street,
I saw & good many of the British pecople who were seized by the
Kempei-tai during Octcber 1943, On one occasion I saw the Bishop
of singapcre who had been meltreated terribly. His legs from his
hips to his ankles had been beaten to pulpe. They were literally
like raw meat. He could not move at 2ll end was just aboui able

to erawl. I alsco saw STEVATSON before he died. He was black and
blue from becting. His body was in a terrible condition.. He toc
could barely move himself. MIDDLEBROOX I saw ghile I was in smith
Strecte. Hde teld me what treatment he had suffered during his
interrogation and thot Mc. 81 was the man responsible. He was in a
very bad physical condition, covered in bruises and sores,

FRASER T also saw in gmith Strcet. He had not bcen badly treated
vhen I met him. He was only suffering from severc dysentery and
was so weck thut he had to be helped to the /.0, e ourselves
were so weak at the time that we could hardly get him there.

PIRRY was in the opposite cell to me at gmith Street and I could
sec him through the bars. He was blown up like a balloon from
beri-beri. CLARK was with me in the same cage at gmith Street.-

He too was in a very bad way -from beating and general maltreatment,
tthen he was brouzht into my cell T simply did not recognise him
and had to ask him his aneiy
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By~ with regard to the ncibers of the Fempei-tai whon I saw in the
Y.M.Co.h, and snith Street, T have locked carefully at the folder of photo-
graphs shown to ne marked wExhibit 4» and attached to this my affidavit,
In this folder of photographs I can pesitively identify Nos. 1, 3, 294 30,
32, 81, 82, 67 and 84 as being members of the Kerpei~-tai whonm I saw in the
Y.MiCoie ond Sonith Streect,

Se v7ith regard to these people who persconally neltrected me, iy
nemory is a little vegue but I am almost certain thot No. 30 was the man
who interrogeted me first and [ au posivive that No. 1 was the beater up
cn that oceasion, The only ciher potiedcn § ean rceognise is No. 67.. BHe
used to cone around the cages and rsuvb jodinc in our open sores. This was
nct done with any tenderness or with a vicw $o allcviating our suffering,
He obviocusly used to enjoy Coing it and laughcd at us.

10y All the Rempci-tai peoplc werc always very tidily dressed and
snert in their cppearance. They were usually dressed in civilian shark
skin suits.

SWORN by the s2id CHALRLES ERIC
HILTERMMN at 3/9 southaupton
Row in thc County of Ionden,
this 28th duy of Jonuary 1946

B e

(signed) ERIC HILTERMANN,
Before nc,
(signed) J. DERMCT TALSH.
4 Cormissioner for Qcths.
certified true copye.

(signed) ?
Lt. Ccl.
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AUCKLAND,
25th pctober, 1945,

(EBL.Y MLURICE JOINS stebess-

I an & duly gqualified registered medical practitioners I an
registered in New Zealand, Ingland and }playa., I am Senior Surgeon,
gencral Hospital, Singapore, a recmber of the Malayan Medical Service,

I an an ¢x-civil internee of war, Singapore .rece I was born in New
zealand on 15th Mprceh, 190131 I an at present on leave in New Zealand and
ry address is 28 pilworth /venue, Rermerc, suckland,

{_ I was at ny post in Singopore when the Japanese captured the town
Anong others, I was intcrned on 26th February, 1942, Until the 6th mreh,
1942, I was confined in an old housc on the waterfront at Singapocre, On
that date, 21l the civil internees, including myself, were marched seven
niles to Changi civil prison. The women and children were quartercd in
one section of the prison .nd the men in another section,

At all tines, Japanese soldiers were in charge of the internees
and prisoners, though the administration changed from tinme to tine,

The following important perscns werc interned with ne;-

Sir ghenton Thorics, Governor of Straits settlenents,

General McR.e, Indian Redical Service,

Sir percy Merlwain, Chief Justice, Straits Settlcanents,

The Chief Justice of the Federated lrlay Straits (I cannct reecall
his naue),

Mr. Spits, Governor of sumatra,

Mr. Charles Howell, ittorncy-General of gtraits Settlements, and

Mre Hugh Fraser, Colonicl Secrectary.

on an average, there would be about 2,500 men end about 500 womer
and children in Changi Prison Carp./ They corprised various nationalities,
there being Now Zcalanders, Inglishmen, australians, ,mericans, putch,
South /frieans, Canadians, 2 Spaniard, & Ruonian, an Indicn, several
Chincsc, ond sore /rmenicns. jasltogether, therc were about 27 diffcrent
nationalities represented in the prison.

Conditions at Changi prison were not satisfactory, There was
gross overerowding, which was the chicf corplaint. The prison was only
neant to hold 600 pcrsons in all, 4t tines, it contained over 3,000 person
of both sexcs, which caused rmeh inconveniencc., However, the water supply,
clcetric light and sanitation were satisfactory, as were the cocking
facilities,

The cells in which some of the internees were confined wero
neant to hold onc person omly, but three internees werc placed in each
cell. There wus one platforn only tc sleep on. The cells were small, |
I cannct remecrmber the exact measurencnts, 0On acecunt of the over-croﬁaing,
the cells could not contain everybody in the priscn, so that the workshops
and every other spare room was occupied by the interneces.
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f f}fter rcpeated requests to the Jopanese, we were allowed the use
, of the prison hospitals, one for woren and children, the other for the nen.

For about the first ycar, due mainly to our own efforts, we had
sufficicnt food, and at that time I do not think any person died froo
starvation, though there was illness fron mmlnutrition (the result of an
unbalenced dict), This began to appear fairly carly in 1942.

“on 10th oectober, 1943, }ull internces in Changi prison werc

paraded soon after dawvn in the main yard as if for a routine roll call.
soon after this, the Jup.nesc military police arrived and armed soldiers
picketed all doors, /. numbcer of interneces were called out by nane, labelle
and segregatcd. The internces werc then ordered back to their block yards
where further labelling and segregetion took place. Npanwhilc(§ scarch was
made of the personal belongings of all internces, During this search,
there was looting aond wanton destruction by the Japunese. The investigatic
cended soon after dusk the sane day and internees were allowed to return
inside the priscn, Ixny of thon had hod no foed sinee 6 p.m. the previcus
day, and some suffered collupse, owing to the day long exposure to the sun
without food,

In conscquence of this investigation, 57 internees, including
ryself, were removed from Changi prison by the military police on or
after the 1l0th october, 1943. '7ith onc exccption, these were all inter-
rogated ot Japanese military policc centres at Singapore, The course of
the investigotion revealed that the Japanese were trying to establish
thet there was a spy orgenization in Changi prigcn, which received and
transmitted nessages by wireless,;

I was detained with others in o block of flats in smith Strect,
Singapore. altogether, I was interrogated by the Japanese about 26 tires,
and after one such interrogation I was beaten by the Japunese. I will
refer to this incident later in ny stotenent.

I will first relate what happened to a Chincse laéd nanmed LiN., I
do not know his full nanc. [ He was crployed in the Jupancse offéc of the
interament ceorp cnd was urrcstcd and placcd in the swuc cell that I was
ceeupyings Jslthough I did not wetuclly witness his becating, the condition
of bruising «nd open wounds when hc was rcturncd to the cell after inter-
rogation, was, to my nind, conclusive evidence of the brutal treatnent he
had reecived. He was onc of the first to be interrogated by the Jepanese,
and after secveral of such intcrviews he was so sick that he was unable to
teke any food whatover, and whenever I gave him water to sip he immediately
vorited it back. Im ry opinion he was suffering from an intra-cbdominal
lesion, probably a ruptured liver, The whole of the back of his neck and
uppcr part of his back -nd the whole of his buttocks were extensively
bruiscd, This incident occurrcd between 1llth Oetober, 1943, and 17th
octobor. 1943, on which dey he was reroved from the ecll, to ry mind, in
o dying conditions 411 I could get from hin was that the Japznese had
told hin that if he knew anything he rust tell then about it, { They did not
esk hin to specak or rcfer to any specific incident,
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/ I subscquently nade cnquiries;jand sincc hostilitics ceased[i
ves inforied; by severcl people, who I hove reascn to believe knew hin,
ii?&t hc dic@} I cannot remember the names of the people who told e about
Lin's death.

[ Ipter, the 23rd Noveuber, 1943, while still in detention, I was
surmoned by the Japanese for interrogatioﬂ}L The intcrrogation lasted
for abcut two hours and the gquestioning rclated to an alleged wireless
tronsnitting set which the Jopunese informed ne that pre Cuthbert /rthur
Stenley, who was quartercd with ne at Changi prison, hcd confessed to
being in possession of. .is I was well awere thot Dr. Stanley was not in
possession of such 2 sct, I denied any knowledge of it. I was merely
inforrmed thot Dr. Stanley hod confessed. They told me that they had found
the set in the prison, but did not produce it when I asked to see it. I
was inforiied that I was regordel as being perfectly innocent, but that I
7as aware that Dr. Stanley hoed the wireless set as I had warned hin that it
was dengerous to posscss it. This wos untrue. Lt that tirne, Dr. Stanley
was confined in the Y ,M.C..., Which was being used @as a Jaopenese military
police headguarters, [;ftcr questioning e for about two hours, the
Jopenese took me to a rocm in which I was told one or two of our people
had been tortured by eclectric current. There were numerous wires lying
cbout the rocm, but the cppurctus was not working., I was then token to
enother rooiz on the ground floo;L; This was ir the block of flats in gmith
Street. The room was fairly large with a conercte floor. | Hanging from the
ceiling was a rope, to which ry two hands werc tied. I was then beaten by
¢ lerge bamboo stick, The borboo would be about two inches in dianeter
and about five feet long. It was an ordinary bamboo used to carry things
on., I was then becten over the buttocks, prodded with the end of the pole
over 2ll the bony points of the body, the knees, the thighs, and lower
portion of the spinc. The saue pole wus used to knock mec down to ry knees
It was then placed in a horizontal position behind the eclves of the lcgs
and the Japonese juriped on both cnds of the pole. This went on for sore
tine, after which the pole was placed bectween ry eoteh and I was jerked tc
the standing position, I was further becaten over the buttocks by a piece
cf broken floor beard, This boord was about two and 2 half feet long,
one and @ heclf inches wide and about cne inch thick. I was also beaten
with the buckle end of a belt.

The Jepancse alsc kicked e on the shins. :iftcr this form of

treatriont had continued for some time I fainted, “hen I rccovered, iy
hinds were untied and the rope ticd round ry waist, I was then swung round
and round the room on the rope and struck with piceces of wood and kicked,
I was loter releoascd cnd reburned to =y ecll. During the eoursc_of the
next twelve hours I fointed a mumber of tines. My body was numb:j None of
the other internecs witncssed what cccurred to me in the torture roorm, but
one of themn was sitting in the next room where the beating took plece,
Hec was Mr. John Dalton, radio sound enginecr, manager of a theatre in
Kuale puipur. He later informed me that he hod heard all thet went on
during 1y beating. There were three Japancse concerned in beating ne,
They were;-
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(1) . Japanecse military policeman, I have reason to believe that he
held the rank of Sergeant Maojore. I do not know his name, but on
the several occasions that I saw hin before and after ny beating
he wes wearing the arnm band of the Jop.nese military police., T
cannct supply any other ovidence as to his identity, except that
I would be able to identify him again if T over saw hime. This
man did the guestioning, '

(2) i Japonese interpreter: The interpreter was not wearing Japanese
unifcrn whenever I saw hin. Hce was dressed in Japcnese civilian
clothing. T do not know his neze, is far as I can repenmber, he
was an interpreter attached solely to the Japanese military police
I do not think I would be able to identify hin again,

(3) 4 Juponese soldier asting as beater up: This moen took nc part in
the interrogation. He was nerely a thug. He actuclly tied ne up
and beat me with the bamboo, though the gergeunt Mpjor took a hand
in beating me as well. I have no knowledge that would assist in
identifying this man, I would not bc able to identify him again,.

I cannot say who was in charge of the rilitary police or offer
any information in assisting in establishing the identity of the Japenese
responsible for authorising or perforning the acts of brutality. .is a
matter of faet, every Japanese soldier resorted tc viclencc as a ratter
of coursc,

A8 & result of ry beatings, I do not feel that I have suffered
any permanent injuries., For four nonths after my beating, I had a rope
burn on ry right wrist and it was about seven months before the skin
scnsation returned to that hand. I also lost sensation on the inside
of both thighs, the dircet result of the use of the pole between riy legs.

{ ifter thc beatings, it would be about the end of Decermber, 1943,
I contraeted dysentery end I lay on the floor of i1y cell without any cove:
ing or nedical attention for three wecks. .fter that, as a result of
repeated rcquests by ry cell mctes, I wos scen by a Japanese doctor, who
nerely ordcrec a rnwouth Wash;; I do not know his identity.
" w/hile T was confined in thc detention eells, thc other interneec
were taken out fron time to time for guestioning and would return showing
unnistckable signs of beating wnd torture, I have seen ny cell nates
leave the cell quite fit :nd well and return from interrogation bearing
obvious signs cf physical torturec,/

I a1 unable to state whether the same Japanese beat up ny cell
notes and other internees in detention who beat e,

i Mre Chcatle, Singapore monager for Thomus Cooke and Scns, was
ore man whernr I saw with open wounds on the front of both knees, and fresh
cigerette burns on the lower parts of the thighs and back of the neck.
. C.,C. Jackson, Mzlayen Trensport Bocord, cnother cell rate, told e
that the Joponese had wrenched his thumb and broken it. I was able to
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verify that the thumb was fracturcd. Mr. John Hurdnen, of the Electriccl
Dept., at Johcre, informed ne that he had sustcined an injury to the knee
as o resuls Of being thrown by Ju-jitsu throws by the Japanese when his
hands were tied behind his back. 4in examxination of the knee showed that
there was an injury tc o certilegec. .inother case I personally examined was
that of « young Indicn ludé named Raju, who had been erployed &s & clerk in
the Japancse office of the internment camp. He had a fraeture of the knee
eap and also of the ulnar bone in cnc forearm. I @¢tually saw the results
of Jopanese punishrient in respect to the men mentioned., I did not sec the
tortures being inflicteds The victiuis used to tecll me what the Jepanese
did. On Moy 1st, 1944, I wos transferred to Sime Rocd canp, where I
remained until the end of hostilities[Y

During the whole of iy internment and unknown to the Japenese,
corplete record was kept by various carp officials of 2ll incidents and
& full report prepared. I was head Commandant at the camp for nine months
and during that pericd I assisted tc nmaintain that record. thenever it wac
reported thot an inecident had ceeurred a report would be tcken fron the
victin and moke a written record of it. 7/e used to obtain all the facts,
and in sowe cagses we actuelly obtained signed staterents from the vietims,
complete records were nade of housing, feeding, stores ond supplies cnd
every act of brutality. IPwould be impossible, without referring to that
record, to give a corplete statement of every ccet of violencc I witncssed,

0

4fter hostilitics ccascd, I do not know what happencd to the men,
Ly ccll mntes, who werc beaten up by the Japanese, referred to in this
statenent,

So for as the camp record is concerned, o full rcport was pre-
parcd cnd I think it would be sent to the Home secretary, or the Colonial
office,

(signed) B.M, JOHNS 25.10.45.

gtatenent token and signaturc witnesscd by the undersigned;

(signcd) .. RUSH
Scrgeant. 25.10.45.

certified Truc Copy
(siened) L, HIGHET

Captoin NZTS.
2042.1946,
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COLY OF ®wgM FORM

Date, Camp Particulars of the Criminal Act or Violation Names where known, description, rank Names of
or £lace. appointment, unit, etc., of enemy witnesses
personnel concerned and any other
detail to fix their identity.
27 Dec 41 Source who was in *D" Coy 4/19 Hybad, was ordered to move
with his Coy to a position 1) miles N.E. of Ipoh, where Tollowing
In the jungle they were to patrol the area. ¥hile accompanied by 'D' witnesses
Coys of the A and S. H. and 5/2 Punjab and about 2 or of whom
about 14 miles 3 miles from their starting point, they were attacked to 4/19
and dispersed by the Jananese, who after inflicting Regt: -
from Ipoh heavy casualties rounded up the stragglers, and in all
about 75 men were captured, included 26 from 5/2 Punjab Source had no idea as to the unit 1.Jem Kara
and the remainder from the 4/19 Hybad, None of the Singh
Argvlls was captured, although some of them were killed etc. to which the perpetrators 2.L/Nx Ni
in the engargement. Sources was among those captured. Singh
The captured men were stripped of all their clothes except belonged . 3.5ep Bhoo
their underwear, and were kept without food or water from Singh
10,00 hrs until 18.00 hrs under Japanese guard when their (now with
hands were tied behind their backs and they were kept in Agra)
three batches, each batch being about 50 yards away from the Ly.Sep Dha
other. The same evening at about 2000 hrs Japanese
soldiers commenced attacking them with bayonets and S5.Sep Jag
chopping the heads of f those who cried loudly. Source was (now with
bayonetted twice on the small of the back and escaped by Agra)
pretending to be dead and lying under some dead bodies. 6.%ep Pir

(INDIAN TROOPS)

Number 11020 Name MUL CHAND

The statement was recorded by me, read over to the

source and admitted correct.

Rank  SEPOY

Unit/Ship 4/19 Hyberabad Infantry

Home Address Village:
Date and place of Capture:

Pota P.0. Kanina Nabha State

27 Dec. 1941 1) miles beyond Inoh, Malaya.

(Signed) A.K. Thompson
Ma jor
G S Dy (1)
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Ceétified true copy of original statement .
18th April 1946.
(signed) #©.S, LAMBE, Lt.-Colonel

AAG War Crimes
HQ ALESEA
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SYNOF CIE OF UVIDELCE.

NALEYA

1: liassacre near IFOh

Froseccution Document numbered 5154, being the
statement of Sepoy UL CHAND is now produced for identification
and the marked excerpts offered in evidence. This document
relates that seventy five Indian soidiers when captured, were
massacred by beheading 2nd the bhaycnet, The witness was
bayonetted himself but escaped with his life by lying under
some dead bodies.

2, lurder of P/W _at NUAL

Prosecution Document numbered 5241 being the
Affidavit of T.C. ThEVOL, is now offered for identifieation
and the marked excerpts produced in evidence. This Affidavit
states that on 3 February. 1942, six Australian soldiers,
including the witness; having been captured by the Japanese,
were at MUAL, in c2id blood, fired upon by a bren gun. 411
the men were killed or died later, but the witness escaped,

3. liagssacre of P/l at PARIT SJLONG

Frosecution Document numbered 5043, being the
Affidavit of Lt. B, C. HACKNEY, is now tendered for identifica-
tion and the marked excerpts offered ir evidence. This
Affidavit states that on 22nd. Jenuary, 1942, the witness, who
was wounded, and a large number of men from other Units; were
captured by the Japanese at Parit Sutlong. The witness describes
their treatment as folliows:-

"{l) On many occssions a Japanese indicated to a wounded man
to move along with the rest, although he was incapable of any
noverrent. Upon his fziling to move, the Jepanese struck him
with a rifle or kicked him, or actually bayonetted him or shot
him,

(2) A Japanese drove his bayonet into a man wounded in the
chest and thigh and pushed him along the road and again
bayonetted him several times. The witness, although wounded,
was prodded with a bayonet by a Japanese. The prizoners!
watches, pens, pencils and other property except clothing were
taken by the Japanese, Their clotning was removed during the
search. One dead soldier was prapped up by the Japanese and
made an object of ridicule. 4&bout 150 nude and wounded
prisoners, some with gaping, dirty and blood-clotted wounds,
were hit, kicked, punched and prodded with bayonets, often in
the open wounds, by the Japanese. llany were knocked unconscious
by blowsg on the head with rifie butts,
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(3) Eventually the priscners were forced into a little
shed or garage. The Japanese grunted and proddcd them with
bayonets until mcst of the prisoners had scrambled into tie
shed, Some were knocked unconscious and others killed.

The terrific yells of wounded men in pain were continuous,

The shed soon became a hell-~hole full of tortured; groaning

and delirious wounded scoldiers. There was not enough room

in the shed to put down oneis foot without stepping on somebody -
Water was not given to the prisoners. A4 lsrge number were
re-wounded by the Jzpanese., C(ihers were bzyonetted or shot,
Fequests for nmedicel atteniion and water were ignored, later
was held by Japznese guards Just out of reach of some of the
prisoners and then thrcwn awey. A wHunded Indian soldier who
had been knocked down bty a Japanesse and rerndered unconscious
was, on showing signs of regaining consciousness, bayonetted
and heaved into a stream. 'hen his blood-stained face emerged
above the water, the Japanese shot him.

(4) 'Other ranks were tied up and maltreated, Sonme
were bayonetted. Finally, they were all herded intc a group ang
shot with rifles and mazhine giuns., The Japanese removed the
bodies, but not the witness who feigned death., Blood was
running all over his face, A wound ir his back left a small
pool of blood onn the ground. Some Japanese came and stood over
him and one pushed him with his foot to make sure he was dead.
Another kicked him in several places. Lne Japaneze then
brought tins of petrol and poured it over the prostrate
trisoners, other than the witness, some of wnom were still
conscious, They then set fire to the peircl amidst screams

and yells of pain and the prisoners were burnt to desath,

The witness covld smell the burning flesh. Hz lay still until
the Japanese departed. liany Japanese passed him and kicked

him and some pricked him with their bayonets. One actually
drove a bayonet into his side between his ribs. Another todk
his boots from him. Later the witness was able to free himself
from his bonds and met a sergeent «nd another scldier who smelt
strongly of petroi. They hzd teen vogether when the prisoners
were fired upon and they fell with the first burst of firing
althougl. neither had been hit. Petrol was thrown on them but
they were not burnt. The soldier wino was with the sergeant
died the follcwing day,"

4, P/W in MALLYA,.

A) Prosecuticn Document numbered 5085 being the
Affidevit of L.J.w. SELRINGS 1is now cffered for identificatiasn
and the marked excerpts produced in evidence. This Affidavit
relates to the gross inadequacies of liviuag conditions, food and
medical stores in the Kuala Lumpur Camp during February -
October, 1942. During the first three months, 166 ren died of
battle inguiries and fever. No medical attention was provided
by the Japanese,
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B) Prosecution Document Numbered 5084 being the
Affidavit of Capt. F. L. ADALS is now offered or identification
and the marked excerpts produced in evidence. This Affidavit
refers to the condit lCDS in Penang Gacl where the witness
remained for some two months, five weeks of which was spent

in solitary confinement in the condemned cell,

Men were beaten savagely for no apparent reason,
Sanitary arrangements were vile and sick men refused admissien
to hospital,

c) Frcsscution Document numbered 5C24 B, the Affidavit
of Maj. he H. SIEVLLI:S, is offered for identification asnd the
marked excerpts produced in evidence., This document states

that in llarch, 945, P/ were billeted in an overcrowded camp

in JOHOLE and that insanitary latrines caused a great deal

of dysentery.

The prisoners laboured at making defence works for
the Japanese and owing to the lack of precautions, several
men were killed and 1n3ured by falls of earth. Hours of work
were long and arduous since there was no proper air suprly.

The witness was told that owing to the prlsoners
being engaged on security work, in the cvent of 1nvas’on, they
would be killed.

Conditions for surgery were unfavourable at the
camp and despite the existence of a large and well equipped
hospital, six miles away, permissicn to evacuste cases there, wa
refused.

D) Frosecution Document numbered 5375, the Affidavit
of B. G, MAFLEBACK is offered for identification and the marked
excerpts offered in evidence.,

: This Affidavit siates that the Wﬂtness and three
other men were taken prisoners near KULAI, hey were roped
together and driven scme three miles at which point, two of

the prisoners were ordered out of the truck ané taken to a
creek about 20 yards away. Here they were shot with a tommy
gun in the presence of the witness, The bodies were left where
they fell and the Japanese returned to the truck.

5, CIVILIANS IN LALAYA.

4) Prosecution Document numbered 5139, the sworn
statement of ChEW SWAY LEOK is produced for identification and
the excerpts marked therein, tendered in evidence. This
statement relates thst the witness and nine other Chinese were
beaten with rifle butts into unconsciousness et Batu Eghat

Police Station in February, 1942. On 1 lMarch over 100 Chinese
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and European civilians were put in lorries and taken in batches
of thirty five into the jungle, They were machine-gunned

and bayonetted, The witness waited udtil the Japanese had

gone and then escaped.

B) Prosecution Document numbered 5141, the sworn
statement of ALL.AD BIN CEETEE is now offered for identification
and ‘marked excerpts produced in evidence., This document states
that towards the end of 1943, while the witness was employed

as a Sub-liarder in Penang Gaol, he saw a Japanese li,F. torture
a Chinese woman of middle age.

"Wagsio opened this woman's trousers and burnt
the hair around her pelvic perts with a lighted piece of
paper. Then wassio tied a rope round her waist, and, after
binding it round her wrists, attached the other end to a
motor cycle: Then Vassio proceeded to drive the motor-cycle
at a quicker pace than it was possible to run, The woman was
pulled a2long the ground about ten yards and then lost
consciousness."

The witness saw Chinese, lialay and Indian prisoners
tortured and stated thzt three Chinese died after undergoing
water torture.

C) Frosecution Document numbered 5142, the sworn
statement of liiss YONG LEN LCI, is produced for identification
and the marked excerpts thereof, offered in evidence. This
document refers to the torture of the witness's grandmother who
was suspended from the ceiling for an hour while heavy weights
were thrown at her legs and feet. The witness further states
that her grandmother was dragged along behind a motor cycle
until unconscious, as described in the evidence of the
preceding witness AHLAD,

The witness herself was beaten and burned in
Penang Gaol where her grandmother later died as a result of
her maltreatment.

D) Frosecution Document numbered 5143, the sworn
statement of W, T. DAVIES and the statement of lirs. A, C.
KATL.LIGASU, exhibited thereto, is now tendered for identification
and the excerpts marked offered in evidence, This document
relates that the witness was taken to IFOL Police Station in
August, 1943, where she was tortured and teaten in many ways,
and accused of being a spy.
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3 At Kempeitai HQ her child was suspanded from &

ix, tree with a fire blazing underneath her, whilst the witness
herself was tied to a post and beaten with a stick. The
child was eventually released.

At Batu Gajah gaol the witness was imprisoned for
life, after having been sentenced to death. Food was
inadequate, the cells were verminous and filthy. There were
no bed coveringc and no facilities for bathing. The witness
finslly lost the use of her legs but has since recovered.
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I, VX39006 Majior Jchn Xevin LLOYD of Army Headquarters

make ocath and says:

1s I am an officer of tne Australian Military Forces.

2 Annexec¢ nereto arxi warkes "B Lo 2 biue cony of an
affidavit sworn by Terence Crari=: TREVOR
on 11 Apr, 1945 which I have in my custody in the
course of my duties.

e The original affidavit cannot be made available
immediately as it is required for trials of minor

war criminalse.

Sworn before me at MELRCURIE

TR | S

this 27 day of May 1946  )_ __J. Lloyd /s/

Major

R, D. Crompton  Js/ - Capk
An officer of tne
Australian llilitary Foices
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On this eleventh dey of April, One thousand nlas hundrs
and forty-six,|Terence Cnn31°° Trevor, of 14 Ponsonby Pde,
Seaforth, in fhe State of Tew South 'dles, "Hoolelasser,
makes oath and says as follows:.-
j o s NX55521 Pte T.C. TREVOR of 2/30 Inf Bn I was
attached to B Coy. Portion of wy section, which included,
be91des wyself, HY25556 Pta. J.H. BLAIM, T""TA~4 Pte. F.G.
COLLET TT"2671.2 Pie (OCHPANE, EX5906 Pte IULLICAN and
Pte E.W, SAMS, were .ut off fror thne remainder of our Coy
whilst returning from the CET7AS ﬁmbushij

Z Tn =2n attemnt to return to ouvr Battal

ion lines, we
became lost and w~ndele€ in the junsle ané¢ rubber plantations
for aporovimately 14 cdays.
3o At about 010C hrs on 1 Teb 42 we were captured by a

Jap patrol. The patrol was nlso accomranied by a few Malayan
natives J

dq After being taken by the Jap patrol we wére trans-
vorted by a Samnan, we had ﬂr°v1ously comrandeereé, to Patrol
II19 and then to LEF3319 where we spent the night in the loecal
ra0l, Here we were given food anéd next morning we were

given bicycles and with a Jap and ¥Malayan escort set out

for MMAT, arriving there at anproximately 18C0 hrs on

2 Ieb 42,

B Here [we were henied over to a group of Jap officers
gvartered in the Sultanis ¥:lace near the 'UAR River.) The
Jan Officer in command told us that we would he held as
POWs and that we shouvld have ©o work. e agreed to this

-

JU

ant were given food and 2 nlace to sleep.

6, Next morning 3 f'eb AEG\wowlu‘ helning to loac a
truck on which the Jrnps were hovi to w1008v0[p0 mATU PAHAT,
we were told to lime up in twce, wﬂﬁ ried together with
signal wire, wrist to wrist.

1
L0

3

7o . "Te were then lsd b»y the Jap Officer across a lawn
anc askeé if we would 1like plstol 1o eorrii sricide. '@
refused and we were then ﬁekeo if we had anything to sav.

T said ¥that we shouldé ds held as POYY but this was iznored
an¢ the Jap Officer, with the words “You will soon see your

~

mothers an¢ fathers", left us,

&

()

. On the onnosite side of the lawn about 25 yds away
n Jan soldisr lay behind a Rren Zun which was nointing in
our direction. The Jap soidier onened fire, watched by the
Jap officers,

.
o

Qs Pte ‘orh"ﬁne was hit ané immeciately 7ell %o the
ﬁround. Ptes COLLEPT and PLLTD were then hlt anc¢ fell to
the =zround, éy@:;ln& me with them, The Jan continuad to

fire whilst we lying on the ground and T could hear

the bullets thudcdine into COLIETT who was l¥inz alonzside
me, The Jap then ceased fire.

1045 yfter o short time I raised my head but covld see
no sign of the Japs, T untied my wrists with my teeth and
untiec¢ the others =2lso, Pte COCITANE was d»“ ) Cgllett

1 alive,

¢
wneonscious and the remainder wounded bhut stilt

i [ A §
/ —
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11, I dragged the other members of my party who were
alive into the shacde of some hibiscus trees nearby and made
them as comfortable as possible. During the afternoon of
that day BLAND and COLLETT died, MNULLIGAN survived til. the
morning of 4 Feb 42, After Mulligan died, SANMS, who was
wounded in the leg. and myself attempted to escane | Ve

were pestered by alayans who followed us wherever we went
but finally threw them ofi 2:1¢ spent the night in an
evacvated native houvse in VUAR.

L 12, On 5 Ieb 42 we were recaptured;by different Javs

and taken to Mslayan HQ building irn Muar. There we were told
we were Prisoners of War.

13. I was of the opninion that these Jans were conten-
plating murdering SAMS and myself, but we were saved, I think,
by the intervention of some Jap Staif 0 icers who arrived

in two cars.

14. After a conference between the cap Staff Officers
and our captors, we were told by a Jap Sgt, that we were to
be taken to XLUANG to a yrison camp. "e zpent the night in
a house adjoining Malayan HQ where I was able to dress Sams'
wound.

On 6 Feb we were were taken by the Jap Staff
Officers in a2 car to Kluang where we met appiroximately 27
Aust P¥W and 2 British Brigadiers in the Kluang Gaol. One
Brigadier's name I remember was PAYHTER.,

- On 7 Feb 42 we set out for XUALL LUMPUR. On 8 Feb
42 we arrived at Kuala Lumpur and were taken to PUDU Gaol
where there were approximately 500 British and Aust Prisoners.

17« On 9 Feb 42 FPte SA'S died from tetanusiand was buried
" in gaol grounds., After spending eight months at Pudu Gaol
we were taken to Changi Gaol.

18, I was unable to disccver the names of any Jap
Officers or men responsible for murdering my colleagues and
I wag also unable to cbtain anything that would help to
identify their units.

19. The dates that T have before mentioned are abso-
lutely correct and may asgsist in identifying Jap units in
the area at that time,

SWORN by the abovenamed deponent, )
Terence Charles Trevor, at Sydney, ) T. C. TREVOR /s/
this eleventh day of April, One )
thousand nine hundred and forty-six)

(?)

Before me e SHEFFIRED J. P.

Exhibit "B" - This is the document marked Exhibit "B" re-
ferred to in the affidavit of VX39006 Mai J.K. Lloyd sworn
before me this twenty-seventh day of May 1946 as being pro-
duced and shown to him at the time of his swearing his said
affidavit.

_/s/ R. D, Crompton, Capt
An officer of the

Australian Military Forces.
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AUSTRALIAN o ORIEIS COLi T3 ICi,.

Zvidence taken at Sydney on 12 Hovember 1945 before ir., Justice
lansfielde

MX.71148 Lieuts Ben Charles HACINIY, 2/29 Battalion, beinz duly swern,
sive the following evidence:

Iy full number, name, rank and unit are NA-T1148 Lieut. Een Charles
Haclney, 2/29 Battalion. Iiy hcme address is 12 Benelong Crescent,
Belilavue Hill, Sydneyo :

On the evening of 17 January 19,2 2/29 Battalion made contact with the
enemy at Bakri end from the morning of 18 January the battle was at it
heighte On 19 January 1942 we joined up with 2/19 Battalion same 1littl
distance soutia of Bakri, 'From Balri we withdrew to Parit Sulong, wher
we were held up by a bridge and strong Japarese forces defending the
bridzee e made a stand there from the morning of 21 January until we
were captured the following day, and we had very heavy casualtiess

The following is a suumary of the happenings between 22 Jenuary 1942
and 21 Iarch 1942 inclusive, I do not lmow the names of the Japanese
responsible and I do not kuow of iy own lmowled e what unit it was thai
captured us at Parit Sulong, but I have heard subsecuently frcm

Col, Happe that it was the Japanese JTmperial Guards Division; these
soldiers were bigier then the usual Japanese soldiersa.

1. Many men comprising A.I.Fe. and Indian Army soldiers - the majorit
severely wounded, somz= of whoa had been lying in trucks, vans etc., up
to four days with necessarily limited medical attention and were
subjected to the treatment briefly outlined below at JURIT SULOIG by
leJods soldiers,

2 Priot to the closing in of IJA soldiers I myself had been wounded
in four places making me incgpable of walking and ;sreatly restricting
any movement,

(a) a bullet through the left ley below the imee causing a

fracture.

(b) shell splinter in backe.

(¢) shell splinter in ouiside of right calf.,

(a) shell splinter in rear of rizht knees

3. These soldiers made up same of the casualties of the 65 Fd Bty
(2/15 Fd Regte); 4 A Tk Regte; 2/19 Inf. Bn; 2/29 Inf Bn, and other
units of the 45 Indian Bde, under which commnand these A.I.F, forces
had been placed., These soldiers had been gathered together during
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the days prior to and including the 22 Jenuwry 1942, and were by 1200
hrs 22 jauvery 19.i2 esseubled -~ some in trucks, others lying about in
various positions (many of whom because of wounds had been unable to

gain the shelter of a vehicle) .- on or about the roadway imasdiately

I'ORTH of the PARIT SULOI'G Bridges

4s gneny fire of all types continued for some time to pour in from
all dircctions upon the vehicles and personnel who had gathered along
a short section of the roud after an order had been given for all troops
who were avle to do so to vacate the position, Bescuuse of lack of

unwounded soldiers and scarcity of arms .néd ammnition very little
retuliation fire went out from this group in return for that of the enen;
snother officer wnd I operated for as long as ummunition was available a

Bren gun from beneath & utility truck in order to in some way add to the
comparative lack of fire from our position and to perhaps lengthen by at

least a shert period the time wheh the eneny would inevitably clcse in oi

our position; and thereby enuble those who had been able to get away to

have a better opportunity of travelling a fair distance before the Japs

had use of the road and were able to push forward and perhaps prevent

our men from gaining contact with our forces from whom we had been cut

off for several days.

5o asbout 1430 hrs all fire from the convoy ceased and shortly after-
wards from all directicns especially "EST Jepanese soldiers closed in
on our positions, Indications amidgt much unintelligible yelling, were
mede for our personnel to assemble jat a point ST of the rcad and over
a parit which ren by the side of the road,

be gome of the fit men -of whom there were very few - were ullowed

to assist the more unfortunate; others wers compelled to move immediately
to the assembly peint and remain, This aszcembling was a slow process as
many were incapable of movement, Jen were lying about in all directions,
gome dead, many seriously wounded who had been unable to gain any shelter
whatever bein; incapable of any movement, Other unable to mcke much
progress, had muncged to crawl or drag themselves to one of the many
velicles and there lie exhaucsied.

T The following ere some of the acts committed by the J.panese during
the prqcess of assembling the men.

(a) (n many occasions a Jup approuching < wounded man. would indicate

for him to move along with the resig however. sometimes the
soldier would be incapable perhaps of any movement whatever.
Upon failing to do &8 the Jap indicated, the luttsr would
immediately begin yelling end meking signs - still no movement
by the wounded soldier whereupon he would te bashed about with

i the rifle,; kicked, and on soie occasions eventually either run
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£

{/;hrough many times with the bayonet, or with the rifle close to

his head - shot, This was the fute of a good muny wounded men.

v

(») sometimes men hobbling towards the little bridge over the
parit which led to the assembly place, and others who were crawlir
would have a Fap come up to them and he dealt a territble blow,
sometimes to the bady but mcst always to the head, with the butt
of the rifle, gome were knocked down, whereupon thay would be
kicked,

(¢) The fate cf others was to be hurried when they were already
mofing as fast as their wounds would «llow, by some Jeps using a
variety of wethods ~ scime kicking, some offen siriking with their
rifles and othser times many proddin; the men with their bayonets,

(d) ¢ne man bedly wounded in the chest wnd thish was meking to
the bridge very slowly by crawling and dragging himself al ong the
grount, He was hit severcl tires by Japs tut was incapable of
moving faster: 4 Jop drove his bayonet fmto the man and made as
if to pusk him along tile edge of the roads The man fell full
length face downwards, whereupon the Jap thrust in his bayonet
severul times @nd then left him., moving off to some other unfortun

ate who would also be brutally treated to moke him move faster,

(¢) A Jep came to uy position, He pushed another officer, who
was with me and standing, avay, then indicated for me to move also
I pointd out that I was unable to do so, whereupon he began kicking
me; but even knowing what was wanted and with the urge to avoid
this foul treatment, I was uanable to stand, He then struck me
several times with his rifle, then prodded me with his bayonet,
Mnally he let the officer come back but even with his help I was
uncble to walk, my left leg being uszless and uy right altogether
too painful, The Jups started screaming aguin and began belting
us boith with his rifle butt, Eventually, with the aid of another,
I managed to get along by swinging myself on their shoulders,

hen crossing the small bridge the three of us were struck many
times by the Japs on both sidese

(f) By these various means ull the prisoners were either herded
into the aresa or killed by shooting or bayoneting, or left dying
on the road.:

(g) Upon approaching the bridge over the parit all personnel had
to take off any ecguivment and throw on the road waiches, pens,
pencils - anything visible to the Jops except clothing.

(h) 4sfter crossing the bridge, alm>st everyone being hit as he
did so with a rifle by one or all ol the Japs who were on both
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sides, all prisoners had to remove their clothing except their
‘boots «nd socks &nd putties, which was thrown into a heaps The
clothes were thrown amongst the prisoners after a considerable
time had elapsed, during which they had be:n searched.,

(1) ome wounded mecn who hud been plecedby our own people upon a
table form and put inside an office truck, was seen by a Jap.
The table form was drag.ed out «nd left leaning ageinst the back
of the truck, mThe fellow had been dead for some time and become
stiff, The body was then propped up in &n upright position on
the tabletop. gituated in this position,y it created enormous
amusement to the .Jup concerned and was un object of ridicule to
many Japs afterwards,

Sis hen @1l bhad assembled the prisoners were maie to sit in the nude
in a eirele within a ring of Jap guards, There were approximately 110
LoIF, soldiers end 35 to 40 Indiaa army soldiers,

T lany Jopanese troops were by this time moving along the road, some
on foot, others on bicycles and many in lorries (both J.p and civilians),.
They were h.ulted often and on these occasions many would coimne over to
h.ve a look at the prisoners - about 150 nude bodies, unshaven, dirty
and blood clotted; some fresh cné meny reopened by movement and still
bleeding freely. To the Japs the prisoners were of great interest, some
showing mirth, others ill temper and wickedness; many hit or kicked (or
both) and punched wnd prodded men with bayonets, often if possible
kicking where & wound lay open, <nd so great was their satisfaction upon
any visible evidence of pain that the dose wes often repeated.

10, One Jap tormented prisoners by drawing his sword and wiping the
blood off it by repeatedly dipping it in the water in the parit and
draving it over sn officert!'s throat., Others he torments by making as
though to run them through or cutting their throats,

1l, 411 those on the outside of the group, and perticularly those
closest to the road were trezted worst. 1 was one of those near the road
heving been amongst the last to arrive at the assembly point, and was,
like others, kicked, struck and buttered many times, most always with
rifles e«nd on soue occasions with sword stabbers, The Jeps most always
used their rifle butts. The wound in my back attracted the attention

of meny who whenever possible took delight in kicking and belting the
Place where a wound was exposed..

12, leny prisoners were knocked unconscious when declt terrific blows
on the head with rifle butts,
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13, The Jup in charge of the prisoners was dressed quite differently
from the persconnel of the guerd., with dark colcured tunic, kreeches,
knee high boots, armad with pistol). and sword with some braid at the hilt,
and carrying a lerge map case. He gave orders to the guarde

14, The prisoners were forced into a little shed or garage which was
altogether too small in view of the following circumstances and actions,
as given below; .

(a) The Jups grunied. yelled, kicked, hit and prodded with
bayonets until most of *the prisoners had scrambled into the shed,

(b) some ware knocked unconscious and others killed during the
process,

(¢) soume walked on top of the more helpless, wounded men were
pushed and fell upon others and terrific yells of pain were
practically continuous,

(d) Those closest to the opening were first to be put into the
shed which soon became a stinking, scrambling hell hole full of
tortured, groaning, celirious wounded soldiers,

(e) Those still fit were unuble to do enything except for those
immecdietely around tham,

(f) The shed was z ch too small; fellows near the doorway, being
hit, kicked and prodded scrambled in, endsavoured in vain to
evoid hurtin, their comrades, There was not room even to put a
foot down without stepping on some part cf some body already with
bodies above and beliow,

(¢) Aguin and again fellows were forced in on top of others,

15, Mny men were greaning most of the time and there were yells,
repeated time eénd time again. by many for water, It was hours and hours
and with some a day or more since they had had a drink, for water and
those to issue it had been scarce during ths four days of the progress
eélong five miles of road, iuter was uot given to the prisoners,

16, Six officers were taken frem the greup and put together about six
‘Or seven yards away.

17 Requests were made ut first and vhen these were ignored dem.nds
were mede of the Jap in charge to provide medical attention and water
for the prisoners and also smoking meterials (of which mich of the
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prisoners own was lying in a heap nearby), but thess were ignored,
This Jap could read but refused to speak Inglishe.

184 4 little loter enother move was made and cguin the prisoners were
subjected to violence und terrific brutalities by the guards, This
time all the ORs were put into two rooms off some coolie quarters.
This was a long process; muny hao to be carried and, although not far,
steps hud to be climbed; the dead were not «llowed to be left, their
bodies too, hud to be tuken into these rooms. The worst wounded were
cguin treated wickedly; they were expected to move as fit and when
fiilin,, to do so were siruck, kicked ard junched, Imny incapable of
any wovement witihiout ascistance were bashed on the head und some were
killed by bayonettin. und & few were shots _ltogether, a large number
were woundea further by the Jups.

1Se- fiien all the ORs were in the rooms the doors were closed, The
six officers were made to sit on the steps in front of one of these
TOOmMS 4

20, Reguests und aendn;“ for mecicul cid, water and smokes were again
ignored and althou,h these were rede time und tiie aguin throughout the
whole period, they were i;nored by the Jur in charge,

(&)

21, Shortly efterwards on Indiun soldier who had been hiding in one
of the muny vchicles (vwhich were bein_ inspected wund searched by the
Jups) was broy,ht into the building. e ha¢ o« bad wound on one hundy’
the top purt of which had been blown awey, «nd one ley of his trousers
was saturuted with blood as though he were bleeding from some wound in
his thigh. He was immediately struck to tiie ground by & Jap and his
pockets cleaned out,

25 The CRs who had been jurmed into the sm- 11 rooms were scranbling
to the windows, grouning all the time, and yelling time and time again
for water and to be let out,:

»
23 The noise of bvatile was l‘ong gome; nowkere except in the far
distunce could be heard even a gumn, yccasionally, <n eneumy plane flew
overhedad .

24 Still going down the road were lerry after lorry of Japanese
soldiers «nd rwch artillery ccuipment, 7ery scldom Row was there a halt
but euch time the convoy did stop Jap soldiers inveriably cume across to
th:e building to see the prisonerss,

25« later, muny staff cars cume along, two of which were preceded by
tank and motor cyclists and followed similarly, They halted in front
of the place where the prisoners were ad mny Japs came over, They
were net by the Jup in charge of the prisoners amidst .mch souting,
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saluting, wnd bowiny by this Jup and the personnel of the guard. Cther
Jup soldiers in the are. wlso gave their attcntion to the party which
consisted of officers and scme very senior ones

26, One of these new arrivals wes outstanding and presumsbly the
coinwnder of the Jurcnese forces in the area -~ a short, steoky fellow,
. body suerd kept close with Lim alweys., He was well dressed, his
sword hanging low und with a great wount of brown cord at the hilt,
knee hi L boots and syurs all glistening., The attitude of the Japs

to this officer was as thou_h he vas scrething for and above any of
theny as though tc them Le was as a gode

27 T lockzd at the officer ;risoners, who were made to move off
the steps und stund; then mounted the steps, the body guard keeping
very close, «nd locked throu,h the window «t the mass inside of one of
tiie rooms.,

28, Upcn leavin_ the building lie spole to one of the oificers
aceoiperyin., him who in turn pessed on whut were «ppurently orders to
tlie Jup in charge of the prisoners,

2%+ Leavin, a couple behind this purty then departed., .again came
the yelling, bowing, and saluting., .t first the tanks, then the
cycles then the curs moved off. and after them were more cycles and
tanks, Along the roué wherever Jupanese were to be seen, they paid
their compliments to these two cars very reverently.

30. tne of those remainin, was asked to allow water to be given

to the prisoners, muny o. whom were all the time yelling for it. A
little jrlay boy who hud been with the convoy for some time was told
by him to et some. (Cn returning, héwever, the Jap in charge noticed
the contuiner and immediately hit it out of his hands and then kicked
the kiddy.

3le He was asked abecut medicul attention but scid that Jupanese
medicel men were too bugy. later asked for water, he said that if the
Jap in churge said, won, there wa: notiing he could do about the
matter, Then asked cculd the cigurettes be got from the heap of
rrisonerst belongings he replied; mot yeto.r

32« inother groupr of Jeps arrived wnd took many photographs and m-.de
notes, .fter this was completed, the ciarettes and water which had
been held out by the personnel of the guard to the prisoners, some

of whom hud been let out of the rooms for the purpose of being
rhotographed; but held just beyond their reach, were retained by the
Japs .nd thrown aw.y respeetively, which made worse the feelings of
the already near desp: iring men,
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33« The Ors vere aguin forced into the roci.

34. fThe Indian coldier, who had been knocked down in front cf the
building, was showing signs of regaining consciousness. Ile begen to
sit up but the Jup in charge kicked him over aguin. He sat up again
and this time was viciously kiocked manyv times, For a while the Indian
lay still, grocning <nd jubbering. Tae Jap yelled at him and took a
rifle from cne of the grarés z«nd bashed the Indian, then thrust the
bayonet into him time «nd time again. Then he was heaved into the
parit by the Jup thrusiin, the bayonet iatc his body ard heavings A
few secobds and the terridly blood-stainec, horrible face emerged above
the water and the Jap levelled the rifle and fired, The head jerked

““but remsined wrove water; there vas anctaer shot and this time the head

disupneared,

85 The traffic going south was not =0 thick now end moving more
freely, occasionally a motor cyclist or a cir gwoing north. fThere were
still a few who lef$ the rcad to see the prisoners or to poke about the
vehicles inguieitively, some occasicnally kicking a body to see if any
life was left in it,

36. About sunset the guards bagen to move about the house. }rchine
guns were brought from wherc thsy hed bean resting between tours of duty
and placed in front of the building.

37« The officers were then ticd togsther by the following methods.

Two guards approached the officers undoing as they cume « small coil of
rope which they tool: from their belts. The officers were then made

to stand, two of thew unable to du so without assistance and both
incupable of walking. Both hands of each officcr were tightly tied
behind his busk. ifter this, another length of rope was tied to the
wrists, passed up under the chin and around the neck and then down again
to the wrists, where it wuas pulled tight, thus forecing the hands well up
the back und rwking the rope terribly tight egainst the throat. The
second rope was not cut but wes passed on to the wrists of the next
officer; where a similar procedure was carried cui; then again on to the.
next and so 3n, so that ar well as maing wore cecure the tying of each
they were all linked together, puaring this process, the two Jars
treated the officers unmercifully, jevking che ropes this way and that
and many times lashing them sevewsly atout the head and body with loose
lengths, often kicliing ferociously at some pert of the bedy that was
swaying or svumbliag - throush %the Japs own tresatment - in the wrong
direction for them to d¢ whatev:r thev wishad. Taring this precedure

I was kicked in the legs ard lached abcut the body and head, purticularly
the lutter, meny times, this beipg mainly because I was uncble to stand
rroperly and each tims a rope was pulled I swayed this way or that, thus
continually hindering these Japs in their work,
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38, This done, th~ ORs were brou_ht out from the rooms. One by one
as they came dcwn the steps they were tied brutally with their hands
behind their backs; the first was then connected to the second but only
from wrist to wrist, not over or around the neck as with the officers,
then from the second to the third and so on, the first then being tied
to the nearest of vi:e smull line of officers.

S The suj;ly of rope run out wunt some Jups were bringing pieces
of wire und vith these were tying up ucny of the prisoners,

40, coupleints were muade to the Jups in churge regurdin, this ill-
treatwent. leurly every muan wus lashed, mostly «bout the head, wund
ticked by the Japs. 0Often a soldier who was morc difficult to tie
because of his wounds preventing his movement, was subjected to lashings
(sometimes now with wire) «nc kicking. oOccasionclly, wnother guard
secing his fellow soldier beating a prisoner, would rush up and add to
th.t prisonert's misery by striking him with his rifle butts

41+ This k. bit of one Jup comin, to another when that other was
ill-treating a prisoner, so as to add his efiorts also, occurred very
oftens

42, The Jop in cherge took no notice of the complaints.

43, It wag necessary to move the first lot well away from the steps
of the building to zllow the others to come down from the rooms ané be
tied, They were shifted back towuards the shed which before hud been
filled with prisoners. +hen the line of officers moved, cne of them
fell immediately. after bein. kicked in all jarts of the body and being
struck muny times with rifle butts, he was cut free from the chain,

I fell after very little movement, The Jups becume more annoyed
appurently bectuse I was the second one to full wnd T suffered similar
i1l treutment, but to a greater extent. T was kicked in all parts of
the body ¢nd struck m ny times on the head «né body with rifles. oOne
kick split ny right eyebrow which then hun, down over the eye, the
blood pouring over wmy face. .fter some kicks «nd hits the Jups would
force the others along, In this wiy I was dregged o short distance,
Then would comuence &guin unother reign of blows wndé then I would be
dreagzed a few more feet. Iventu.lly, the Japs cut me loose und left
me lying upon the grounc in a much worse, puinful «né aching condition
thon befores The vound in ny b.ck h.é been kicked wany times, which
kept it bleediny freeliy, as were all the other wounds wnd cuts I had
receivedas !

44 TOwirds the end, either the supply of rope «nd wire was exhausted
or the Jups grew tired of tying the prisoners as a few numbering about
20, were left untied, The rem:inder were tied in _roups of 20 to 25
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each. The dead were left in the rooms.

45, The prisoners were then mude to move along the front of the
buildings towurds, and then around, the south end. There were meny who
were unable to move ot «ll, and others because of bein; tied, could not
&et the necessary assistunce, so thut many stumbled, some fell, causing
others .lso to full, These were then kicked and struck, and bayoneted,
until as miny us could Go so were aguin standing, «ndéd then the line
iroceeded slovwly, some still being are g ed, of which a few occasionally
ruisea thiemsclves to their knees only to be ayein thrown off bulance,
juny of thicse were tlhen freed from the line and left lying., The Japs
grasped otiers «nd dre_.ed them along, souwe viere kicked, sore struck,

»others Gecply prodded with bayonets.

4be The irisoners were then herded into « group and the uassacre
which followed was to say the least most violent and wicked.

L7« Rifles and wachine guns belched forth a storm of death ~ a few
fell, u« group fell, . ifter the first while u few remained stunding -
these were eithcr struck by rifle fire or hit by a burst from a machine
sune Rifle und machine gun fire vent towurd any person who yelled,
Firin, vas indiscrimete and rmny men had fullen not becuuse of ‘death
but becuuse they hud¢ either been pulled down by others falling, or
because the indiseriuate firing hud only added to the number of their
wounds wné. the pain they sufiered.,

48, Some Jup soldiers then returned to the front of the building, and
begun tuking awuy the bocies of those who ha¢ been cut free from the
chuinse These they dra.._ed round the corner in the same direction as

the otlhiers had been tuken,

4Ye They left behind only one body; this being the furthest away from
the bodies of the two officers who had previously been cut free from
the ci.uine This wus I+ To me the fute of the prisoners was guite
evident, und .y only hope of escupe vus to endeavour to mwke the Jups
believe th.t I wus deuc, and ;erhups stand « cliunce of being left lying
there. I knew thut I should huve up, eared dewd enough yrovided thut

I reixdined guite still, Blood had been runnin, over iy face from the
wounc in iy eyebrow anc. also frow « few cuts in my head which had bled
freelys I was hutless; hua not done my hair for ages; I was unshaven
for more th.n five days; iy huir wes matted 1 ith blood ané dirt; my
neck anc¢ shirt top were very bloody; the wound in my back still bleed-
ing ond sieldl pool of blood on the ground; uy shirt torn to ribbons and
suturcfec with blood below the 1ound and «ll alon. the side; my shorts
were wlso blooGstoined, [y ri_ht leg from the knec down wus also
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bloody; tho old bundi.e on my left leg was long since dirty und dis-
coloured; one bayonet hud ;jone through the bandage and entered the calf
above the exit hole of the bullet; also above the buck of my left boot
%nother bayonet wound bled freely.

T l.y quite still, very uncomfortaeble .nd wching as I was still
bound securely and j.infully tight; the rope still beiny around ny neck
prevented e frou stretchin, my «rms, my hands still being in the
vicinity of ny shoulder bludes. gome Japs ceie, stood over we for a
vhile, «nd s if to reake sure one pushed e severul times with his boot
I «llovred my body to rove guite freely in whatever direction it was
forcea. One or more of theiw then kicked e in severul , laces. 'ith
this they left leavin, a few behind to fire in the direction of any
soundG Or whenver anyone noved.

50, jzny Japs went to the road and returned brin,ing many of the tins
of petrol which were c rried on our vehicles,

H e e . ~ EegRc.y
iy Sk They procecded to pour t:is over the prisoners, mweny of whom were
: I still consciocus,

52+ The prisoners were then set alight, and umid screaus and yells of
poin, fright, nervousness and delirium, burnt to death.

t ~

i g < I lay outside the building unable to move even just a little to

! a less achin, position, Thilst there the cutburst of curses wné¢ yells

tliwt had accomp..nied the beginuning of the firin, end had since somewhat
; subsided, wos not very long after revived aguin,

: _"”’5Ao I could see the flickers of a fire vhich oceusionally would burst
- out very brizhtly. The prisoners were bein; burnt, and uany were

i,' screcming «nd yelling terribly. There cue to me the smell of burning
! rag and then whot wes just as distinguishuble the odor of burnt flesh,.

F i Hha I h ¢ munaged to be 'dead! as fur as some of the Japs were

1 concerned und now was determined even more thun ever before thut no
m.tter whet puin I was sufferins, how -y body ached, or how uncoifortuble
or vli.t crwups I hud to endure, I woull rem.in faewud! until such time

«8 the Jups departed,

56e  Throughout the whole period Japs cecae irom the roac to see what
Wee going one In passing me sometimes I would only be pushed, other
times completely ignored, and on other ocousions individuals acted
unwercifully. How muny time T wus kicked, buttered with rifles by those
Jups pussing, I know not, but @ll the time I had to wmaintcin that
lifeless attitude.
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57T Jap personnel-for ages muintained a patrol about the area,
Qcecasionally v shot or shots would be fired., Muny times one or more

of them in their wuncerings cume across Ly body; some just passed by,
others would satisfy theuselves by previously used mcthods - kicking
and hitting mostly.on the head., Some unfortunatcly used their bayonets
most just prieking we in the back. @n two occasions they were more
ithan pricks; once the Jap jumped «nd grunted as he lunged forwurd but
fortunately he wuas too fer away ~nd the buyonet entered my side between
the ribs und apparently ¢id no hurm; the other when a bayonet point
struck my right elbow m.king it useless for many days; one Jap decided
ke woulé h.ove umy boots, and caused me much puin whilst he roughly
pulled them off my feet, .

58+  is time went on activity in the areu becume less and less, until
eventuclly there was no sign or sound of any Jup cbout. I waited long
after this before being certain thut no one wus p.trolling. I knew
that to be seen moving would be the end.

5% Mueh later, after I had forced myself from my bonds, which was a

very painful «nd long and tedious task - and got some water, I was met

by « sergeant end wnother soldier, both smelt very strongly of petrol -~
they had been with the group when fired upon and set alight,

50, sgt. Ccroft told me that they were amongst the few who had not
been tied, and had been together when the prisoners were fired upon,
they had fullen with the first burst of firing - neither of them hit -
and luy with the remainder. “hen the petrol wus brought from the road
tliey had both hud some thrown on them. Then the [roup had been set
alight. The fellow with Croft hed yelled out und wus imuediately fired
on. Sgte Croft then got this fellow and himself free from the heap of
men, had lain still uné quiet close by until the Japs left the area,

61. The soldier, whose neme I do not know, died when in the jungle
a short distance west of parit Sulong, on the following afiernoon the

23 Jun, h2,

62,4 sgte croft left me at first light on the morning of the 24 Jan
42, aceompanied by an Inglish soldier who had come to our position in
the jungle in the early hours of 23 Jun 42 anc who hal been cut off
from our forces when north of Parit Sulony.

63. Pto. O«FRobertson of 2/19 Inf Bn is re.orted to have seen
Sgt. Croft wbout two duys later (upprox 26 Jan 42). But as far as is
Enown ggte Croft hes not been seen since thet dite,
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6l After speading 35 days lying in ané crawling about the jungle ar
rubber pluntation area betwecn Parit Sulon: &nd Batu Panat, I was
cuptured by rmley policemen ana tuken to Parit Sulong police station
on the 27 Feb li2. I was still unable to walk, bad sufferca a grewt d
froi: my wounds, exposure, starvation and filth, and hed become very we
end dirty and lost a tremendous umount of weight,

65? i following duy 28 Februwry 1942 I was hunded over to Jup
scldiers by the :ulay rolice uand tuken by sowme of these Jups to Butu
Punat vhere I was left for some time outside a building approx South o
the town which was a Jupunese [In, convalescent Depot and pmospital
combined.

66, About sunset of thut dey a Japr cume to ms currying a piece of ro
this he pui round my necl: with a sliplknot. (¢alling for two ImGiwuns to
keep me, T was luken about 150 yards to & guard rocm, One the way, if
I at any time lugged bhack, vhe Jup gave the rope a severe pull which
Jerked my neclt considerably and I was muny times prevented from breath
as the rope pullsd too tigat on my throat.

67-. Upon arrival &t the gmerd room - which hié an npen front, the Ju
cume out (nd waiched us I wus beinyg lashed to ¢ post, ith uwy buck
against it, rope wus firsht wound around my thrcat «nd the post, then
ovar my chest., lore rope was brought, my hands tied behind my back,

&06 the rope thea wound round end round; until I was securely and tigh
" tied to the post from my neck to ny feet,

7 . . . ~ e
68, The personnel of the guard then went past in single file, each
either hitting, punching or kicking me as they passed e

into the guard roomg

€9, so I remaineé until well into the night., Several times the guar

corrinder cume out =nd locked ut me. Iy beard greatly amused him und .

would stund liughing as he pluclked huirs out of it one by one, Zach
time u relief came out of the room I was punished in some wuay or other
and aguain when the relieved ones returned. Generally by being smacke
or punched on the fzce und chest or kicked.

T on the afiernoon of the next duy, the 1 farch 1942 I was taken b;

a Jap guuird to a hospitul. Here u Jup doctor refused to admit me and
refused also medical attention, and said he would heve to send me
elsewhere as thie hospital wus too full,

7le I was teken to the RLUTU TLJL.T Police Station and there put into
a cell vhere there were & Imglish soldiers who had been brousht there
a few duys before, when cuptured a fuw miles out of that town,
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72 ¢ne of these men was very ill and sufferin_ sreatly from bad
wounds in shoulder. and head,

73 Duaring the following 17 duys thic numbcrs were increased to 22,
some of whom were wounded. The followir, concitions existed,

(2) Hedicul attention wus refused each time reguests for some
were made,

{b) 4ilthough asking many uimes for scap, cnly on one cccasion
was a very small piece provided, Iverybtody wos wery filthy
and clothes cdirtye

(¢) Tood wery incdequate -~ smounting to %wo smull meals each
day of about one third of a pint of rice,

(1) Omnes Jz2p often walked into the section of the gaol znd
calling on a man, punzh him on the fuce and chest and finall
with one terrific blow, mostly alwaysio the face, knock the
fellow back into the cell,

(¢) On two occasicas & man wus vuken into a corridor and made
fight the Jap .. receiving all the blows and not being allowe
(under the penclty of much more severs itreatment) to hit bac

(f) Two Indisn irmy soldiers were sometimes put in front of sa
of these men and made strike them on the face.

(g) Cchinese wiho were locked in the gaol were often severely il
treated. One was put into a strai_ht jacket after being
beaten about tl.e head and body by & pair of crutches (both o:
which were smushed into snwll pieces during these beatings;)
and starved until he died,

Tiig on 17 jureh 1542 the 22 prisoners com.enced & jourmey to XUila
LLIPUR.

75« TUpon urrival at FLUALG railwuy after spending the night of 17/1
March at AYER HIT.I" we were tulen across the rails «nd made clean out
a filthy diriy caitle truck, uifter this all were put inside ané the
door clused., . fter some time during which the truck was shunted back
and forth severul times; it wes tttached to & goods truin and set off
northverda

76,  On wrrivel st GIInS, we wulked to the police burracks. Everyon.
was weuk ond myself still unablc to valk without assistence,
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77 The following morning 19 lurch 1942 we were taken eurly to the
roilwey station und put into an open coul truck the bottom of which
was covered thickly witl coal dust anc¢ refuse,

785 It was unbearably hot in the open truck during the duy, and so:
of the men becume very ill and »ilious.

79 From XUiALs IULPUR railwuy station we were Heken to PUDO GAOL
in thut town arrivin, abous 0130 hrs 20 mrch 1942, .An untidy,
unshaven, filthy dirty, partly clothed, unrecognisable group in
tattered garments and mostly barefocted (some suffering a good deal
from weunds and illaness, ané all very weak from starvaition and expost

80, Soon after ny crrival there I weighed mysell wnd found thuat I
wee O stone 7 pounds having lost § stone 3 pounds (or 73 pounds)
since going into action 63 days previously.

This is the tenth and last page of the evidencecf IX 71148
Lieut, Ben Charles H.CKITY, 2/29 Battalion.

I certify thot the above evidence is true wnd correct.
Taken &nd sworn before me at

Sydney on 12 Yovember 1945

)

)

Y B.C,HACKTEY

) Lieut. IX 71145
/3/ ie Memsfield ) 2/29 Brs deI s
)
)

Commissioner
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IV T7E MATTIR OF J.PANESE VAR CRINMES AMD
IN THE I'ATTER OF KUALA LUNMPUR CAMP I’ALAYA.

Evidentiary Documcnt MNo. 5085.

APFT THAFTIT.

Zri P 31600 laurence, John William, SEEKINGS, of the 2nd Battalion
Cambrid. echire Regiment, with pernenent hone address at 55, Xneesworth
strcet, royston, Herts, rake oath and say as followss-

1. T arrived at KUALA LUMFUR camp cn February 1 1942 and remained there
until the caiup was closed, &t the end of the second week in October l9h2.7
The senior officer (British) was Coleonel HARTIGAN of the Royal Cherwal
Rifles, Indian irmy. He handed over later ©0 (oloncl FITZPATRICK of an
Indian Ary unit. The camp interpreter wes !mjor 0,B..., North of the 3/17th
Dhobra Reginent.

’2. ¥UAL: LUPUR was apparently used by the Japanese as & collecting
“centre for allied prisoners who were captured in Melaya. In February 1942
about 250 British prisoners were accormoduated there; by spril strencti
increased to about 700,

T sccommodation for pritish other ranks consisted of & compound about
L0 yards squire, officers were put into what was formerly the femle werd of
KUALA LUMPUR prison. accormodation was very crauped and all ranlts had to
sieep literally shoulder to shoulder, The female ward was & building inside
the compound, and the whole camp occupied a portion of FUAL:L LUMPUR gaol,

48 a result of many protests the Japanese allowed us, in Murch, to use &
small roorm in the prison for the sick, In April we were given a wing of

the prison and the use of the prison hospital, In My we were handed over
the whole of the prison and from that time aeccormodation was satisfactary.

L. Food consisted of rice only, togther with an issuc of salt and
drinking water which we ot from the main waler supply in the prison. This
food wes very incdequate and rcuained so despite the later additicn of a
suell issue of ¢reen vegetables at the beginning of septewber.] By that tine
officers began to receive pay frowm the Japunese which enabed then to
purchase food from outside the prison, Eritish other ronks had received
working pay during this period but this was insufficient to purchese enough
food to meclie the Japanese ariy issue up to an adequate quantity.

15. puring the first 3 nonths the death rete anong the prisoners was
107 and about 166 men died; most of these cases were battle injuries and men
suffering from fever and battle exhaustion. The Japunese provided no
bandoges, no medicines and no medical attention whatever,) The only equip-
ment in our hands was what we werc able to buy secretly through lccal
inhabitants,.

6, I do not know who the J.panese commandant was when we entered the
camp but until 1ay as far as I recall the cuwp was in charge of a Jupanese
cerjeant. . fter that date Lt. MIZUTiNA (spelleg phonetically) took over,
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This men was responsible for our rations being about orequarter under
weight. 1We succeeded in securing the Japanese ration scale for prisoners
of war, and weighed such food as we received and checked it against this
scale, when we corplained to IIZUTAIA the scales were tested in his
presence, They were found to be correct and were promptly impounded by
VIZUTANA,

Te The Japanese interpreter was & civilian employed by the Japanese
Arny by the name of TANAKA (spelled phoneticzlly); +this man on the whole
was co-operative and helpful. British officers were not forced to work
but British other ranks were enployed daily frowu about 0S00 hours till
1800 hours in various jobs including collecting scrap netal, repairing
bridzes and assisting in the Jepanese supply dwps end they received pay
for this work,

8. vhen the caiuyp was closed in Qetober 1942 the camp &djutant, Captain
Anthony Gardner of the Ioyals took the cwip reeords to CH.NGI. I do not
know what happened to then.

SWORN by the said paurence John
SEEKINGS at 6 Spring cardens in
the City of westriinister this
menth day of January 19,6

(Ssigned) 7J,W. SEEKINGS.

SN A N

pefore e,

(signed) 2,G, MASON
Captoin,
lecal staff,

office of the Judge idvocate General,
LONDON, S.W.l.
I certify that this is a true copy of the original effidavit,
(sigued) RDL KELLY
Lecal staff,
Office of the Judge Advocate Generel,

certified tru copy of original affidavit,

(sicned) R,B. LAMBE, Ltl.Colonecl,

18th spril 1946, ALG War Crimes. HY ALFSEA.
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IN THE MATTER OF JAPANESE WAR CRIVES AND
IN THE MATTZER OF THE ILLTRELTIMENT OF
ERITIS” PRISONERS OF VAR AT FENLNG, MALAYa.

APRPIDLAT I

AE, Captain peter Rainier iDAIS, 1/8 Punjab Rééiment, with permanent houe
“address at 20, Nupier gordens, Kent, moke oathi and say as follows:-

i, I was captured in penuang on 19 December, 1941, and was taken to
tie civil gaol there on the sume day where I rewained until I was trans-
ferred to the gaol at TAIPING about the beginning of February 1942. 2nd
Lieutenants ¥, GOULD and DOMMINY of the 2/1 gurkhas and ¥, P.TTISON of the
Leicestershire Reginent were also teken to the gaol with me. The four of
us and about 60 Rritish other ranks were confined in one room which only
allowed a space of one yard per uan., No beds or furniture of any kid was
provided and we Lhad to slsep on the bare stone floor.

24 pur fcod eonsisted of ubout 12 ounces of rice a day, with an
infinitesimnal swmount of vesetcbles ond without (ny salts

b The scnitary crrongements consisted of one, or ot the iiost two,
lovoetorics for <ll of us. These were in the scme room in which we had to
cect and sleep cni very soon the dr.ins becciie blocked. This resulted in
there bein; a continuous vile stench in the room. )

4. I wos thae senior officer in the room upcrt from the first doy when
wje. EJR. ANDREV.s 1/8 Punjeb Reginent, was there. He was tcken away the
following dey end was sent to the meihlend. There did not appear to be any
Japanese officer in the gacol nnd we were uarded by the Juponese soldiers,
gikh policemen and Malay warders under the cormand of a Japanese NCO. We
were frequently visited by a Japunese 2ud Iieutcnant whose name I do not
know, but vhom I toock to be an Intelligence officer as he frequently
interrogated e and had olsc sowething to do with the loezl broadcasting
service, fe were also occosionally visited by the Japanese cormiendéer of
the islond vwhose name I do not know either,

f5. Sick wen were not acllicwed to leave the roon and had to be attender
“to there. Dpespite freguent requests by me to Jupanese 2nd Lieutenant and
the Jepinese corrander of the islind that the sick nen should be allowed

to go to hospital the Japanese refused to allow this. No attention was
peid by ther to cormplairnts regarding any other nmatters sueh as food,
sanitary conditions, etc.

6. One Gy CSiM ROBERTS of the Ieicestershire Regiment was taken out
of the room by the Jopunese guard. He was brought back within an hour
in a very fuint condition, He slowed re his injuries which consisted of
bruises and weals., He told me he hed been beaten by a Japanese in front
of the gikh and mloy warders, severel of vhom hed also beaten hinafter-
wards on Jupenese orders., |



Evidentiary Docwient 1o, 5004, ¥
23

T thile T was in tlis roon I wus freguently asked by the Japanese
2nd lieutenant to broadcast for the Jupanese., When I refused to do so he
é¢id not threaten me in any way or atterpt to use physical force,

{8. After I had been in this room cbout 3 weeks, 2nd Liesutenant

BGOULD and I were taken away and put in solitary confinement in two con-
deuned cells opposite each other, We were kept there for about 5 weeks.
our food was nuch the same as we had been issued with before. Very often
vhen the guards brought us our food they refused to open the door to put
it in, This meant that we had to teke it through the bars of the cell and
tl:is necessitoted turning the dish sideways so that any liquid in it ran
out, Our latrine buckets remained in our eells all day and all night exse
for five minutes per day which we were given to eupty then.

9, one day within the first two weeks of our being placed in solitar;
confinement 2nd Iieuterant GOID was teken away by a Japanese guard. 4
few hours later he was brought back and he told me that he had been taken
to Broadcesting Fouse vhere lie lL.ad been beaten ur, He described this
beating up to me as follows; First of all he wis slapped in the face, He
was then knocked unconscious with a blow from :¢iy iron bar on the back of
the head and brought round by hoaving water poured over him. Next he was
beaten with the iron bar on the buck and finally he was blindfolded and
orange sticks were pushed under one of his nails. He said that all this
had been done on the orders of the Japanese 2nd Licutenant who was present
throughout, He showed e throwh the bars of his ccll the weals on his
back, the lerge lurp on the back of his head and a red ixrk under onc of
his fingernuilsiy

10e After being in solitary confinement for about 5 weeks 2nd it,
COULD and I together with the remainder of the prisoners in the gaocl were
transferred to TLIPING Geol. 2nd Lieutcnants DOMIINY ard PATTISON also
spent the last two wecks of our stay ot PEN'NG in solitery confinement in
the condeimed ecells,

SWORN by the above-nciied peter Rainier
Adams, at 6 Spring gardens in the city
of westminster, this Fourth day of
verch, 1946,
Before me,
(Signed) A M, BELL-}.CDON.ALD,
e jor, Lesal staff,
Mil, Dept. Cffice of the Judgse Advocate Genersl.

(signed) P.R. 4DaMS.

NN s N

certified true copy of original effidavit,

18tk 4pril 1946, (sigred) R.B. LAMBE, It. Colonel, '
4hG War Orimes, HQ AIFSEL,

“
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THE UNITID ST.TES OF LMERIC.. +»ND GTHIRS

v

LRLTT, Sadao and others.

i I, ROY H.ILFORD STEVENS cf 46 princess strect, Xew in the state of

i “Victoria forierly V39043, Injor R, STLvENS of 2/12 Field .mbulance,

b ke oatl: end says-

!

{ 1, In 1mrek 1945 the Jupcnesc sent several worig pertics from

Fiangi to Johores I wus scnt with than us Senior pedical officer to
cstablish © hospitel for the eure of these parties. 7Te were billeted in

condermed barracks cxtreiely overcrowded.

|

2. Duily rotions counsisted of 6 to 7 ounces of rice, 4 ounces of
tapiocc root wnd 2 ounces of raize,which had cll the _rain ecten out by
weevils,ond potuoto tops. In addition cn average of half ounce of fish

i per man weekly was supplied. Ve received a very siall cmount of .rericar
! ped Cross supplies arounting in all to one tin of bully beef per iLan.

3. .8 to sanitction the Jupwnese insisted on o pan systenbing used
becouse thcy sold the night soil to natives ¢s menure. This pen systen
caused a good deul of dysentery ws a result of infection by flies.
Representations to the Jopanesc to allow us to put in bore holcs were
refused.,

i b Priscners of wor were eng.ged in defence works for the Jupunese
acking tunnels by nining into the side of hills for use as rnachine gun

i posts in the event of invasion, No sefety mining prec:sutions were exer-

| ciscc by the Japonese with the result that several were killed and

| injured by the foll of earth. Work wos extreinely hord continuing for lo:

! hours in a stifling atriosphere as there wos no proper air supply.

B e were inforied by the Ilﬁcrlul Jepanese iriy that as these

i men were enguged on security worl:, in the event of invasion by our force:
! we would be & nuiscnce .nd as we hod infornction wi.ich ikt be valuable
we would be irmedietcly disposed of if a landing wus 1ede.

6. mhc average loss of weight per |wen whilst din this cerp was abut
five pounds per nonth and these ien had been stubilized at a very low
level before going to Johere,

Te whilst ot this cap several acute cbdoixinal cases necessitating
urgent surgery occurrcd, conditions werc rest unfovourable for najor

surgery at this caup, while at Kiangi about 6 miles away there was a larg
hospital with adequate surgiccl fueilities, plthough it wes pointed out

|
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to the Irpericl Jopanese .Lriy cuthorities that the results of surgery under
the conditions prevailing woas very doubtful periidission to evacuate cuases to
Riangi wes refused, In one case of ccute appendicitis the Japanese in
cuorse of caip grimtcd perivission for reroval of the case to Kiangi but
on crrival ot Iiengl ecdiission there was refused by the Jepanese in charge
«nd the cuse had to be returied to Johore «nd operated on under the
extrenecly unfavourcble conditions therc,

S Four duys before the surrcnéer the attitude of the Japoncse
chongod corpletely, rations were inereased and nediecal supplies that he
previously been withheld were ncde avuilublc.:]

gworn at Xew inr thce statce
of victordec this the -
dey of pctober 1946,

SN

(signed) R,H., STEVENS,
Before e,

(signed) P, RETCHFORD, J.FP.
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The Internutional
jdilitary Tribunal

for Bhe Ry Foghs

THZ UNITID ST.TES OF LMERIC. .ND OTHTRS

v

LRKI, Scato und othcrs

¥ F DA VT T,
{3, Benjarin ceorge MLPIER.CKE of Ih9 Deoa Street, slbury, in the gtaie of
& +
New south vales, makc ocatbth and say:-

i
!
i : B Prior to discLarge I vas VX37271 1/Cpl. Benjeiin George M.PLIBACK
' ef 2/29 pn. and wos token prisoner of war on 12 Nareh 1942 near XKULIAX in

| PRliyc,

I

2 I was captured with Lieut. COOTLS, Cpl. IL.NNERS, ad Pte NICHOLLS

11 of 2/29 B.., by & porty of immlays cné Chinese cné we were token to'e

rubbcr plantation about 6 to 8 idiles north-vest of KUL.I. Aifter we were

| there about tlrce Lours ¢ purty of 7 jJupenese srrived in cherge of an

| NCO weuring o svord tnd pistol. We were therc eccl bound by the heuds with

jrope «né ttucked to euch otlier by/fropes

! the

‘3. The Jupenese NCO drew- the cttedion of the other Jepinesc to sores
on the legs of Lieut. COOTLS and irinaced. Lb this a Japencse solGier

L a tormy gun raised it and uppecred to be going to shoot Lieut,

COOTES .and then ke lowered the gun at o wora fron the NCO.

i e mwe were then placed in o truck and driven towards KULAI.

t Thile on the wuy the Joponese NCO noticed sores on the legs of Ptee.
NICHOILS und drew the attention of the others to thez. FHe then drew one
of our bayonets znd started to beat ©ll of us with it, particularly Lieut,
CQOTES and Pte. NICHOLLS whor: he hit on their sores and @lso jubbed with
the point of the bayoucts

Bia After travelling about threc riles the truck stopped ot o bridge
cnd the reope conneeting us with Lieut. COOTES and Pte. NICHOLLS wes cut
an@ they were ordered out of the trucl and taken to @ creek about 20 yards
aveys wherc they were shot by the Jopunese with the tory gun. We all saw
thei. shot, The Juponesc then ccie back to the truck leaving the bodies of
Lieut. COOTES and Pte. NICEOLLS where they iell. |

gworn at . dbury, in f$he ) (signed) B.G. M.PLIEB.CK.
gtate of ¥.S.%. this the )
30th duy of Septeuber 1946)
Belore L€,
(signed) V..I JOBUSON, J.F.
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Statenent.

sumary of examination of CHE SiaY LZOK (malo) Chinese (Teochew) living at
11, Jalan Soldah, metu pehat, 43 years of cge, duly sworn states;

on the 27 February 1942 at about 1000 hrs., I was called to the
Batu pahat police gtation to register. Ten of us, all Chincsgi;were then
teken to the office of the chief police officer, where we were asked our
ncnes, nationality and occupation. This was «ll recorded and we had to
give our thumb print as signature. e were then asked if we had done any
charitable work for Chince i/c replied wesn, The Head Japanesec Military
Police then said ryou chinese have becn donating thirty cents per head per
month to China to buy armmnition to kill at least thrce Japanese. e
replied wyesn, ,ifter this we werc rclecased;at the same time we were ordcred
to bring in five Chinesec each who had also helped Chinc, within 24 hours
or we would ogcin be dectaineds ‘¢ did not produce these men so wegﬁpre
arrcsted and our hands tied behind our backs, Ue were then beaten with rifle
butts until we were unconscious, ¢ were then revived by water, and beaten
again. At about 2300 hrs, 28/2/42, we were throvn into a lorry and then to
the police station and locked in o eell, the ropes tying our wrists was cut
with a knife., It was not until 0300 hrs, lst imr, 1942 that we all regained
consciousness, this was owing to the loud beacting of a gong. e asked for
weter and were given some to drink,

At dawm, lst jrxrceh 1942, the Japanese Military rolice ordered

CHOO YONG CHWEL, the senior police detective to go and arrest some more
Chinese and bring them to the police gtation. He went .out cnd brought sone
back, At the scme time some Mnleys brought in some ITuropean civiliens.
Altogether there wos about 100 personse. The Japancse Police then got 2
lorry cnd transportced us in batches of cbout 35 to the jungle on the PONTIAN
RO:D, Sowe of us werc dropped at 24 wmile and the rempinder ot the 5th mile.
Those at 2; mile had their hands tied behind their backs with wire. e were

hen lined up, machine gunned and boyonetted. The Japanese, thinking we
were all dcad, left the spot.j

I heard 2 cry from behind cnd it came from one of ny fricnds, who
had a stomach wound with his intestines lHanging out. I asked him to help
untie the wire from ry wrists, he did so, cnd passed out soon afterwards,

I escaped and walked to SEMNGGARAN where I stayed for two nights.

I then returncd tc the Srd mile (SAM CHONGO) to & hut, belonging
to myself, caught a dog, killed it and removed its lung cnd made medicine
to cover my wounds.

AV MUAR I went to a doctor, who wanted to cmputate my crm; T did
not want this, so ran awey cnd went to M.LACC. where I went to o friend,
naned TAN SOON HiING, living at @ place called BACHANG, 24 miles fron
Mclacea, he gave e rmedicine, food and money. I then went on to Xucla
Lunpur and remcined there until 29th geptember 1945, when I returned to
Eatu pahat.
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{_of the people shot on lst Jmreh 1942, 56 werc Chinese and about
60 were white civilions,

The white eivilicns were buricd at the 3 and 4 mile. They are
still there untouched, the place is marked on rubber trees. I produce five
photos of wounds on myself. Two photos of thc 5th mile pontian Road. Two
photos of the 2] mile ponticn Roud. Three cartridge cuscs taken from the
scene of the murder of 5th milc. Cne bullet token from the rwurder scene at
the 2} milc. oOne statement written in Chinese., Onc list also in Chinesc of
sore of the dead. T have also spcetacles, rings and fountcin pens of the
dead in ry possession.

(signed) CHET SI.Y LIOK.
Interpreter.

I certify thet I duly translated the above swmory to the witness in his
own langucge, prior to his signature which aypears cbove.

(signed) LIM LI.NG CHULN,
Taken down by me this 12th day of Mreh 1946.
(Signed) E.i, CHARD., IT. R.N.V.H.

Detailed to examine the above by the Commander-in-chief, 4illied Iand
Forces, south Fest Asia,

certified True Copy of original affidavit,
18th ,pril 1946 (signed) P.S. LLMBE, Lt. Colonel

LAG var Crines
HQ ALFSCu.
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Torture of Madam COI KFH HONG In PENANG GAOL.

FORM_OF_STATEMOHT |

Summary of examination of (Name): AHMAD BIN CHETEH.
(Occunation):- FX-"O0LICE CONSTABLE DURING BEITISH RULE.
(ADDRESS):- 252, PERAK ROAD, °ENANG.

duly sworn states, I am 32 years of age of BRITISH-PROTECTER

nationality and born at:- PENANG (MALAY).
My permanent home is 252, PunAK RCAD. PENANG,

~ A

I am at present confined in PENARG GAOL.

During the Japanese occupation I served as a Sub-warder
at Penang gaol. Towards the end of 1943, T saw an H.P,
WASHIO, assisted by an interoreter, inflict torture on a Chinese
woman during the course of her being interrogated. ©She was
abou* middle-~age, and had recently bzen arrested, Wassio
opened this womzn's ‘rousers and burnt the hair around her pelvic
varts with a lighted opiece of naner. Then Vassio tied a rope
round her waist, zné¢, after binding it round her wrists, attachad
the other end to a motor-cvecle: then Wassio proceed to drive
the motor-cycle at a quicker pace than it was nossible to rune.
The woman was »tvlled alecne whe zrouvnd about ten vards and then
lost consciovsness. They carried her into the office, and 1
saw no more of her, I never saw her in any of the cells during
my subsequent veriods of duty. She must have died as a resvilt
of the torture or been ta%en away from the »nrison.

On rany occasions in 1243 and 1944 I saw Wassio anply
different types of tortvre on various Chinese, Malay and Indian |
nrisoners. On three ocecasions irn late 1943 and early 1944 1 saw }
Wassio avnly the water tortvre to Chinese nriserers, and on
all these Bhree occasions the Chirese died as a resvit of the
water torture. Wassio was cefinitely *he man responsible for the
killing of these three Chinese, who died in the prison yard
straight after the water torture, I know that they were deads
because the bodies became blue anc stiff. I cannot say what
were the names of these three Chinese who died.

(Sgde) Ahmad
Sworn before me (signature) (descrivntion)
Special Investirator. F. W. WARD, Capt. (rank)
This 2ist day of Feb,. 464

Detalled to examine *the above by the Commander-in-Chief, -
Allied Land Forces, South %ast Asia,

(Authority:- ALFSEA War Crimes Instruction No. 1, para 7).

Fxarined by me with the original Afficdavit and I
certify this *o be 3 true copye.

(Sed.) R.B, Larube
Lt. Colonel
12 April 46 AAG War Crimes HQ ALFSFA
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FORM OF STATEMENT

Sumnary of examination of $- YONG LEN MOI (lliss)
Occupation:- Dress-making.
Address - 183 PENANG ROAD, PENANG.,

duly sworn states, L am 19 years of age, of STRAITS-BORN
CHINESE nationality and born at Penang.

My permenent home is 183 Penang Road, Penang.

I am at present living at ~do- ~do-

I was arrested, on the 29th October 1943 by a party
of Japanese M.P.'s and officials, amongst whom was WASSIO
and an interpreter called KWEH T IONG HIN, My grendmother,
by name Madam O0I KEH HONG, had previously been arrested
on 21st October 19/3.

On being arrested, I was placed in the same cell as
my grandmother, who had been in good health at the time of
her arrest, although now she was ill and she told me that
she had been beaten daily between the time of her arrest
and my own arrest. On the evening of my arrest Wassio beat
me with a stick, and burnt my arms and back with cigarette
ends.

Two weeks after my arrest I saw my grand-mother tortured
by Wassio and Kewh Tiong Hin. Wassio tied my grand-mother's
hands behind her back, and suspended her from the ceiling
for about an hour, at the end of which she wss unconscious.

While my grand-mother was thus suspended, Vassigﬁfhree

heavy iron weights at her legs and feet. TED

On one occasion, at which I was not present but was
informed by my grand-mother, the latter said that she had
been tied behind a motor-cycle, and dragged along the ground

\ ‘until she was unconscious.

Gradually, through periodic beating by Wassio and due
to the inasdequate feeding, my grand-mother became very weak,
her arms being so crippled by the beating that she was
unable to lift them. Eventually internal troubles commenced
as the result of her torture, and her left hand became paras-
lysed, and my grand-mother died on 19th August 1945, in the
same cell as I was occupying in PENANG Gaol.
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(Signed) YONG LEN MCI (in Chinese scrint)

Interpreter.

I certify that I duly translated the above swmary to the
witness in her own language, prior to his signature which appears
above. -

(Signed) S. D'ORVILLE,
Interpreter.
Sworn before me this 25th day of February 19L6.

(Signed) F.W. WARD

(Rank) Cant.
(Description) Special Investirator. %
Detailed to examine the above by the Commander-in-Chief, o
Allied Land Forces, South East Asia. ' Vi
(Authority:- ALFSEA War Crimes Instr. No. 1, para 7)./

Examined by me with the original affidavitsand.
certified to be a true copy.

18 April 1946. (Signed) 2.5, LaN
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I, "illicn Johm pavies, an officer of His Mnrjesty's Forces ot HO, LIFSE.,
havirg been duly sworn stote;

on the 18th February 1946 ot IPoH, Maluya, I ceted as
Prosecuting officer at the trial of sgt, YOSHIMIR. Ikio, of the
Japanese Yermped mmi, who was charged with illbreating civilian
residents of TpOH,

Part of the abstract of evidence in this case were relevant
portions of written statement by Mrs. ...C. K.TH7G4SU, During the tricl
the acccused chenged his plea from Ndot Guilty to Guilty end the absvract
of evidence was submiiited to the court under R.?, 37 B. The Court asked
for the original statemert of Mrs. ..C, ¥athigasu to be handed in. I
handed in the original statement including the irrelevant portions. 4
true copy of the said stotement is anncxed hereto and marked exhibit
nie and sigred by me. /

gworn befcre me (signed) '.J, DAVIES

Mijs Ruis
this 18th day of _pril 1946.

(Signed) CHARLES PILL, Capte Res.
An officer detciled to examine the cbove by Commander-in-
chief, /,llied Iand Forces, Scuth Fast ,sic.
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[ I, Mrs. 4,C. KATHIGASU nee SYBIL DALY of 141 Brewster Road,
Ipch, make the following statement;-

|
l
¥ ! I wus arrested on the lst .ugust 1943 in Papan at 9.50 and
’ ‘ taken to Ipoh Central police Station that same night.' 4 week later I was
charged for treating; providing foodstuffs, and supplying medicincs,
clothing and money for the members of the Anti-Japancse Campaign (but the
Japanese have always called us Commmnists).

I daresay that my arrest had a lot to do with professional
jealousies and this added morc fuel to the fire when the C,I.D., who were
spying on me for the past six months, obtained proofs from several of our
members who were arrested previcusly and had turned traitors, by pointing
me as the one who treated them.

i letter from Headquarters fell into their hands made matters
worse. I was branded as a spy owing to several questions in that letter
which I had to report to Headquarters regarding Jap Military Movements in
town,

In all the tortures that I went through not once did Y betray any
of my members or furopeans hiding up the hills - so I invented a story
saying that I was forced to treat them under the threat of being shot, and
that all questions asked in the letter was answered with the words »I don't
knowwr, T stuck to this to the last,

{“Hcre arc the list of my tortures:-

(l) mater.
(2) Ncedles pricked in between my finger-nails.
| /. (3) Iron rods werchecated in the fire, ond then applied on my
| i legs and back.
| ‘ (4) slaps and clenched blows were rained constantly on my face,
i (5) I was mode to stand in the middle of the room with Japs in
\ i the formation of four at each corner of the room kept banging
| 1 arm-chairs on my head until I collapsed on the floor,
i 4 (6) canes from one inch to three and a half inches were used to
| é thrash me, many were broken or split in several pieces.
(7) Pinching my arms and lcgs was another favourite pastime of the
of the Japs till they were guite sore, swollen and very painful,
(8) cCanes with blunt ends were thrust into the sockets of both my
knee-caps and the Jjaps began twisting the cane.
(9) 4 long cene was placed between the fingers of both my hands,
with one Jap holding the tips of my fingers and ancther
i supporting my clbows, while two other Japs hung on cither
ends of the cane playing a see-saw stunt thereby tearing the
flesh in between my fingers,
(10) I have been ju-jitsued a few times,
(11) Kicking me with their heavy boots was their daily greeting
which lasted throughout each statement.
(12) I was hung up by onc leg, head downwards for several hours
at a tims.
(13) I stayed in the Central police Station for 3} months and was fed

g
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on 4 tchils of tapioca in the evening and a coconut-shell of
sago congee mixed with a few grains of rice in the morning,.

41l these tortures were administered by the Japs alone and as
they were constantly changed I cannot remember them nor do I know their
names. I was always carried back to my cell in a very dazed and collapsed
condition .J;’

A8 regards M.,P. YOSHIMJRA I was taken by him to M,P, Headquarters
at Gopeng Road 3 months after from the Central police station charged with
listening to radio news at papan. After admitting the radio charge I was
asked to cnswer gquestions again regarding the help and scrvices rendered to
the inti-Jap campaign. Since M,P, YOSHIMUR. could get nothing more further
in the motter he used the most painful torture on me - as I had to choose
between duty and honour and the life of my child,

{ My child was hung from a trce about 10 to 12 feet in height,
ith a fire blazing under her, while I was tied to a post, and lashed with
a big stick which broke in two.; YOSHIIMURA vas shouting at me to speck out
ond speaking out meant death for thousands of people up in the hills. Wy
child answored for me »pe very brave, Mumy. Don't tell. 7T will both die,
and Josus will wait for us in Heaven cbover, On hearing thesc words, I
asked YOSHIMIR. that he can cut those ropes and burn my baby. I told him
that my answer is no, and I would never tcll, A4ll I can remember is as
they were cutting the rope, God answered my prayer., Some Jop Officers took
pity and ordered my child to be tcken down. She was sent home cnd I was
sent back to my cecll. I stayed over a month at the M.P., Headquarters wherc
I wvas sent to Betu gojah jail,

| My diet consisted of small cups of compressed rice with few
grains of salt, and 2 tumbler tubes of water in 24 hours., No bath and
change of clothings, The cclls were full of vermins, fleas and bugs,
The night soil bucket which consisted of a kerosene tin was emptied when
it pleascd them to do so. Iy legs were gradually becoming wecker from the
Police sStation and after my arrival at patu Gajeh jail, I lost the use of
my legs up till today. I wus tried and recommended to be sentenced to
death, which was comwmted later to penal servitude for life. The food
was thoroughly rotten right through, ond six months ago I was put into a
dark cell by the Jop superintendent, NAK.JURA, who put me on M,P. diet and
one suit of clothes, which I wore till ry rclease. No bath nor any sort of
covering was given and I was made to fell the bitter eold at night. This
was because I refused to stitch puttecs and socks for Nippon soldiers
fighting at the purma front,

I have read this stotement and it is true,

(sed.) SYBIL KATHIGASU,
(*’itnessed) SPEID!.INDE.
This is exhibit m.» referred to in the sworn statement made by me this
18th day of ipril 1946 being a true copy of the original statement of
Mrse. 4,0, Kathigasu,
(sgde) ' .J. DLVIES
pefore ne, Maje Rode
(sgde.) CHLRLES PILE, Copte R,A,




